
 
 

 

 

30 June 2021 

At 5.00 pm 

 

Local Planning Panel 
 

 
 



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 

  

Agenda 
  

 

 

1.   Disclosures of Interest 

2.   Confirmation of Minutes 

3.   Development Application: 52 Waterloo St, Surry Hills - D/2021/242 

4.   Development Application: 15-17 William Street, Alexandria - D/2020/1059 

5.   Report to the Local Planning Panel - Status of Applications 

 



 

 

 

As part of our democratic process, the City invites members of the community to speak directly to 
Members of the Local Planning Panel (LPP) about items on a meeting agenda. 

Webcast  

In accordance with the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 and the City of Sydney 
Local Planning Panel Operational Procedures, LPP meetings are audio visually recorded and 
webcast live on the City of Sydney website at www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au.  

Members of the public attending a LPP meeting may have their image, voice and personal 
information (including name and address) recorded, publicly broadcast and archived. 

Consent  

By attending a LPP meeting, members of the public consent to this use of their image, voice and 
personal information.  

Disclaimer 

Statements made by individuals at a LPP meeting, and which may be contained in a live stream 
or recording of the meeting are those of the individuals making them, and not of the City/LPP. To 
be clear, unless set out in a resolution, the City/LPP does not endorse or support such 
statements. 

The City/LPP does not accept any liability for statements made or actions taken by individuals 
during LPP meetings that may be contrary to law, including discriminatory, defamatory or offensive 
comments. Such statements or actions are not protected by privilege and may be the subject of 
legal proceedings and potential liability, for which the City/LPP takes no responsibility. 

To enable the LPP to hear a wide range of views and concerns within the limited time available, 
we encourage people interested in speaking at meetings to: 

1. Register to speak by calling Secretariat on 9265 9702 or emailing 
secretariat@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au before 10.00am on the day of the meeting. 

2. Check the recommendation in the LPP report before speaking, as it may address your 
concerns so that you just need to indicate your support for the recommendation. 

3. Note that there is a three minute time limit for each speaker and prepare your 
presentation to cover your major points within that time. 

4. Avoid repeating what previous speakers have said and focus on issues and information 
that the LPP may not already know. 

5. If there is a large number of people interested in the same item as you, try to nominate 
three representatives to speak on your behalf and to indicate how many people they are 
representing. 

At the start of each LPP meeting, the Chair may re-order agenda items so that those items with 
speakers can be dealt with first. 

LPP reports are on line at www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au  

http://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/
mailto:secretariat@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au
http://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/


Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

 

Disclosures of Interest 

In accordance with section 4.9 of the Code of Conduct for Local Planning Panel Members, 

all Panel members are required to sign a declaration of interest in relation to each matter on 

the agenda. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Clause 15 of Schedule 4B of the Environmental Planning and 
Assessment Act 1979, members of the Local Planning Panel are required to disclose 
pecuniary interests in any matter on the agenda for this meeting of the Local Planning Panel. 

Panel members are also required to disclose any non-pecuniary interests in any matter on 
the agenda for this meeting of the Local Planning Panel. 

In both cases, the nature of the interest must be disclosed. 

 

1

Item 1.



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

Confirmation of Minutes 

Minutes of the following meetings of the Local Planning Panel, which have been endorsed 
by the Chairs of those meeting, are submitted for noting: 

Meetings of 8 June 2021 and 9 June 2021 

1

Item 2.



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

Development Application: 52 Waterloo St, Surry Hills - D/2021/242 

File No.: D/2021/242 

Summary 

Date of Submission: 17 March 2021  

Applicant: Con Haralambis 

Architect/Designer: Candalepas Associates 

Owner: Con and Antonia Haralambis 

Planning Consultant: SJB Planning 

Heritage Consultant: GBA Heritage Consultants 

Cost of Works: $141,900.00 

Zoning: B4 - Mixed Use Zone, proposal permitted with consent 

Proposal Summary: Alterations and additions to an existing restaurant (tenancy 
G07) including a new seating enclosure within the 
approved outdoor dining area and the installation of an 
indoor pizza oven. The application seeks to exceed the 
floor space ratio development standard by more than 10 
per cent and is therefore referred to the Local Planning 
Panel for determination. 

Summary Recommendation: The development application is recommended for 
approval, subject to conditions. 

Development Controls: (i) Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012  

(ii) Sydney Development Control Plan 2012  

Attachments: A. Recommended Conditions of Consent 

B. Selected Drawings 

C. Clause 4.6 Variation Request - Floor Space Ratio 

  

1

Item 3.



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

Recommendation 

It is resolved that: 

(A) the variation requested to clause 4.4 'Floor space ratio' in accordance with Clause 4.6 
'Exceptions to development standards' of the Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 
be upheld in this instance; and 

(B) consent be granted to Development Application No. D/2021/242 subject to the 
conditions set out in Attachment A to the subject report. 

Reasons for Recommendation 

The application is recommended for approval for the following reasons: 

(A) The proposal is consistent with the objectives of the B4 Mixed Use Zone.  

(B) The proposal generally satisfies the relevant controls relating to food and drink 
premises.  

(C) Based upon the material available to the Panel at the time of determining this 
application, the Panel is satisfied that: 

(i) the applicant’s written request has adequately addressed the matters required to 
be demonstrated by clause 4.6(3) of the Sydney LEP 2012, that compliance with 
the floor space ratio development standard is unreasonable or unnecessary and 
that there are sufficient planning grounds to justify contravening clause 4.3 of the 
Sydney LEP 2012; 

(ii) the proposal is in the public interest because it is consistent with the objectives 
of the B4 Mixed Use zone and the floor space ratio development standard.  

(iii) The proposal is considered to address the design excellence provisions at 
Clause 6.21(4) of SLEP 2012 in that it is to be comprised of contemporary 
materials and detailing that are consistent with the existing building and 
maintains a high degree of architectural design quality appropriate to the 
surrounding locality and streetscape.  

  

2



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

Background 

The Site and Surrounding Development 

1. The site has a legal description of Lot 11, DP 1149697, known as 52 Waterloo Street, 
Surry Hills. It is irregular in shape with an area of approximately 1,672sqm. It has a 
primary street frontage of 36.5m to Waterloo Street and a 52m frontage to Adelaide 
Street. The site is located close at the intersection of Waterloo and Adelaide Street. 
The topography has a slight fall from east to west.  

2. The site contains a four to five storey mixed use building with ground floor retail 
commercial lots (G01 to G09) and 52 residential apartments at the upper floors. Three 
of the ground level tenancies are currently occupied by Orto Trading Co. (G07), Mark 
and Vinny's Spaghetti and Spritz (G08), and Izakaya Fujiyama (G09). The building 
facade is composed of glazed bi-fold doors and off-form concrete finishes. Outdoor 
seating is provided at ground level along both Waterloo Street and Adelaide Street. 
The subject Development Application (DA) relates exclusively to Tenancy G07. 

3. The surrounding area is characterised by a mixture of land uses, primarily being 
commercial and residential. The locally listed heritage item I1488 known as the former 
"Readers Digest"  building is located opposite the site to the north on Adelaide Street. 
To the south is located the locally listed heritage item I1518 former Clarendon Hotel, 
now known as the Dove and Olive. To the west is located a row of two storey Victorian 
terrace dwellings and to the east is a 5 storey mixed use development with a ground 
floor showroom and residential units above.  

4. The site is not a heritage item but is located within the  Little Riley Street heritage 
conservation area C65. The site is identified as a neutral building. 

5. The site is located within the Surry Hills Central locality and is not identified as being 
subject to flooding.  

6. A site visit was carried out on 13 May 2021. Photos of the site and surrounds are 
provided below:  

3



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

 

Figure 1: Aerial view of site and surrounds  

 

Figure 2: View of existing outdoor seating area at intersection of Adelaide St and Waterloo St 

4



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

 

Figure 3: Site viewed from opposite side of Waterloo Street looking south  

 

Figure 4: View of north elevation of existing ground floor outdoor area 

5



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

 

Figure 5: View of site in an east direction on Adelaide Street 

 

Figure 6: view of site in a west direction on Adelaide Street 

6



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

 

Figure 7: Reader's Digest building to north of site on Waterloo Street  

 

Figure 8: View south on Waterloo Street 

7



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

History Relevant to the Development Application 

Appeal 

7. The proposal is subject to a Class 1 appeal against the deemed refusal (non- 
determination) of the application.  

Development Applications 

8. The following applications are relevant to the current proposal: 

 D/2006/1083 - A stage 2 consent was approved on the 28 May 2007 for the 

demolition of the existing building and construction of a part 5 and part 6 level 

mixed use building with 9 commercial units at ground level and 54 residential 

units on the upper floors and 62 car parking spaces in 3 levels of basement.  

 The Development Consent has subsequently been modified (modifications A-G), 

however, the modifications are not relevant to the application that is the subject 

of this report.  

 D/2010/1716 – Development consent was granted on 1 December 2011 for the 
fitout and use of tenancies G07, G08 and G09 fronting Adelaide and Waterloo 
Streets as licensed cafes/restaurants.  

 D/2010/1716/A - Modification of development consent was granted on 28 May 
2012 to amend Condition 2 (Hours of Operation) to extend the trial hours for a 
further two years and divide the different tenancies into separate conditions. 

 D/2010/1716/B - Modification of development consent was granted on 13 June 
2013 to amend Conditions 2A, 2B and 2C (Hours of Operation) regarding the 
extended hours of operation on a further trial period for each tenancy. 

 D/2010/1716/C - Modification of development consent was granted on 11 August 
2015 to amend condition 2A, 2B and 2C to continue the extended trial trading 
hours.  

 D/2010/1716/D - Modification of development consent was granted on 11 August 
2020 to amend condition 2A, 2B and 2C to continue the extended trial trading 
hours. 

 D/2012/278 – Development consent was granted on 28 February 2012 for the 
partial enclosure of the outdoor area fronting Adelaide Street associated with 
retail tenancy G07 Orto Restaurant. The consent was not implemented and 
lapsed in 2017. The consent granted approval for the enclosure of the same area 
as that proposed in the current application. 

Compliance Action 

9. The site is not subject to current compliance action. 

8



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

Proposed Development  

10. The application seeks consent for the following: 

 The partial enclosure of the existing outdoor seating area fronting Adelaide 

Street.  

 The proposed new seating enclosure would include bi-fold doors to the Waterloo 

Street facade, pre-finished zinc cladding and sliding glazed windows to Adelaide 

Street facade and a solid metal roof with operable glazed skylights. 

 The proposal includes a change of operator from the existing Orto restaurant to 

Mark and Vinny's restaurant who are relocating from the adjacent tenancy G08. 

The application also includes the installation of a new pizza oven within the 

existing restaurant G07.  

 It is not proposed to change the approved indoor/outdoor hours and patron 

capacity of the existing restaurant as approved under the operational consent 

D/2010/1716 with the latest modification approved on 11 August 2020 under 

modification application D/2010/1716/D.  

 Application D/2010/1716/D which was approved on the 11 August 2020 includes 

operational conditions for all three existing tenancies - G07, G08 and G09. The 

current application relates to tenancy G07 only. Consequently, the operational 

conditions of consent of D/2010/1716/D applicable to retail unit G07 shall 

continue to apply together with the conditions for the proposed new seating 

enclosure.  

  

9



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

11. Plans and elevations of the proposed development are provided below. 

 

 

Figure 9: Proposed site and floor plan with application site outlined in red 

Figure 10: Proposed roof plan 

proposed new seating enclosure  

 

 

 

10



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

 

Figure 11: Proposed west elevation to Waterloo Street with enclosure outlined in red 

 

Figure 12: Proposed north elevation to Adelaide Street 

11



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

 

Figure 13: Proposed short section  

Assessment 

12. The proposed development has been assessed under Section 4.15 of the 
Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (EP&A Act). 

Sydney Regional Environmental Plan (Sydney Harbour Catchment) 2005  

13. The site is located within the designated hydrological catchment of Sydney Harbour 
and is subject to the provisions of the above SREP. The SREP requires the Sydney 
Harbour Catchment Planning Principles to be considered in the carrying out of 
development within the catchment.  

14. The site is within the Sydney Harbour Catchment and eventually drains into Sydney 
Harbour. However, the site is not located in the Foreshores Waterways Area or 
adjacent to a waterway and therefore, with the exception of the objective of improved 
water quality, the objectives of the SREP are not applicable to the proposed 
development. The development is consistent with the controls contained within the 
deemed SEPP. 

12



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

Local Environmental Plans 

Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 

15. An assessment of the proposed development against the relevant provisions of the 
Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 is provided in the following sections.  

Part 2 Permitted or prohibited development  

Provision  Compliance Comment 

2.3 Zone objectives and Land 
Use Table 

Yes The site is located in the B4 Mixed Use 
zone. The proposed development is 
associated with an existing food and drink 
premises and is permissible with consent 
in the zone. The proposal generally 
meets the objectives of the zone. 

Part 4 Principal development standards 

Provision  Compliance  Comment  

4.3 Height of buildings Yes A maximum building height of 15m is 
permitted. 

The proposal is at ground floor level only 
and will not increase the height of the 
existing building. 

4.4 Floor space ratio No A maximum floor space ratio of 2.5:1 is 
permitted. 

A floor space ratio of 3.05:1 is proposed. 
The existing building already exceeds the 
floor space ratio control. A request to vary 
the floor space ratio development 
standard in accordance with Clause 4.6 
has been submitted. See further details in 
the ‘Discussion’ section below. 

4.6 Exceptions to development 
standards 

No The proposed development seeks to vary 
the development standard prescribed 
under Clause 4.4. A Clause 4.6 variation 
request has been submitted with the 
application.  

See further details in the ‘Discussion’ 
section below. 

 

  

13



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

Part 5 Miscellaneous provisions 

Provision Compliance Comment 

5.10 Heritage conservation Yes The site is not a heritage item.  

The site is located within the Little Riley 
Street Heritage Conservation Area (C65) 
and is identified as a neutral item.  A 
Heritage Impact Statement has been 
submitted with the application. The 
proposed new seating enclosure will not 
have a detrimental impact on the 
conservation area or nearby  heritage 
items including the Readers Digest 
building opposite the site. The proposed 
development has been reviewed and is 
supported by the Council's Heritage 
Specialist. 

Part 6 Local provisions – height and floor space 

Provision  Compliance Comment 

6.21 Design excellence Yes The proposed development is of a high 

standard and uses materials and 

detailing which are compatible with the 

existing development along the street 

and will contribute positively to the 

character of the area.  

Part 7 Local provisions – general 

Provision  Compliance Comment 

Division 1 Car parking ancillary to other development 

Other land uses 

 

Yes The proposed development does not 

include the provision of additional parking 

or lead to an intensification of the site.  

Development Control Plans 

Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 

16. An assessment of the proposed development against the relevant provisions within the 
Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 is provided in the following sections.  

  

14



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

Section 2 – Locality Statements  

17. The site is located within the Surry Hills Central locality. The proposed development is 
in keeping with the unique character and the design principles of the locality in that the 
development responds to and complements existing heritage items including 
streetscapes and lanes and responds to the mixed-use character of the area. In 
addition, the proposal supports the commercial precinct around Waterloo Street 
between Kippax and Devonshire Streets, defined by remnant commercial warehouses, 
and landmarks such as the Reader's Digest building.  

Section 3 – General Provisions   

Provision Compliance Comment 

3.1 Public Domain Elements Yes The proposed development is contained 
within the boundaries of the site and does 
not include works within the public 
domain. Appropriate conditions are 
recommended to ensure there is no 
encroachment of adjoining properties.  

3.5 Urban Ecology Yes The proposed development does not 
involve the removal of any trees and will 
not have an adverse impact on the local 
urban ecology. 

3.9 Heritage Yes The site is not a heritage item. The site 
is located within the Little Riley Street 
Heritage Conservation Area (C65) and is 
identified as a neutral building.  A 
Heritage Impact Statement has been 
submitted which details that the 
proposed new seating enclosure would 
not have a detrimental impact on the 
conservation area together with the 
surrounding heritage items including the 
Readers Digest building opposite the 
site. The proposed development is 
supported by the Council's Heritage 
Specialist. 

3.14 Waste Yes A condition is recommended by the 
Council's Health unit to ensure the 
proposed development complies with the 
relevant provisions of the City of Sydney 
Guidelines for Waste Management in 
New Development. 

3.15 Late Night Trading 
Management 

Yes The premises is not located within a late 

night trading area and the use is defined 

as a category B premises.  

15



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

Provision Compliance Comment 

Indoor base trading hours are permitted 

between 7am-10pm with extended hours 

permitted until 12 midnight.  

Outdoor trading hours are permitted 

between 7am-8pm with extended hours 

permitted between 8-10pm.  

The proposed trading hours of the new 

seating enclosure are between 8.00am to 

10.00pm. 

In accordance with the recommendations 

included within the Acoustic Report 

prepared by Koikas Acoustics, the 

enclosed outdoor dining area will operate 

in ‘open mode’ (i.e. bi-fold doors, 

windows, and skylights open) until 9pm. 

The enclosed area will operate in ‘closed 

mode’ (i.e. bi-fold doors and sliding 

windows closed) from 9pm to 10pm. 

Additionally, the internal bi-fold doors to 

the main restaurant will be 75 per cent 

closed from 9pm to 10pm. 

The proposed trading hours and patron 

capacity (112 indoors/30 external) is 

retained as approved under 

D/2010/1716/D. The patron capacity of 

the new seating enclosure would be 

restricted to a maximum of 18 persons at 

any one time.  

The proposed hours are supported by the 

Council's Licensing Unit subject to the 

Plan of Management dated March 2021 

for the proposed new seating enclosure.  

The Plan of Management approved for 

the operational consent D/2010/1716/D 

of the restaurant dated 18 August 2020 

would continue to apply.  

 

  

16



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

Section 4 – Development Types  

4.2 Residential Flat, Commercial and Mixed Use Developments  

Provision Compliance  Comment 

4.2.1 Building height 

4.2.1.1 Height in storeys and 

street frontage height in storeys 

Yes The site is permitted a maximum building 

height of 4 storeys  

The proposal would not increase the 

height of the existing building.  

4.2.2 Building setbacks Yes There are no setbacks applicable to the 

application site.  

See further details in the ‘Design’ section 

below. 

4.2.3 Amenity 

4.2.3.1 Solar access Yes The proposed ground floor enclosure 

would not lead to overshadowing of 

surrounding sites. 

4.2.3.10 Outlook Yes The proposed ground floor enclosure is 

surrounded by significantly larger 

buildings and consequently would not 

adversely affect outlook.  

4.2.3.11 Acoustic privacy Yes The partial enclosure of the existing 

outdoor seating area would reduce the 

level of noise/disturbance associated 

with the existing outdoor area. An 

acoustic report  has been submitted 

which contains noise mitigation 

measures and is supported by the City's 

Health Unit. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

17



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

Provision Compliance  Comment 

In accordance with the recommendations 

included within the Acoustic Report 

prepared by Koikas Acoustics, the 

enclosed outdoor dining area will operate 

in ‘open mode’ (i.e. bi-fold doors, 

windows, and skylights open) until 9pm. 

The enclosed area will operate in ‘closed 

mode’ (i.e. bi-fold doors and sliding 

windows closed) from 9pm to 10pm. See 

further details in the ‘Discussion’ section 

below. 

4.2.9 Non-residential 

development in the B4 Mixed 

Uses Zone 

Yes Subject to conditions, the development 

will not adversely impact the amenity of 

neighbouring residential properties. 

Discussion  

Clause 4.6 Request to Vary a Development Standard 

18. The site is subject to a maximum floor space ratio (FSR) control of 2.5:1. The 
development resulting from the proposed enclosure of part of the existing outdoor 
seating area will have a FSR of 3.05:1 

19. The existing building has a gross floor area (GFA) of 5,064.1sqm and a FSR of 3.03:1, 
which equates to a variation of 21.29 per cent.  

20. The proposal involves a minor addition of 36sqm of GFA resulting in a new FSR of 
3.05:1 and a total variation of 22 per cent to the FSR development standard.  

21. A written request has been submitted to Council in accordance with Clause 4.6(3)(a) 
and (b) of the Sydney LEP 2012 seeking to justify the contravention of the 
development standard by demonstrating: 

(a) That compliance with the development standard is unreasonable or unnecessary 
in the circumstances of the case. 

(b) That there are sufficient environmental planning grounds to justify contravening 
the standard. 

(c) The proposed development will be consistent with the objectives of the zone. 

(d) The proposed development will be consistent with the objectives of the standard. 

  

18



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

Applicant's Written Request - Clause 4.6(3)(a) and (b) 

22. The applicant seeks to justify the contravention of the floor space ratio development 
standard on the following basis: 

(a) That compliance with the development standard is unreasonable or unnecessary 
in the circumstances of the case: 

 the development is consistent with the standard and zone objectives, even 
with the proposed variation: Yes, the proposal remains consistent with the 
objectives of the FSR standard in that despite the non-compliance, the 
proposal does not involve any change to the existing retail use and 
ensures the use and viability of the existing restaurant 

 there are no additional significant adverse impacts arising from the 
proposed non-compliance: Yes, the proposal does not include a change to 
the existing operating hours of the restaurant or an increase in patron 
numbers. Consequently, the proposal will not lead to an intensification of 
the site. The proposed partial enclosure of the existing outdoor seating 
area together with the minor nature of the enclosure will not significantly 
affect the existing building form; and  

 important planning goals are achieved by the approval of the variation. 
Yes, the minor nature of the proposal would not harm the visual amenities 
of the area. In addition, the proposed new seating area would enclose part 
of the existing outdoor which would lessen the level of noise and 
consequently would not have an adverse impact on residential amenities.  

(b) That there are sufficient environmental planning grounds to justify contravening 
the standard: 

 The existing building on the site has a GFA of 5,064.1 sqm and resultant 
FSR of 3.03:1, which exceeds the FSR standard by 21.2 per cent (as 
approved under DA/2006/1083/G). 

 The proposed increase to GFA of 36 sqm is a direct result of the proposed 
alterations and additions to an area that was previously excluded from 
GFA (i.e. outdoor dining area).  

 The proposed new structure is a minor addition to the site and is consistent 
with the bulk and scale of the existing building. The single storey structure 
is in part nestled below the street level and is similar in height and scale to 
the existing hydrant booster enclosure located adjacent to the proposed 
works. 

 The proposed structure includes a flat roof and will appear ‘sunken’ when 
viewed from Adelaide Street (to the north) and Waterloo Street (to the 
north-west) due to the significantly lower finished floor level of the existing 
outdoor dining area compared to the level of the Adelaide Street footpath. 
Further, the proposed materials provide a high level of transparency to the 
structure, which will minimise its perceived bulk. 

  

19



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

 The external materials and finishes (i.e. glazed bi-fold doors, aluminium 
framing, sliding glazed windows, prefinished zinc cladding, and metal 
finishes) of the proposed structure are consistent with that of the existing 
building and are sympathetic to the architectural design and character of 
the locality; 

 Noting that no change is proposed to the operating hours or patron 
capacity of Tenancy G07, the proposal will not result in any intensification 
of uses at the site or any change to existing traffic and parking 
arrangements. 

 The proposal maintains the significance of the Little Riley Street Heritage 
Conservation Area. The proposed works involve minor alterations to an 
existing contemporary building and will have no adverse impact on the 
fabric, setting, or view corridors of nearby Heritage Items. 

 Noting the minor scale of proposed works, the proposal does not give rise 
to any significant adverse amenity impacts to surrounding commercial and 
residential properties with regard to overshadowing, visual and acoustic 
privacy, bulk and scale, or view loss. 

 The proposed development is similar to the development approved under 
D/2012/278 for an enclosure to part of the outdoor dining area of Tenancy 
G07 (i.e. the same structure in the same location), but which was not 
constructed. Specifically, the resultant GFA of the proposal is 
commensurate with the GFA as approved under DA/2012/278; and 

 The proposed development is consistent with the existing and desired 
scale, design, and character of surrounding development and the 
streetscape. 

(c) The proposed development will be consistent with the objectives of the zone: 

 The site is located in the B4 Mixed use zone. The objectives of this zone 
are: 

 to provide a mixture of compatible land uses. 

 to integrate suitable business, office, residential, retail and other 
development in accessible locations so as to maximise public 
transport patronage and encourage walking and cycling; and  

 to ensure uses support the viability of centres. 

 The proposal is consistent with the objectives of the zone.  

(d) The proposed development will be consistent with the objectives of the standard 
in that the proposal seeks to improve the amenity of the outdoor dining area of 
an existing restaurant in terms of climate control, weather protection and noise 
mitigation. This will assist in the ongoing economic success of the restaurant, 
which in turn, will support the viability of the wider Surry Hills mixed use centre.  

  

20



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

Consideration of Applicant's Written Request - Clause 4.6(4) (a) (i) and (ii) 

23. Development consent must not be granted unless the consent authority is satisfied 
that: 

(a) The applicant’s written request has adequately addressed the matters required 
to be demonstrated by subclause 3 of Clause 4.6 being that compliance with the 
development standard is unreasonable or unnecessary in the circumstances of 
the case, and that there are sufficient environmental planning grounds to justify 
contravening the standard; and 

(b) The proposed development will be in the public interest because it is consistent 
with the objectives of the particular standard and the objectives for development 
within the zone in which the development is proposed to be carried out. 

Does the written request adequately address those issues at Clause 4.6(3)(a)? 

24. The applicant has correctly referred to the test established in Wehbe v Pittwater 
Council [2007] NSW LEC 827 to demonstrate that compliance with the standard is 
unreasonable or unnecessary in the circumstances of the case. Specifically, the 
applicant has satisfactorily demonstrated that the proposal meets the objectives of the 
development standard, notwithstanding the non-compliance with the standard. 

Does the written request adequately address those issues at clause 4.6(3)(b)? 

25. The applicant has adequately demonstrated that there are sufficient environmental 
planning grounds that justify contravention of the floor space ratio development 
standard. In this instance, the proposal generally complies with other LEP and DCP 
controls relating to the bulk and scale of the site and does not result in adverse visual 
privacy, acoustic privacy or overshadowing impacts to neighbouring properties. In 
addition, there is no intensification in density, as the structure facilitates part of the 
existing patron capacity to be accommodated indoors.  

Is the development in the public interest? 

26. With regard to varying development standards, the public interest is conceived as 
being protected where a development meets the objectives of the zone and the 
development standard sought to be varied. 

27. The development is consistent with the objectives of the floor space ratio development 
standard. The development reflects the desired character of the locality and the 
proposal has been designed to minimise adverse impacts on surrounding amenity. In 
addition, the proposal is consistent with the objectives of the B4 Mixed Use zone which 
are:  

 to provide a mixture of compatible land uses: The proposal does not include a 
change to the approved retail use;  

 to integrate suitable business, office, residential, retail and other development in 
accessible locations so as to maximise public transport patronage and 
encourage walking and cycling: The proposal does not involve a change to the 
existing use which is in close proximity to public transport links; 

  

21



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

 ensures uses support the viability of centres: The partial enclosure of the existing 
outdoor area includes a minor addition to GFA of 36sq and does not include a 
change to the existing operating hours of the restaurant or an increase in patron 
numbers. Consequently, the proposal will not lead to an intensification of the site 
and therefore will have no impact on the viability of nearby centres.  

Conclusion 

28. For the reasons provided above the requested variation to the floor space ratio 
standard is supported as the applicant's written request has adequately addressed the 
matters required to be addressed by cl 4.6 of the Sydney Local Environmental Plan 
2012 and the proposed development would be in the public interest because it is 
consistent with the objectives of the floor space ratio development standard and the B4 
Mixed Use zone.  

Design 

29. The proposal has been reviewed by the Heritage and Urban Design Specialists Panel 
and is supported for the following reasons: 

 The proposed new structure is a minor addition and is consistent with the bulk 
and scale of the existing building and similar in bulk to the existing hydrant 
enclosure. Although the proposed structure projects slightly from the existing 
north elevation, there is no established setback prescribed for the area and the 
projection is relatively minor within its setting and would not be harmful to the 
character of the area or the appearance of the building. 

 The proposed structure includes a flat roof and will appear ‘sunken’ when viewed 
from Adelaide Street (to the north) and Waterloo Street (to the north-west) due to 
the significantly lower finished floor level of the existing outdoor dining area 
compared to the level of the Adelaide Street footpath. In addition, the proposed 
materials provide a high level of transparency to the structure, which will 
minimise its perceived bulk. 

 The external materials and finishes (i.e. glazed bi-fold doors, aluminium framing, 
sliding glazed windows, prefinished zinc cladding, and metal finishes) of the 
proposed structure are consistent with that of the existing building on the site and 
are sympathetic to the architectural design and character of the locality. 

 the structure will have no environmental impacts by way of overshadowing, 
privacy, view loss or loss of vegetation/landscaping. 

 the structure has been designed with materials to complement the existing 
building.  

 the proposal will not have a detrimental impact on surrounding heritage buildings 
including the Readers Digest building opposite.  

 Council's Heritage and Urban Design Specialist recommended conditions of 
consent, including full details of drainage to be provided prior to the issue of a 
Construction Certificate. These are included in the recommended conditions of 
consent.  

  

22



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

 In addition, although assessed under the South Sydney LEP 1998 (with draft 
Sydney  LEP 2012 being a matter for consideration), a very similar enclosure in 
terms of design, bulk and massing was approved in 2012 under application 
D/2012/278. The consent was not acted upon and lapsed in 2017.  

Noise/Impact on Amenity  

30. The proposed partial enclosure of the outdoor seating will help reduce the level of 
noise and disturbance as noise would be contained within the structure. An acoustic 
report has been submitted which includes a range of noise mitigation measures 
including the closure of windows and doors of the new seating area between 9pm and 
10pm, the laminated glazing to be a minimum of 6.38mm thick with acoustic seals and 
the installation of a acoustic panels below the ceiling. The report has been reviewed 
and is supported by the Council's Health Specialist subject to conditions. 

Hours of Operation 

31. The premises is not located within a late night trading area and the use is defined as a 
category B premises. Indoor trading hours are permitted between 7.00am to 10.00pm 
base hours with an extension to midnight. Outdoor trading hours are permitted 
between 7.00am to 8.00pm with extended hours permitted between 8.00pm to 
10.00pm.  

32. The proposed trading hours of the new seating enclosure are between 8.00am to 
10.00pm Monday to Sundays which comply with the permissible base indoor hours 
and are within the approved "outdoor" trading hours of the restaurant approved under 
D/2010/1716/D.  

33. The proposed trading hours and patron capacity (142) is retained as approved under 
D/2010/1716/D. The patron capacity of the new seating enclosure would be restricted 
to a maximum of 18 persons at any one time. The proposed hours are supported by 
the Council's Licensing Unit subject to conditions.  

34. The Health and Building unit have requested a condition be applied requesting 
additional mechanical ventilation requirements for the proposed pizza oven as no 
details have been provided with the application. The condition requires that details of 
the proposed system be submitted to and approved in writing prior to the issue of a 
Construction Certificate.  

Consultation 

Internal Referrals 

35. The application was discussed with Council's Building Services Unit; Environmental 
Health Unit, Licensed Premises Unit and Heritage and Urban Design Unit who advised 
that the proposal is acceptable subject to conditions. Where appropriate, these 
conditions are included in the Notice of Determination.  

Advertising and Notification 

36. In accordance with the City of Sydney Community Participation Plan 2019, the 
proposed development was notified for a period of 14 days between 22 March 2021 
and 6 April 2021. A total of 181 properties were notified and one submission was 
received. 

23



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

37. The submission raised the following issues: 

Issue: The approved DA should make it clear that the current/prior conditions of 
operation still apply whereby the existing bifold doors and windows be closed to the 
outdoor structure by 10pm as is currently required. Regular communication with all 
units of 38-52 Waterloo Street should be maintained and not just individual units.  

Response: The proposed new seating area is only intended to operate between 
8.00am to 10.00pm consistent with the existing approved hours of operation for the 
outdoor area.  

The submitted Plan of Management, which is required to be complied with under the 
recommended conditions of consent, requires regular communication (every 2 months 
at a minimum) with the nearest affected residential property above the restaurant, 
together with residential properties opposite the restaurant on Waterloo Street. This is 
considered sufficient to allow Council to monitor the operation of the premises. In 
addition, the proposal does not increase the patron numbers for the restaurant and 
subsequently would not intensify the use of the site. Furthermore, conditions of 
consent require the bi-fold door and windows to be closed by 9pm which is consistent 
with the submitted acoustic report which  includes a range of additional noise 
mitigation measures including: 

 6.38mm laminated glass with acoustic seals on all glazed windows and doors 

 Windows and doors of the new seating enclosure to be closed between 9pm to 
10pm  

 Insulated roof framing 

Financial Contributions 

Contribution under Section 7.11 of the EP&A Act 1979 

38. The development is subject to a Section 7.11 development contribution under the 
provisions of the City of Sydney Development Contributions Plan 2015. 

 

39. A condition relating to this development contribution has been included in the 
recommended conditions of consent in the Notice of Determination. The condition 
requires the contribution to be paid prior to the issue of a construction certificate. 

24



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

Relevant Legislation 

40. Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979. 

Conclusion 

41. It is considered that the proposed enclosure of the existing outdoor seating area 
fronting Adelaide Street is modest in terms of its bulk and scale, and, being situated 
within an existing outdoor dining area the floor level for which is below street level, the 
proposal will have no environmental impacts by way of overshadowing, privacy, view 
loss or loss of vegetation/landscaping. 

42. The structure has been designed with materials to complement the existing building 
and the Council’s Urban Designers consider the new structure to be acceptable from a 
streetscape point of view. 

43. The structure will result in no additional seating / patron capacity and as such will not 
lead to an intensification of use of the site.  It will also result in reduced noise impacts 
from the  restaurant. 

44. The proposed development will not result in any adverse heritage impacts. 

45. The application is recommended for approval subject to conditions. 

ANDREW THOMAS 

Executive Manager Planning and Development 

Derek Smyth, Planner 

25



Attachment A 

Recommended Conditions of Consent

26



 

 

CONDITIONS OF CONSENT 

SCHEDULE 1A 

APPROVED DEVELOPMENT/DESIGN MODIFICATIONS/COVENANTS AND 
CONTRIBUTIONS/USE AND OPERATION 

Note:  Some conditions in Schedule 1A are to be satisfied prior to issue of a Construction 
Certificate and some are to be satisfied prior to issue of Occupation Certificate, where 
indicated. 

(1) APPROVED DEVELOPMENT 

(a) Development must be in accordance with Development Application No. 
D/2021/242 dated 17 March 2021 and the following drawings: 

Drawing Number Drawing Name Date 

DA-1000 A Coversheet 10/3/21 

DA-1101 A Site Plan 10/3/21 

DA-1101 A Ground Floor Plan 10/3/21 

DA-1102 A  Roof Plan 10/3/21 

DA-1201 Section & West Elevation 10/3/21 

DA-1301 North Elevation 10/3/21 

 
and as amended by the conditions of this consent. 

(b) In the event of any inconsistency between the approved plans and 
supplementary documentation, the plans will prevail. 

(2) SECTION 7.11 CONTRIBUTIONS PAYABLE - CONTRIBUTION TOWARDS 
PUBLIC AMENITIES – CITY OF SYDNEY DEVELOPMENT CONTRIBUTIONS 
PLAN 2015 – EAST PRECINCT 

Council has identified the development will increase demand for public amenities 
and facilities. Pursuant to Section 7.11 of the Environmental Planning and 
Assessment Act, 1979 (as amended), and the City of Sydney Development 
Contributions Plan 2015 the following monetary contributions are required towards 
the cost of public amenities. 

Contribution Category Amount 

Open Space $2,273.40   

Community Facilities $2,142.10 

Traffic and Transport $356.39 

Stormwater Drainage $0.00 

Total $4,771.89 

The City of Sydney will index the above contribution for inflation at the time of 
payment using the following formula. 

27



 

 

Cpayment = Cconsent x (CPIpayment ÷ CPIconsent) 

Where: 

Cpayment = Is the contribution at time of payment; 

Cconsent = Is the contribution at the time of consent, as shown above; 

CPIpayment = Is the Consumer Price Index (All Groups Index) for Sydney 
published by the Australian Bureau of Statistics that applies at 
the time of payment; and 

CPI1consent = Is the Consumer Price Index (All Groups Index) for Sydney at 
the date the contribution amount above was calculated being 
– 118.5 for the March 2021 quarter.  

The contribution must be paid prior to the issue of any Construction Certificate in 
relation to this development. 

Please contact Council’s Planning Administration staff at 
planningsystemsadmin@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au to request a letter confirming 
the indexed contribution amount payable. 

Once the letter confirming the indexed contribution is obtained, payment may be 
made at any of the City’s Neighbourhood Service Centres or the One Stop Shop 
at Town Hall House. Acceptable payment methods are EFTPOS (debit card only), 
cash (up to 10K only), Credit Card (up to 50K only) or a bank cheque made 
payable to the City of Sydney. Personal or company cheques will not be accepted. 

  (3)  COMPLIANCE WITH PREVIOUS CONSENT  

The conditions of consent of D/2010/1716/D shall continue to apply to this 

development.  

 (4)  HOURS OF OPERATION - SENSITIVE USES  

The hours of operation are regulated as follows:  

(a) The hours of operation of the enclosed area  must be restricted to between 

8.00am and 10.00pm Monday to Sunday.  

(5)  MAXIMUM CAPACITY   

The maximum  capacity of patrons within the enclosed area is 18 persons, the 

capacity of patrons within the remaining outdoor seating area is 30 persons.   

(6)  PLAN OF MANAGEMENT   

The use must always be operated / managed in accordance with the approved 

Plans of Management Tenancy G.07, 52 Waterloo Street, Surry Hills prepared by 

SJB and dated March 2021(Council reference - 2021/115452).  

(7)  EXTERNAL DOORS AND WINDOWS TO BE CLOSED AFTER 9PM.  

Consistent with the Plan of Management, all external doors and windows of the 

new seating enclosure shall be shut after 9pm. 

28



 

 

(8) MATERIALS AND SAMPLES SCHEDULE – MINOR DEVELOPMENT 

A detailed materials, colours and finishes schedule keyed to each building 
elevation must be submitted to and approved by Council’s Area Coordinator 
Planning Assessments/Area Planning Manager to a Construction Certificate being 
issued. The materials and samples schedule/board must not include generic 
material or colour descriptions, or use terminology such as ‘or similar’. 

(9) DRAINAGE DETAILS 

Full details of drainage for the new seating enclosure including construction 
details, at a scale of 1:50, showing roof fall, outlet points, and down pipes must be 
submitted to and approved by Council’s Area Coordinator/Area Planning Manager 
Planning Assessments prior to a Construction Certificate being issued. 

(10)  SIGNS - SEPARATE DA REQUIRED  

A separate development application for any proposed signs additional to those 

approved as part of this consent (other than exempt or complying signs under 

Council’s exempt and complying DCPs) must be submitted to and approved by 

Council prior to the erection or display of any such signs.  

(11)  SIGNS/GOODS IN THE PUBLIC WAY  

No signs or goods are to be placed on the footway or roadway adjacent to the 

property.  

(12)  NEIGHBOURHOOD AMENITY  

(a) Signs must be placed in clearly visible positions within the restaurant 

requesting patrons upon leaving the premises to do so quickly and quietly, 

having regard to maintaining the amenity of the area.  

(b) The management must ensure that the behaviour of patrons entering and 

leaving the premises does not detrimentally affect the amenity of the 

neighbourhood.  In this regard, the management must be responsible for the 

control of noise and litter generated by patrons of the premises and must 

ensure that patrons leave the vicinity of the premises in an orderly manner 

to the satisfaction of Council.  If so directed by Council, the management is 

to employ private security staff to ensure that this condition is complied with.  

(13)  COMPLAINTS  

Where a noise complaint is received by Council from a place of different  

occupancy (including commercial premises) and the complaint is substantiated 
by a Council Officer, the Council may employ a consultant to measure noise 
emanating from the property and to recommend (if necessary) appropriate 
actions to ensure compliance with the Condition (3) "Noise – Licensed 
Premises". The consultant must be a full member of the Australian Acoustic 
Society (AAS), Institution of Engineers Australia (IEA) or the Australia of 
Acoustical Consultants (AAAC). The cost of such appointment and associated 
work shall be borne by the operator, who shall also ensure the recommendations 
of the acoustic consultant are implemented.  

29



 

 

(14) COMPLIANCE WITH THE ACOUSTIC REPORT PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION 
AND OR OCCUPATION CERTIFICATES 

(a) All relevant performance parameters (including but not limited to 
requirements, engineering assumptions and recommendations) in the DA 
Acoustic Report prepared by “Koikas Acoustics”, Council reference 
2021/115449, dated 16 February 2021, must be implemented in the 
development prior to the commencement of its use. 

(b) Prior to the issue of any relevant Construction Certificate, the final 
construction drawings and final construction methodology must be 
assessed and reported to be in accordance with the requirements of the 
DA Acoustic Report in (a) above, with reference to relevant documentation. 
This must be done by a Suitably Qualified Acoustic Consultant* (see 
definition below).  This work will be to the satisfaction of the accredited 
certifier. 

(c) Prior to the issue of any Occupation Certificate, a Suitably Qualified 
Acoustic Consultant* is to provide a written Acoustic Verification Report to 
the satisfaction of the Principal Certifier that the development complies with 
the requirements set out in the Report and in (a) and (b) above. 

Note: Suitably Qualified Acoustic Consultant means a consultant who 
possesses the qualifications to render them eligible for membership of the 
Australian Acoustical Society, Institution of Engineers Australia or the 
Association of Australian Acoustical Consultants at the grade of member 
firm. 

(d) All physical aspects of the building’s structure installed in order to meet 
performance parameters in accordance with this condition must be 
maintained at all times. 

(15) NOISE – COMMERCIAL PLANT / INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 

(a) Noise from commercial plant and industrial development must not exceed a 
project amenity/intrusiveness noise level or maximum noise level in 
accordance with relevant requirements of the NSW EPA Noise Policy for 
Industry 2017 (NPfI) unless agreed to by the City’s Area Planning Manager. 
Further: 

(i) Background noise monitoring must be carried out in accordance with 
the long-term methodology in Fact Sheet B of the NPfI unless 
otherwise agreed by the City’s Area Planning Manager. 

(ii) Commercial plant is limited to heating, ventilation, air conditioning, 
refrigeration and energy generation equipment. 

(b) An LAeq,15 minute (noise level) emitted from the development must not exceed 
the LA90, 15 minute (background noise level) by more than 3dB when assessed 
inside any habitable room of any affected residence or noise sensitive 
commercial premises at any time. Further: 

(i) The noise level and the background noise level must both be 
measured with all external doors and windows of the affected 
residence closed. 

30

https://www.epa.nsw.gov.au/-/media/epa/corporate-site/resources/noise/17p0524-noise-policy-for-industry.pdf
https://www.epa.nsw.gov.au/-/media/epa/corporate-site/resources/noise/17p0524-noise-policy-for-industry.pdf
https://www.epa.nsw.gov.au/-/media/epa/corporate-site/resources/noise/17p0524-noise-policy-for-industry.pdf


 

 

(ii) Background noise measurements must not include noise from the 
development but may include noise from necessary ventilation at the 
affected premise. 

(c) Corrections in Fact Sheet C of the NPfI are applicable to relevant noise from 
the development measured in accordance with this condition, however 
duration corrections are excluded from commercial noise. 

(16) ASBESTOS REMOVAL WORKS 

(a) All works removing asbestos containing materials must be carried out by a 
suitably licensed asbestos removalist duly licensed with Safework NSW, 
holding either a Friable (Class A) or a Non-Friable (Class B) Asbestos 
Removal Licence which ever applies. 

A copy of the relevant licence must be made available to any authorised 
Council officer on request within 24 hours. 

(b) Five days prior to the commencement of licensed asbestos removal, 
Safework NSW must be formally notified of the works. All adjoining 
properties and those opposite the development must be notified in writing of 
the dates and times when asbestos removal is to be conducted. The 
notification must identify the licensed asbestos removal contractor and 
include a contact person for the site together with telephone number and 
email address. 

(c) All work must be carried out in accordance with the Work Health and Safety 
Regulation 2017 and the NSW Government and SafeWork NSW document 
entitled How to manage and control asbestos in the work place: Code of 
Practice (Safework NSW) December 2011 and the City of Sydney Managing 
Asbestos Policy dated 21 October 2013 and associated guidelines. 

(d) The asbestos removalist must use signs and barricades to clearly indicate 
the area where the asbestos removal work is being performed. Signs must 
be placed in positions so that people are aware of where the asbestos 
removal work area is and should remain in place until removal is completed 
and clearance to reoccupy has been granted. Responsibilities for the 
security and safety of the asbestos removal site and removal must be 
specified in the asbestos removal control plan (where required). This 
includes inaccessible areas that are likely to contain asbestos. 

(e) Warning signs must be placed so they inform all people nearby that asbestos 
removal work is taking place in the area. Signs must be placed at all of the 
main entry points to the asbestos removal work area where asbestos is 
present. These signs must be weatherproof, constructed of light-weight 
material and adequately secured so they remain in prominent locations. The 
signs must be in accordance with AS 1319 -1994 Safety Signs for the 
Occupational Environment for size, illumination, location and maintenance. 

(f) Asbestos waste must only be transported and disposed of at an EPA 
licensed waste facility. 

(g) No asbestos products are to be reused on the site (i.e. packing pieces, 
spacers, formwork or fill etc). 

31

https://www.epa.nsw.gov.au/-/media/epa/corporate-site/resources/noise/17p0524-noise-policy-for-industry.pdf


 

 

(h) No asbestos laden skips or bins are to be left in any public place without the 
written approval of Council. 

(i) A site notice board must be located at the main entrance to the site in a 
prominent position and must have minimum dimensions of 841mm x 594mm 
(A1) with any text on the notice to be a minimum of 30 point type size. 

The site notice board must include the following: 

(i) contact person for the site; 

(ii) telephone and facsimile numbers and email address; and 

(iii) site activities and time frames. 

(17) CLASSIFICATION OF WASTE 

Prior to the exportation of waste (including fill or soil) from the site, the waste 
materials must be classified in accordance with the provisions of the Protection of 
the Environment Operations Act 1997 and the NSW DECC Waste Classification 
Guidelines, Part1: Classifying Waste (July 2009). The classification of the material 
is essential to determine where the waste may be legally taken. The Protection of 
the Environment Operations Act 1997 provides for the commission of an offence 
for both the waste owner and the transporters if the waste is taken to a place that 
cannot lawfully be used as a waste facility for the particular class of waste. For the 
transport and disposal of industrial, hazardous or Group A liquid waste advice 
should be sought from the EPA. 

(18) FOOD PREMISES – ADDITIONAL MECHANICAL VENTILATION 
REQUIREMENTS 

(a) The cooking appliances require an approved air handling system designed 
in accordance with AS1668.1 - The Use of Ventilation and Air-conditioning 
in Buildings – Fire and Smoke Control in Buildings and AS1668.2 - The Use 
of Ventilation and Air-conditioning in Buildings – Mechanical Ventilation in 
Buildings, and must incorporate the following: 

(i) The discharge exhaust air must be directed in a vertical, or near 
vertical direction above the roof, and 

(ii) The cooking appliances must not burn any charcoal, wood or other 
solid fuel. 

(b) Details of the proposed system must be submitted to and approved by 
Council’s Health and Building Unit in writing prior to the issue of a 
Construction Certificate. 

(19) WASTE/RECYCLING COLLECTION 

(a) The collection of waste and recycling must only occur during the designated 
zone collection times as outlined in the City’s Waste Policy – Local Approvals 
Policy for Managing Waste in Public Places 2017. 

32



 

 

(b) Garbage and recycling must not be placed on the street for collection more 
than half an hour before the scheduled collection time. Bins and containers 
are to be removed from the street within half an hour of collection. 

(20) HAZARDOUS AND INDUSTRIAL WASTE 

Hazardous and/or industrial waste arising from the demolition/operational 
activities must be removed and/or transported in accordance with the 
requirements of the NSW Work Cover Authority pursuant to the provisions of the 
following: 

(a) Protection of the Environment Operations Act 1997 

(b) Protection of the Environment Operations (Waste) Regulation 2005 

(c) Waste Avoidance and Resource Recovery Act 2001 

(d) Work Health and Safety Act 2011 

(e) Work Health and Safety Regulation 2017. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

33



 

 

SCHEDULE 1B 

PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION CERTIFICATE/COMMENCEMENT OF WORK/HEALTH AND 
BUILDING 

(21) BCA COMPLIANCE - ALTERATIONS AND ADDITIONS - UPGRADE OF 
BUILDING IS REQUIRED  

(a) Pursuant to Clause 94 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment 
Regulation 2000, the proposed building work must comply with the Building 
Code of Australia (BCA) including: 

(i) Structural provisions - Part B1; 

(ii) Fire resistance and stability - Part C1; 

(c) If compliance with the conditions listed in (a) above cannot be achieved 
through the deemed-to-satisfy pathway, an alternative solution in 
accordance with Part A2 of the BCA must be prepared and submitted to the 
Accredited Certifier illustrating how the relevant performance provisions are 
to be satisfied, and must form part of the approval prior to a Construction 
Certificate being issued. 

(22) ANNUAL FIRE SAFETY STATEMENT FORM 

An annual Fire Safety Statement must be given to Council and Rescue NSW 
commencing within 12 months after the date on which the initial Interim/Final Fire 
Safety Certificate is issued or the use commencing, whichever is earlier. 

(23) FLASHINGS TO BOUNDARY WALLS 

A flashing must be provided to prevent water entering between the proposed and 
existing external boundary walls of the adjoining properties. 

Note: Attachments or connections to party walls may require the consent of the 
adjoining property owner/s. 

(24) APPLICATION FOR HOARDINGS AND SCAFFOLDING INSTALLED ON OR 
ABOVE A PUBLIC ROAD AND OPERATING HOISTING DEVICES INCLUDING 
BUILDING MAINTENANCE UNITS OVER A PUBLIC ROAD 

(a) Where a hoarding and/or scaffolding (temporary structures) are proposed to 
be installed on or above a road reservation (footway and/or roadway), a 
separate application under Section 68 of the Local Government Act 1993 
and Sections 138/139 of the Roads Act 1993 must be submitted to and 
approved by Council for such structures. 

(b) Where an approval (Permit) is granted allowing the placement of temporary 
structures on or above a public road the structures must comply fully with 
Council’s Hoarding and Scaffolding Policy; Guidelines for Hoardings and 
Scaffolding; and the conditions of approval (Permit) granted including: 

34



 

 

(i) maintaining a current and valid approval for the full duration that the 
temporary structure/s is in place; 

(ii) maintaining temporary structure/s in a structurally sound and stable 
condition for the full duration of installation (Clause 2.11.1); 

(iii) bill posters and graffiti being removed within 24 hours of their 
placement (Clause 2.11.2); 

(iv) maintaining temporary structures and the public place adjoining the 
work site in a clean and tidy condition including repainting and/or repair 
of graphics (Clauses 2.11.1, 2.11.4, 2.14.1 and 3.9.3); 

(v) maintaining a watertight deck (Type B hoardings) to prevent liquids 
including rainwater, falling onto the footway/roadway surfaces 
(Clauses 3.9.1 and 3.9.4); 

(vi) approved site sheds on the decks of a Type B hoarding being fully 
screened from the public place (Clause 3.9.5); 

(vii) material and equipment not being placed or stored on the deck of Type 
B hoardings, unless specifically approved by Council (Clause 3.9.4); 

(viii) providing and maintaining operational artificial lighting systems under 
Type B hoardings including at high-bay truck entry points (Clause 
3.9.9); and 

(ix) ensuring all required signage, artwork or historic images are provided 
and fully maintained to the City’s requirements (Clauses 3.4, 3.9.3, 
3.9.6, 3.9.8, 3.10.1 and 4.2). 

If it is proposed to operate a hoisting device including a building maintenance unit 
above a public road which swings, hoists material/equipment and/or slews/wind 
vanes any part of the device over the public road, a separate application under 
Section 68 of the Local Government Act 1993 and Sections 138/139 of the Roads 
Act 1993 must be made to Council to obtain approval. 

Note: 'Building maintenance unit' means a power-operated suspended platform 
and associated equipment on a building specifically designed to provide 
permanent access to the faces of the building for maintenance (Work Health and 
Safety Regulation 2017). 

(25) STORMWATER AND DRAINAGE - MINOR DEVELOPMENT  

The drainage system is to be constructed in accordance with Council's standard 

requirements as detailed in Council's 'Stormwater Drainage Connection 

Information' document dated July 2006. This information is available on Council's 

website - www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au.  

A Positive Covenant must be registered on the title for all drainage systems 

involving On-site Detention (OSD) to ensure maintenance of the approved OSD 

system regardless of the method of connection.  

35



 

 

(26) BARRICADE PERMIT  

Where construction/building works require the use of a public place including a 

road or footpath, approval under Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993 for a Barricade 

Permit is to be obtained from Council prior to the commencement of work.  Details 

of the barricade construction, area of enclosure and period of work are required to 

be submitted to the satisfaction of Council.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

36



 

 

SCHEDULE 1C 

DURING CONSTRUCTION/PRIOR TO OCCUPATION/COMPLETION 

(27) OCCUPATION CERTIFICATE TO BE SUBMITTED 

An Occupation Certificate must be obtained from the Principal Certifier and a copy 
submitted to Council prior to commencement of occupation or use of the whole or 
any part of a new building, an altered portion of, or an extension to an existing 
building. 

(28) HOURS OF WORK AND NOISE – OUTSIDE CBD 

The hours of construction and work on the development must be as follows: 

(a) All work, including building/demolition and excavation work, and activities in 
the vicinity of the site generating noise associated with preparation for the 
commencement of work (eg. loading and unloading of goods, transferring of 
tools etc) in connection with the proposed development must only be carried 
out between the hours of 7.30am and 5.30pm on Mondays to Fridays, 
inclusive, and 7.30am and 3.30pm on Saturdays, with safety inspections 
being permitted at 7.00am on work days, and no work must be carried out 
on Sundays or public holidays. 

(b) All work, including demolition, excavation and building work must comply 
with the City of Sydney Code of Practice for Construction Hours/Noise 1992 
and Australian Standard 2436 - 2010 Guide to Noise Control on 
Construction, Maintenance and Demolition Sites. 

(c) Notwithstanding the above, the use of a crane for special operations, 
including the delivery of materials, hoisting of plant and equipment and 
erection and dismantling of on site tower cranes which warrant the on-street 
use of mobile cranes outside of above hours can occur, subject to a permit 
being issued by Council under Section 68 of the Local Government Act 1993 
and/or Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993. 

Note: Works may be undertaken outside of hours, where it is required to avoid the 
loss of life, damage to property, to prevent environmental harm and/or to avoid 
structural damage to the building. Written approval must be given by the 
Construction Regulation Unit, prior to works proceeding 

The City of Sydney Code of Practice for Construction Hours/Noise 1992 allows 
extended working hours subject to the approval of an application in accordance 
with the Code and under Section 4.55 of the Environmental Planning and 
Assessment Act 1979. 

(29) ENCROACHMENTS – NEIGHBOURING PROPERTIES 

No portion of the proposed structure shall encroach onto the adjoining properties. 

37



 

 

(30) ENCROACHMENTS – PUBLIC WAY 

No portion of the proposed structure, including gates and doors during opening 
and closing operations, shall encroach upon Council’s footpath area. 

(31) LOADING AND UNLOADING DURING CONSTRUCTION 

The following requirements apply: 

(a) All loading and unloading associated with construction activity must be 
accommodated on site, where possible. 

(b) If, it is not feasible for loading and unloading to take place on site, a Works 
Zone on the street may be considered by Council. 

(c) A Works Zone may be required if loading and unloading is not possible on 
site. If a Works Zone is warranted an application must be made to Council 
at least 8 weeks prior to commencement of work on the site. An approval for 
a Works Zone may be given for a specific period and certain hours of the 
days to meet the particular need for the site for such facilities at various 
stages of construction. The approval will be reviewed periodically for any 
adjustment necessitated by the progress of the construction activities. 

(d) Where hoisting activity over the public place is proposed to be undertaken 
including hoisting from a Works Zone, a separate application under Section 
68 of the Local Government Act 1993 and Sections 138/139 of the Roads 
Act 1993 must be submitted to and approved by Council. 

 

 

38



 

 

SCHEDULE 2 

PRESCRIBED CONDITIONS 

The prescribed conditions in accordance with Division 8A of the Environmental 
Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000 apply: 

Clause 98  Compliance with Building Code of Australia and insurance requirements 
under the Home Building Act 1989 

Clause 98A Erection of signs 

Clause 98B Notification of Home Building Act 1989 requirements 

Clause 98C Conditions relating to entertainment venues 

Clause 98D Conditions relating to maximum capacity signage 

Clause 98E Conditions relating to shoring and adequacy of adjoining property 

Refer to the NSW State legislation for full text of the clauses under Division 8A of the 
Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000. This can be accessed at: 
http://www.legislation.nsw.gov.au 

39



Attachment B  

Selected Drawings 

 

 

 

 

40



PROJECT:

CLIENT:

PROJECT No:

ARCHITECT:

5590

SEATING ENCLOSURE - G07/52 WATERLOO STREET SURRY HILLS

CON & ANTONIA HARALAMBIS

ISSUE

J
O

B
 

N
o
.

PROJECT:

CLIENT:

5
5

9
0ARCHITECT:

NSW ARCHITECTS REG No. - 5773 DA - 
E: architects@candalepas.com.au

F: 02 9283 7477

T: 02 9283 7755
DRAWING No.

DRAWING:

C

D
ra

w
in
g
 

O
ri
g
in
a
l S
iz
e

A
2

FOR DA PURPOSES ONLY

CLARIFICATION PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK. 

FOR ARCHITECT THE TO DISCREPANCY ANY REPORT 

DIMENSIONS. FIGURED ONLY USE DRAWING. THIS SCALE NOT DO 

UNAUTHORISED USE OF THIS DRAWING IS PROHIBITED.

COMMISSIONED. WAS IT WHICH FOR PURPOSE THE 

FOR USED BE ONLY SHALL DRAWING  THIS LTD. PTY ASSOCIATES 

& CANDALEPAS ANGELO OF PROPERTY THE IS DOCUMENT THIS 

COPYRIGHT
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION CANDALEPAS

DATE:

CHECKED 1:

SCALE:

EP

DRAWN BY:

Is
s
u
e

D
a
te

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

309 SUSSEX ST

SYDNEY NSW 2000

ASSOCIATES 

EP

CHKD2/ APPD:

WATERLOO STREET SEATING ENCLOSURE

AV/EP

HARALAMBIS
CON & ANTONIA 

A
.

10
.0

3
.2

1
D

A
 
IS

S
U

E

A.

MARCH 2021

NTS

W
A

T
E

R
L

O
O
 

S
T

R
E

E
T

ADELAIDE STREET

DEVONSHIRE STREET

DRAWING SCHEDULE

COVERSHEET

CANDALEPAS

T: 9283 7755  F: 9283 7477

ASSOCIATES
309 SUSSEX ST

SYDNEY  NSW  2000

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION

1000

NORTH ELEVATION

SECTION & WEST ELEVATION

ROOF PLAN

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

SITEPLAN

COVER SHEET

DA-1301

DA-1201

DA-1102

DA-1101

DA-1050

DA-1000

41



ISSUE

J
O

B
 

N
o
.

PROJECT:

CLIENT:

5
5

9
0ARCHITECT:

NSW ARCHITECTS REG No. - 5773 DA - 
E: architects@candalepas.com.au

F: 02 9283 7477

T: 02 9283 7755
DRAWING No.

DRAWING:

C

D
ra

w
in
g
 

O
ri
g
in
a
l S
iz
e

A
2

FOR DA PURPOSES ONLY

CLARIFICATION PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK. 

FOR ARCHITECT THE TO DISCREPANCY ANY REPORT 

DIMENSIONS. FIGURED ONLY USE DRAWING. THIS SCALE NOT DO 

UNAUTHORISED USE OF THIS DRAWING IS PROHIBITED.

COMMISSIONED. WAS IT WHICH FOR PURPOSE THE 

FOR USED BE ONLY SHALL DRAWING  THIS LTD. PTY ASSOCIATES 

& CANDALEPAS ANGELO OF PROPERTY THE IS DOCUMENT THIS 

COPYRIGHT
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION CANDALEPAS

DATE:

CHECKED 1:

SCALE:

EP

DRAWN BY:

Is
s
u
e

D
a
te

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

N
O

R
T
H

309 SUSSEX ST

SYDNEY NSW 2000

ASSOCIATES 

EP

CHKD2/ APPD:

WATERLOO STREET SEATING ENCLOSURE

AS NOTED@A2

AV/EP

HARALAMBIS
CON & ANTONIA 

A
.

10
.0

3
.2

1
D

A
 
IS

S
U

E

A.

MARCH 2021

FH

RL. 40.60

RWO

RWO

RL. 42.55 RL. 42.55 RL. 42.75RL. 42.75 RL. 43.00

RL. 43.00

RL. 42.45

RL. 42.70

RL. 42.95

TOW. 43.90

 450 x 200
HYDRAULIC

 450 x 200
HYDRAULIC

 450 x 200
HYDRAULIC

 450 x 200
HYDRAULIC

RWO RWO RWO

TOW. 43.90

TOW. 43.20

TOW. 43.60

RWO

RWO

TOW. 43.90TOW. 43.20TOW. 43.60

TOW. 43.00

RL. 42.40

RL. 42.35

TOW. 43.00

TOW. 43.00

TOW. 43.90

FW

FW

FW

FW

RL. 40.90

FW

FW

RL. 40.90

T
IL

E
 
S

E
T

O
U

T
 
P

O
IN

T

T
IL

E
 
S

E
T

O
U

T
 
P

O
IN

T

T
IL

E
 
S

E
T

O
U

T
 
P

O
IN

T

T
IL

E
 
S

E
T

O
U

T
 
P

O
IN

T

T
IL

E
 
S

E
T

O
U

T
 
P

O
IN

T

T
IL

E
 
S

E
T

O
U

T
 
P

O
IN

T

T
IL

E
 
S

E
T

O
U

T
 
P

O
IN

T

RL. 40.45
RL. 40.617

RL. 43.05

RL. 43.10
RL. 43.10

FW FW
FW FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

DP

RL. 42.22 RL. 42.94 RL. 42.97

RL. 40.835

RL. 40.80

RL. 43.05 RL. 43.05

RL. 40.80

DP

RL 40.15

RL 40.15

RL 40.40

RL 40.40

DP

DP

DP

RL. 40.652

RL. 40.566

DP

DP DP

RL. 42.80 RL. 43.05RL. 43.05

RL. 43.03

1.
2.

RL. 42.45

FW

41
.3
6

1201

1201

1201

1201
1201

TOW. 43.50

TOW. 43.50

FALL

1101

SITE PLAN

- 1:200

01

W
 
 

A
 
 
T
 
 
E
 
 

R
 
 

L
 
 
O
 
 

O
 
 
 
 
 

S
 
 
T
 
 
R
 
 

E
 
 
E
 
 
T

A  D  E  L  A  I    D  E     S  T  R  E  E  T

SITE PLAN

ZONE OF APPLICATION

7/38 WATERLOO STREET

EXISTING REFURBISHED TENANCY

54-56 WATERLOO ST

1-25 ADELAIDE PLACE

EXISTING 38-52 WATERLOO ST.

42



ISSUE

J
O

B
 

N
o
.

PROJECT:

CLIENT:

5
5

9
0ARCHITECT:

NSW ARCHITECTS REG No. - 5773 DA - 
E: architects@candalepas.com.au

F: 02 9283 7477

T: 02 9283 7755
DRAWING No.

DRAWING:

C

D
ra

w
in
g
 

O
ri
g
in
a
l S
iz
e

A
2

FOR DA PURPOSES ONLY

CLARIFICATION PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK. 

FOR ARCHITECT THE TO DISCREPANCY ANY REPORT 

DIMENSIONS. FIGURED ONLY USE DRAWING. THIS SCALE NOT DO 

UNAUTHORISED USE OF THIS DRAWING IS PROHIBITED.

COMMISSIONED. WAS IT WHICH FOR PURPOSE THE 

FOR USED BE ONLY SHALL DRAWING  THIS LTD. PTY ASSOCIATES 

& CANDALEPAS ANGELO OF PROPERTY THE IS DOCUMENT THIS 

COPYRIGHT
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION CANDALEPAS

DATE:

CHECKED 1:

SCALE:

EP

DRAWN BY:

Is
s
u
e

D
a
te

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

N
O

R
T
H

309 SUSSEX ST

SYDNEY NSW 2000

ASSOCIATES 

EP

CHKD2/ APPD:

WATERLOO STREET SEATING ENCLOSURE

AS NOTED@A2

AV/EP

HARALAMBIS
CON & ANTONIA 

A
.

10
.0

3
.2

1
D

A
 
IS

S
U

E

A.

MARCH 2021

RL. 42.40

RL. 42.22

41
.3
6

EX RL. 41.26

EX RL. 40.835

EX RL. 40.835

EX RL. 42.02

EX RL. 41.83

EX RL. 40.81

FFL 40.875

B
O

U
N

D
A

R
Y

BOUNDARY

FFL 42.60

1101

1201
01

FLOOR PLAN
GROUND 

- 1:100

01 GROUND FLOOR PLAN

EXISTING BENCH

W
 
 

A
 
 
T
 
 
E
 
 

R
 
 

L
 
 
O
 
 

O
 
 
 
 
 

S
 
 
T
 
 
R
 
 

E
 
 
E
 
 
T

ENCLOSURE

UNDER HYDRANT BOOSTER 

EXISTING GAS REGULATOR 

A  D  E  L  A  I    D  E     S  T  R  E  E  T

TO BE RETAINED

EXISTING PAVED SURFACE 

STAIR

ENTRANCE

EXISTING 

8/38 WATERLOO STREET

EXISTING TENANCY

STREET

5-6/52 WATERLOO 

EXISTING TENANCY

ZONE OF APPLICATION

FOLDING DOORS

7/38 WATERLOO STREET

EXISTING REFURBISHED TENANCY

NEW PIZZA OVEN

43



S
IT

E
 

B
O

U
N

D
A

R
Y

RL.43.90

SITE BOUNDARY

S
IT

E
 

B
O

U
N

D
A

R
Y

S
IT

E
 

B
O

U
N

D
A

R
Y

ISSUE

J
O

B
 

N
o
.

PROJECT:

CLIENT:

5
5

9
0ARCHITECT:

NSW ARCHITECTS REG No. - 5773 DA - 
E: architects@candalepas.com.au

F: 02 9283 7477

T: 02 9283 7755
DRAWING No.

DRAWING:

C

D
ra

w
in
g
 

O
ri
g
in
a
l S
iz
e

A
2

FOR DA PURPOSES ONLY

CLARIFICATION PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK. 

FOR ARCHITECT THE TO DISCREPANCY ANY REPORT 

DIMENSIONS. FIGURED ONLY USE DRAWING. THIS SCALE NOT DO 

UNAUTHORISED USE OF THIS DRAWING IS PROHIBITED.

COMMISSIONED. WAS IT WHICH FOR PURPOSE THE 

FOR USED BE ONLY SHALL DRAWING  THIS LTD. PTY ASSOCIATES 

& CANDALEPAS ANGELO OF PROPERTY THE IS DOCUMENT THIS 

COPYRIGHT
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION CANDALEPAS

DATE:

CHECKED 1:

SCALE:

EP

DRAWN BY:

Is
s
u
e

D
a
te

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

N
O

R
T
H

309 SUSSEX ST

SYDNEY NSW 2000

ASSOCIATES 

EP

CHKD2/ APPD:

WATERLOO STREET SEATING ENCLOSURE

AS NOTED@A2

AV/EP

HARALAMBIS
CON & ANTONIA 

A
.

10
.0

3
.2

1
D

A
 
IS

S
U

E

A.

MARCH 2021

RL. 42.40

TOW 43.90

1102

1201
01

ROOF PLAN

- 1:100

ROOF PLAN

W
 
 

A
 
 
T
 
 
E
 
 

R
 
 

L
 
 
O
 
 

O
 
 
 
 
 

S
 
 
T
 
 
R
 
 

E
 
 
E
 
 
T

A  D  E  L  A  I    D  E     S  T  R  E  E  T

EXTENT OF EXISTIN
G BUILDI

NG OVER

- 1:100

01

8/38 WATERLOO STREET

EXISTING TENANCY

STREET

5-6/52 WATERLOO 

EXISTING TENANCY

ZONE OF APPLICATION

S
K

Y
L
IG

H
T

S
K

Y
L
IG

H
T

S
K

Y
L
IG

H
T

S
K

Y
L
IG

H
T

7/38 WATERLOO STREET

EXISTING REFURBISHED TENANCY

SKYLIGHTS IN ROOF.

OPERABLE GLAZED 

LOW PITCHED ROOF
DOMAINS. 

PUBLIC OR PRIVATE 

NOT BE VISIBLE FROM 

REQS. DOWN PIPES TO 

SYSTEM TO HYD ENG'S 

BUILDING STORMWATER 

CONNECTED TO EXISTING 

CONCEALED AND 

ROOF DRAINAGE TO BE 

44



S
IT

E
 

B
O

U
N

D
A

R
Y

E

ISSUE

J
O

B
 

N
o
.

PROJECT:

CLIENT:

5
5

9
0ARCHITECT:

NSW ARCHITECTS REG No. - 5773 DA - 
E: architects@candalepas.com.au

F: 02 9283 7477

T: 02 9283 7755
DRAWING No.

DRAWING:

C

D
ra

w
in
g
 

O
ri
g
in
a
l S
iz
e

A
2

FOR DA PURPOSES ONLY

CLARIFICATION PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK. 

FOR ARCHITECT THE TO DISCREPANCY ANY REPORT 

DIMENSIONS. FIGURED ONLY USE DRAWING. THIS SCALE NOT DO 

UNAUTHORISED USE OF THIS DRAWING IS PROHIBITED.

COMMISSIONED. WAS IT WHICH FOR PURPOSE THE 

FOR USED BE ONLY SHALL DRAWING  THIS LTD. PTY ASSOCIATES 

& CANDALEPAS ANGELO OF PROPERTY THE IS DOCUMENT THIS 

COPYRIGHT
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION CANDALEPAS

DATE:

CHECKED 1:

SCALE:

EP

DRAWN BY:

Is
s
u
e

D
a
te

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

309 SUSSEX ST

SYDNEY NSW 2000

ASSOCIATES 

EP

CHKD2/ APPD:

WATERLOO STREET SEATING ENCLOSURE

AS NOTED@A2

AV/EP

HARALAMBIS
CON & ANTONIA 

A
.

10
.0

3
.2

1
D

A
 
IS

S
U

E

A.

MARCH 2021

GROUND

EX RL 40.835

SILL HEIGHT

RL 42.115

PARAPET

RL 43.90

GROUND

EX RL 40.835

SILL HEIGHT

RL 42.115

PARAPET

RL 43.90

RL 43.44

T/P BOOSTER

1201

WEST ELEVATION
SECTION &

- 1:100

01

- 1:100

02

ZONE OF NEW WORK

WEST ELEVATION

ZONE OF NEW WORK

38-52 WATERLOO ST

EXISTING BUILDING

SECTION

CEILING LINING

(PERFORATED) 

ABSORPTIVE 

ACOUSTICALLY 

OPERABLE SKYLIGHT.

45



S
IT

E
 

B
O

U
N

D
A

R
Y

ISSUE

J
O

B
 

N
o
.

PROJECT:

CLIENT:

5
5

9
0ARCHITECT:

NSW ARCHITECTS REG No. - 5773 DA - 
E: architects@candalepas.com.au

F: 02 9283 7477

T: 02 9283 7755
DRAWING No.

DRAWING:

C

D
ra

w
in
g
 

O
ri
g
in
a
l S
iz
e

A
2

FOR DA PURPOSES ONLY

CLARIFICATION PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK. 

FOR ARCHITECT THE TO DISCREPANCY ANY REPORT 

DIMENSIONS. FIGURED ONLY USE DRAWING. THIS SCALE NOT DO 

UNAUTHORISED USE OF THIS DRAWING IS PROHIBITED.

COMMISSIONED. WAS IT WHICH FOR PURPOSE THE 

FOR USED BE ONLY SHALL DRAWING  THIS LTD. PTY ASSOCIATES 

& CANDALEPAS ANGELO OF PROPERTY THE IS DOCUMENT THIS 

COPYRIGHT
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION CANDALEPAS

DATE:

CHECKED 1:

SCALE:

EP

DRAWN BY:

Is
s
u
e

D
a
te

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

309 SUSSEX ST

SYDNEY NSW 2000

ASSOCIATES 

EP

CHKD2/ APPD:

WATERLOO STREET SEATING ENCLOSURE

AS NOTED@A2

AV/EP

HARALAMBIS
CON & ANTONIA 

A
.

10
.0

3
.2

1
D

A
 
IS

S
U

E

A.

MARCH 2021

GROUND

EX RL 40.835

SILL HEIGHT

RL 42.115

PARAPET

RL 43.90

GROUND

EX RL 40.835

SILL HEIGHT

RL 42.115

PARAPET

RL 43.90
T/P BOOSTER

1301

ELEVATION
NORTH 

- 1:100

01 NORTH ELEVATION

BOOSTER ENCLOSURE

EXISTING HYDRANT 

FOOT PATH

ZONE OF NEW WORK

ENTRANCE STAIR

EXISTING 

CLADDING

ZINC 

PREFINISHED 

46



Attachment C 

Clause 4.6 Variation Request – Floor Space 
Ratio  

 

 

 

 

47



 

SJB Planning 
  

 

  1 / 8 

L2/490 Crown St, Surry Hills 
Sydney NSW 2010 

planning@sjb.com.au 
sjb.com.au 

T 
 

61 2 9380 9911 
 

SJB Planning (NSW) Pty Ltd  ACN 112 509 501 
 

89
45

B
_5

_C
la

us
e 

4.
6 

S
ta

te
m

en
t_

FS
R

_F
in

al
_2

10
60

2 

Clause 4.6 – Exceptions to Development Standards 
Request to Vary Clause 4.4 – Floor Space Ratio 
 
Address: 52 Waterloo Street, Surry Hills 
 
Proposal: External alterations and additions to an existing retail unit (Tenancy G07) 
 
Date: 02 June 2021 
 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
This is a written request to seek an exception to a development standard pursuant to Clause 4.6 – 
Exceptions to Development Standards of the Waverley Local Environmental Plan (WLEP) 2012. The 
development standard for which the variation is sought is Clause 4.4 – Floor Space Ratio under SLEP 2012. 
 
2.0 Description of the planning instrument, development standard and proposed variation 
 
2.1 What is the name of the environmental planning instrument that applies to the land? 
 
The Sydney Local Environmental Plan (SLEP) 2012. 
 
2.2 What is the zoning of the land? 
 
The land is zoned B4 Mixed Use. 
 
2.3 What are the Objectives of the zone? 
 
The objectives of the zone are: 

 To provide a mixture of compatible land uses; 

 To integrate suitable business, office, residential, retail and other development in accessible locations 
so as to maximise public transport patronage and encourage walking and cycling; and 

 To ensure uses support the viability of centres. 

 
2.4 What is the development standard being varied?  
 
The development standard being varied is the ‘Floor Space Ratio’ development standard. 
 
2.5 Is the development standard a performance based control?  
 
No. The Floor Space Ratio development standard is a numeric control. 
 
2.6 Under what Clause is the development standard listed in the environmental planning 

instrument? 
 

The development standard is listed under Clause 4.4 of SLEP 2012. 
 
  

48



 

SJB Planning 
2 / 8 

SJB Planning (NSW) Pty Ltd  ACN 112 509 501 
 

89
45

B
_5

_C
la

us
e 

4.
6 

S
ta

te
m

en
t_

FS
R

_F
in

al
_2

10
60

2 

2.7 What are the objectives of the development standard? 
 
The objectives of the FSR development standard are contained in Subclause 4.4(1)(a)-(d), and are: 

“(a) to provide sufficient floor space to meet anticipated development needs for the foreseeable 
future, 

(b) to regulate the density of development, built form and land use intensity and to control the 
generation of vehicle and pedestrian traffic, 

(c) to provide for an intensity of development that is commensurate with the capacity of existing and 
planned infrastructure, 

(d) to ensure that new development reflects the desired character of the locality in which it is located 
and minimises adverse impacts on the amenity of that locality.” 

 
2.8 What is the numeric value of the development standard in the environmental planning 

instrument? 
 
Clause 4.4 establishes a maximum FSR of 2.5:1 for the site, as illustrated in the extract of the Floor Space 
Ratio Map included in Figure 1 below. 
 

Figure 1: Extract of SLEP 2012 Floor Space Ratio Map (site outlined in blue) 

 
2.9 What is the proposed numeric value of the development standard in the development 

application? 
 
The proposed development involves a minor addition of 36 m2 of Gross Floor Area (GFA) to the existing and 
approved building on the site (i.e. 0.71% increase in GFA).  
 
The existing and approved building on the site has a GFA of 5064.1 m2 and resultant FSR of 3.03:1 (as 
approved under DA/2006/1083/G). The proposal will result in a total FSR of 3.05:1, which equates to an 
increase of 0.02:1. 
 
2.10 What is the percentage variation (between the proposal and the environmental planning 

instrument)? 
 
By virtue of the fact that the existing building on the site exceeds the FSR standard by 21% (as approved 
under DA/2006/1083G), the proposal will result in a total variation of 22% (i.e. a minor increase of 0.71%). 
 
  

The Site 

49



 

SJB Planning 
3 / 8 

SJB Planning (NSW) Pty Ltd  ACN 112 509 501 
 

89
45

B
_5

_C
la

us
e 

4.
6 

S
ta

te
m

en
t_

FS
R

_F
in

al
_2

10
60

2 

3.0 Assessment of the Proposed Variation 
 
3.1 Overview 
 
Clause 4.6 Exceptions to Development Standards establishes the framework for varying development 
standards applying under a local environmental plan.  
 
Objectives to Clause 4.6 at 4.6(1) are as follows: 

“(a) to provide an appropriate degree of flexibility in applying certain development standards to 
particular development, 

(b) to achieve better outcomes for and from development by allowing flexibility in particular 
circumstances.” 

 
Clause 4.6(3)(a) and 4.6(3)(b) require that a consent authority must not grant consent to a development 
that contravenes a development standard unless a written request has been received from the applicant 
that seeks to justify the contravention of the standard by demonstrating that: 

“(a) that compliance with the development standard is unreasonable or unnecessary in the 
circumstances of the case, and 

(b) that there are sufficient environmental planning grounds to justify contravening the development 
standard.” 

 
Clause 4.6(4)(a)(i) and (ii) require that development consent must not be granted to a development that 
contravenes a development standard unless: 

“(a) the consent authority is satisfied that: 

(i) the applicant’s written request has adequately addressed the matters required to be 
demonstrated by subclause (3), and 

(ii) the proposed development will be in the public interest because it is consistent with the 
objectives of the particular standard and the objectives for development within the zone in 
which the development is proposed to be carried out.” 

 
Clause 4.6(4)(b) requires that the concurrence of the Secretary be obtained, and Clause 4.6(5) requires 
the Secretary in deciding whether to grant concurrence must consider:  

“(a) whether contravention of the development standard raises any matter of significance for State or 
regional environmental planning; 

(b) the public benefit of maintaining the development standard; and 

(c) any other matters required to be taken into consideration by the Secretary before granting 
concurrence.” 

 
This application has been prepared in accordance with the NSW Department of Planning, Infrastructure 
and Environment (DPI&E) guideline Varying Development Standards: A Guide, August 2001, and has 
incorporated as relevant principles identified in the following judgements: 

 Winten Property Group Limited v North Sydney Council [2001] NSWLEC 46; 

 Wehbe v Pittwater Council [2007] NSWLEC 827; 

 Four2Five Pty Ltd v Ashfield Council [2015] NSWLEC 1009 (‘Four2Five No 1’); 

 Four2Five Pty Ltd v Ashfield Council [2015] NSWLEC 90 (‘Four2Five No 2’); 

 Four2Five Pty Ltd v Ashfield Council [2015] NSWLEC 248 (‘Four2Five No 3’);  

 Micaul Holdings Pty Limited v Randwick City Council (2015) NSWLEC 1386;  

 Randwick City Council v Micaul Holdings Pty Ltd (2016) NSW LEC7; 

50



 

SJB Planning 
4 / 8 

SJB Planning (NSW) Pty Ltd  ACN 112 509 501 
 

89
45

B
_5

_C
la

us
e 

4.
6 

S
ta

te
m

en
t_

FS
R

_F
in

al
_2

10
60

2 

 Initial Action Pty Ltd v Woollahra Municipal Council [2018] NSWLEC 118; 

 RebelMH Neutral Bay v North Sydney Council [2019] NSWCA 130; 

 Baron Corporation v The Council of the City of Sydney [2019] NSWLEC 61; and 

 Al Maha Pty Ltd v Huajun Investments Pty Ltd [2018] NSWCA 245. 

 
3.2 Is compliance with the development standard unreasonable or unnecessary in the 

circumstances of the case? 
 
3.2.1 Is a development which complies with the standard unreasonable or unnecessary in the 

circumstances of the case?  
 
A development that strictly complies with the FSR standard is unreasonable or unnecessary in this 
circumstance for the following reasons: 

 The existing building on the site has a GFA of 5064.1 m2 and resultant FSR of 3.03:1, which exceeds 
the FSR standard by 21% (as approved under DA/2006/1083/G); 

 The proposed increase to GFA is a direct result of the proposed alterations and additions of 36 m2 to 
an area that was previously excluded from GFA (i.e. outdoor dining area);  

 The proposal will not affect the maximum building height of the existing mixed use building on the site. 
The structure is similar in height and scale to the existing hydrant booster enclosure situated adjacent 
to the location of proposed works; and 

 The proposal remains consistent with the objectives of the FSR standard outlined in Subclause 4.4(1) 
despite the non-compliance, as demonstrated below: 

 
(a) to provide sufficient floor space to meet anticipated development needs for the foreseeable future 

− The proposal has no effect on the ability for floor space to be accommodated on the subject site to 
meet the future development needs of the City of Sydney LGA. 

 
(b) to regulate the density of development, built form and land use intensity and to control the 
generation of vehicle and pedestrian traffic 

− The proposed increase to GFA is a direct result of alterations and additions to an area that was 
previously excluded from GFA (i.e. outdoor dining area). Accordingly, the proposal does not 
significantly increase the density of the existing mixed use building on the site;  

− Noting the minor scale of proposed works, the predominant built form of the existing building will 
largely remain unaltered by the proposal. No change is proposed to the existing maximum building 
height; and 

− Given that no change is proposed to the operating hours or patron capacity of Tenancy G07, the 
development will not result in any intensification of uses or increased vehicular/pedestrian traffic at 
the site. 

 
(c) to provide for an intensity of development that is commensurate with the capacity of existing and 
planned infrastructure 

− Noting that no change is proposed to the operating hours or patron capacity of Tenancy G07, the 
development will not result in any intensification of uses at the site. As such, the proposal will not 
generate any additional infrastructure demand. 

 
(d) to ensure that new development reflects the desired character of the locality in which it is located 
and minimises adverse impacts on the amenity of that locality 

51



 

SJB Planning 
5 / 8 

SJB Planning (NSW) Pty Ltd  ACN 112 509 501 
 

89
45

B
_5

_C
la

us
e 

4.
6 

S
ta

te
m

en
t_

FS
R

_F
in

al
_2

10
60

2 

− The overall scale of the development as proposed, is commensurate with the scale of the existing 
mixed use building at the site. Therefore, existing privacy, solar access, and view impacts will 
largely remain unaltered; and  

− Notwithstanding the non-compliance with the FSR standard, the proposed development has had 
regard to, and respects the amenity and character of neighbouring properties and the surrounding 
locality. 

 
3.2.2 Would the underlying objective or purpose be defeated or thwarted if compliance was 

required? 
 
The underlying objective or purpose of the development standard would not be defeated or thwarted if 
compliance was required. 
 
3.2.3 Has the development standard been virtually abandoned or destroyed by the Council’s own 

actions in departing from the standard?  
 
The development standard has not been abandoned. 
 
3.2.4 Is the zoning of the land unreasonable or inappropriate? 
 
The zoning of the land is reasonable and appropriate given the site’s location, which has a history of mixed 
use (i.e. retail, commercial, and residential) development. 
 
3.3 Are there sufficient environmental planning grounds to justify contravening the 

development standard? 
 
It is considered that there are sufficient environmental planning grounds to justify contravening the 
development standard, being:  

 The existing building on the site has a GFA of 5064.1 m2 and resultant FSR of 3.03:1, which exceeds 
the FSR standard by 21% (as approved under DA/2006/1083/G);  

 The proposed increase to GFA of 36 m2 is a direct result of the proposed alterations and additions to 
an area that was previously excluded from GFA (i.e. outdoor dining area); 

 The proposed new structure is a minor addition to the site and is consistent with the bulk and scale of 
the existing building. The single storey structure is in part nestled below the street level and is similar in 
height and scale to the existing hydrant booster enclosure located adjacent to the site of proposed works; 

 The proposed structure includes a flat roof and will appear ‘sunken’ when viewed from Adelaide Street 
(to the north) and Waterloo Street (to the north-west) due to the significantly lower finished floor level of 
the existing outdoor dining area compared to the level of the Adelaide Street footpath. Further, the 
proposed materials provide a high level of transparency to the structure, which will minimise its 
perceived bulk; 

 The external materials and finishes (i.e. glazed bi-fold doors, aluminium framing, sliding glazed windows, 
prefinished zinc cladding, and metal finishes) of the proposed structure are consistent with that of the 
existing building on the site and are sympathetic to the architectural design and character of the locality; 

 Noting that no change is proposed to the operating hours or patron capacity of Tenancy G07, the 
proposal will not result in any intensification of uses at the site or any change to existing traffic and 
parking arrangements; 

 The proposal maintains the significance of the Little Riley Street Heritage Conservation Area. The 
proposed works involve minor alterations to an existing contemporary building and will have no adverse 
impact on the fabric, setting, or view corridors of nearby Heritage Items;  

 Noting the minor scale of proposed works, the proposal does not give rise to any significant 
adverse amenity impacts to surrounding commercial and residential properties with regard to 
overshadowing, visual and acoustic privacy, bulk and scale, or view loss;  

52



 

SJB Planning 
6 / 8 

SJB Planning (NSW) Pty Ltd  ACN 112 509 501 
 

89
45

B
_5

_C
la

us
e 

4.
6 

S
ta

te
m

en
t_

FS
R

_F
in

al
_2

10
60

2 

 The proposed development is similar to the development approved under DA/2012/278 for an 
enclosure to part of the outdoor dining area of Tenancy G07 (i.e. the same structure in the same 
location), but which was not constructed. Specifically, the resultant GFA of the proposal is 
commensurate with the GFA as approved under DA/2012/278; and 

 The proposed development is consistent with the existing and desired scale, design, and character of 
surrounding development and the streetscape. 

 
3.4 Is the proposed development in the public interest because it is consistent with the 

objectives of the particular standard and the objectives for development in the zone? 
 
3.4.1 Objectives of the FSR standard 
 
As demonstrated at Part 3.2.1 of this Statement, the proposal remains consistent with the objectives of the 
FSR standard outlined in Subclause 4.4(1) despite the non-compliance. 
 
3.4.2 Objectives of the zone 
 
The proposal remains consistent with the objectives of the B4 Mixed Use zone, despite the non-compliance 
with the FSR control as demonstrated in the assessment of the objectives below. 
 

“To provide a mixture of compatible land uses.” 
 
The proposal does not involve any change to the approved retail, commercial, and residential uses at the site.  
 

“To integrate suitable business, office, residential, retail and other development in accessible locations 
so as to maximise public transport patronage and encourage walking and cycling.” 

 
The proposal does not involve any change to the approved retail, commercial, and residential uses at the site, 
which is located in close proximity to a range of public transport options. 
 

“To ensure uses support the viability of centres.” 
 

The proposal seeks to improve the amenity of the outdoor dining area of an existing restaurant, in terms of 
climate control, weather protection, and noise mitigation. This will assist in the ongoing economic success of 
the restaurant, which in turn, will support the viability of the wider Surry Hills mixed use centre.  
 
The proposal will also improve the relationship between the subject site and the public domain and therefore 
contribute to a viable and vibrant centre. The proposed new structure will provide a physical separation 
between the restaurant dining area and the public domain yet will maintain a visual connection by way of the 
proposed translucent and operable window and door openings. 
 
3.5 Whether contravention of the development stand raises any matter of significance for the 

State or regional environmental planning? 
 
The contravention is a local matter and does not raise any matter of state or regional significance. Council 
can assume the Secretary’s concurrence under Planning Circular PS 18-003 issued on 21 February 
2018. 
 
3.6 How would strict compliance hinder the attainment of the objects specified in Section 1.3 

(a), (b) and (c) of the Act? 
 
The objects specified in Section 1.3 (a), (b), and (c) are as follows: 
 

53



 

SJB Planning 
7 / 8 

SJB Planning (NSW) Pty Ltd  ACN 112 509 501 
 

89
45

B
_5

_C
la

us
e 

4.
6 

S
ta

te
m

en
t_

FS
R

_F
in

al
_2

10
60

2 

Objective Comment 

(a) to promote the social and economic 
welfare of the community and a better 
environment by the proper management, 
development and conservation of the 
State’s natural and other resources, 

The proposal will promote the social and economic 
welfare of the site and wider Surry Hills locality. The 
proposed additions will facilitate an efficient and practical 
use of an existing and well-designed mixed use building 
situated in a prominent and desirable location.  

(b) to facilitate ecologically sustainable 
development by integrating relevant 
economic, environmental and social 
considerations in decision-making about 
environmental planning and assessment, 

The proposal demonstrates ecologically sustainable 
development. The proposed operable bi-fold doors, 
windows, and skylights will act as a means of passive 
heating and cooling and will provide weather control (i.e. 
shading and rain protection), as well as natural ventilation. 

(c) to promote the orderly and economic use 
of land, 

The proposal maintains the approved retail uses (i.e. 
food and drink premises) at the site.  

Table 1: EP&A Act 1979 – Section 1.3 objectives compliance assessment 

 
3.7 Is there public benefit in maintaining the development standard? 
 
Generally, there is public benefit in maintaining standards. However, there is also public benefit in 
maintaining a degree of flexibility in specific circumstances.  
 
In this case, a non-compliance currently exists, and no public benefit would accrue in the circumstances 
of requiring strict numerical compliance with the FSR development standard. 
 
3.8 Is the objection well founded? 
 
Yes, the proposal is consistent with the objectives of the B4 Mixed Use zone and the FSR development 
standard. It is considered that the objection is well founded in this instance and that granting an exception to 
the development can be supported in the circumstances of the case. 
 
4.0 Conclusion 
 
The proposed variation is based on the reasons contained within this formal request for an exception to the 
Floor Space Ratio standard. 
 
The proposal accords with the stated objectives for the B4 Mixed Use zone and the Floor Space Ratio 
development standard (Clause 4.4). The proposal is consistent with surrounding mixed use development and 
will have a positive amenity outcome for restaurant patrons and surrounding commercial and residential 
properties. As such, it is considered that the proposal is consistent with the planning purposes for the area.  
 
Noting the minor nature of the proposed works, the additional FSR does not contribute to significant adverse 
amenity impacts by way of bulk and scale, overshadowing, acoustic and visual privacy impacts, or view loss. 
The proposal maintains an appropriate built form on the site and does not result in a structure that is out of 
proportion or scale with surrounding development. The external building materials of the proposed 
structure are consistent with that of the existing mixed use building on the site, and are sympathetic to 
the design of surrounding development. 
 
A development strictly complying with the numerical FSR standard would not significantly improve the 
amenity of surrounding land uses. In fact, the proposed enclosure of the dining area seeks to mitigate 
acoustic spill from that part of the site and provide improved climate control and shading. In the context of 
the locality, it would be unreasonable for strict compliance to be enforced. 
 
The non-compliance is not considered to result in any precedents for future development within the locality or 
broader LGA, given the site circumstances and surrounding pattern of development. 

54



 

SJB Planning 
8 / 8 

SJB Planning (NSW) Pty Ltd  ACN 112 509 501 
 

89
45

B
_5

_C
la

us
e 

4.
6 

S
ta

te
m

en
t_

FS
R

_F
in

al
_2

10
60

2 

 
As demonstrated in this submission, it would be unreasonable for strict compliance with the FSR control to 
be enforced. It is concluded that the variation to the FSR development standard is well founded as 
compliance with the standard is both unnecessary and unreasonable in the circumstances of this case. 

55



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

Development Application: 15-17 William Street, Alexandria - D/2020/1059 

File No.: D/2020/1059 

Summary 

Date of Submission: The application was lodged on 19 October 2020.  

Applicant: David Findlay 

Architect: Derek Raithby Architecture 

Owner: Balglen Pty Ltd.  

Planning Consultant: ABC Planning 

DAPRS: 2 February 2021 

Cost of Works: $8,814,325 

Zoning: The proposed multi-dwelling houses are permissible with 
consent within the B4 Mixed Use Zone.  

Proposal Summary: The proposal involves the demolition of an existing 
warehouse.  It is intended to excavate and remediate the 
site and to construct 14 x terrace style, 3-4 storey multi 
dwelling houses.  Torrens Title (stratum) subdivision of the 
site is proposed.  

The applicant has made a public benefit offer in order to 
provide community infrastructure contribution as required 
under Clause 6.14 of the Sydney Local Environmental 
Plan 2012 (SLEP2012). Consequently, the application is 
required to be determined by the Local Planning Panel. 
This is in accordance with the Local Planning Panels 
Direction - Development Applications, dated 30 June 2020. 

The applicant has made a public benefit offer to provide a 
monetary contribution towards Green Square community 
infrastructure.   

 

 

1

Item 4.



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

 In accordance with Clause 6.14 of SLEP2012, the 
contribution (if accepted) allows for an additional FSR 
provision of 0.5:1 and a total FSR of 1.5:1 (GFA: 
1,651.5sqm). 

The proposal has an FSR of 1.55:1 and exceeds the 
relevant SLEP2012 development standards. A request to 
vary the FSR development standard has been made 
pursuant to Clause 4.6 of the Sydney LEP 2012.The 
written request to vary the standard significantly 
understates the GFA that is proposed and does not 
demonstrate that compliance with the development 
standard is unreasonable or unnecessary in the 
circumstances of the case. The written request fails to 
demonstrate that there are sufficient environmental 
planning grounds to justify contravening the development 
standard. The proposal falls within the 15m height control 
established at Clause 4.3 of SLEP2012. 

The application was notified for 21 days, in accordance 
with Council's Community Participation Plan. Two 
submissions were received objecting to the proposal. 
Issues raised include excessive building scale, visual 
privacy and solar access. 

The application fails to satisfy FSR standards and fails to 
achieve design excellence by providing poor design and 
amenity outcomes.  The proposal fails to provide sufficient 
separation distance between the rear of terraces and 
consequently fails to provide adequate outlook or privacy.  
The high density of the development also results in poorly 
planned landscaped areas and insufficient deep soil areas.  
Consequently, the application is recommended for refusal. 

Summary Recommendation: This proposal is recommended for refusal. 

  

2



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

Development Controls: (i) Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 
and Regulation 2000; 

(ii) State Environmental Planning Policy No 55—
Remediation of Land; 

(iii) State Environmental Planning Policy (Infrastructure) 
2007; 

(iv) State Environmental Planning Policy (BASIX) 2004; 

(v) Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 (Gazetted 14  
December 2012, as amended); 

(vi) Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 (in force on 
14 December 2012, as amended); and 

(vii) City of Sydney Development Contributions Plan 
2015. 

Attachments: A. Selected Drawings 

B. Clause 4.6 Variation Request - Floor Space Ratio 

  

3



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

Recommendation 

It is resolved that consent be refused for Development Application No. D/2020/1059 for the 
following reasons: 

(A) The applicant has failed to provide documents to demonstrate that the proposed 
change of land use will not increase the risk to health given a more sensitive land use 
is proposed. As such, the proposal fails to satisfy the provisions of the State 
Environmental Planning Policy (SEPP) No 55. 

(B) The proposed development provides poor amenity for its intended future occupants 
and to the occupants of neighbouring buildings, and fails to satisfy key Aims at 
Clauses 1.2(h) and 1.2(j) of the Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012, that are to 
protect the amenity and quality of life of the local community, provide a high quality 
urban form and design excellence and to reflect the desired future character of the 
locality. 

(C) The applicant has failed to provide a written statement that is satisfactory in 
addressing the provisions of Clause 4.6 of the Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 
with regard for the non-compliance with the floor space ratio development standard 
prescribed under Clause 4.4 of the Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012. 

(D) The application fails to satisfy the relevant Green Square Community Infrastructure 
provisions under Clause 6.14 of the Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012.  In 
particular the proposal fails to satisfy key objective 6.14(1)(b) as the proposal does not 
reflect the desired character of the locality and fails to minimise adverse impacts on 
the amenity of the locality. In failing to satisfy the objective of the clause, the land is 
not eligible for an amount of additional floor space in accordance with Clause 6.14(4) 
of the Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012. 

(E) Having considered the matters in 6.21(4), the building fails to meet the minimum 
standards required to demonstrate design excellence. In particular, the proposal fails 
to provide high residential amenity for its intended future occupants and to the 
occupants of neighbouring buildings and fails to provide suitable building bulk, 
massing and modulation and fails to provide excellence and integration of landscape 
design.  

(F) The proposed development exceeds the development standard for the maximum 
number of car parking spaces set out at Clause 7.5 of Sydney Local Environmental 
Plan 2012.  

(G) The applicant has failed to provide a requested Stormwater Concept Design, and as 
such, fails to satisfy the provisions of part 3.7.2 of Sydney Development Control Plan 
2012 in relation to demonstrating how the development connects to the downstream 
drainage system. 

(H) The proposed development fails to satisfy a key design principle of the Beaconsfield 
locality, which is to provide a high quality built form in the southern area.  The 
application fails to satisfy the provisions of part 2.5.2 of Sydney Development Control 
Plan 2012. 

4



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

(I) The proposal fails to provide adequate deep soil areas and adequate depth and 
volume to landscape planters and fails to satisfy the Sydney Landscape Code. The 
application fails to satisfy the provisions or parts 3.5.2 and 4.1.3.4 of Sydney 
Development Control Plan 2012 in relation to Urban Vegetation and in relation to Deep 
Soil Planting. 

(J) The proposal is not in keeping with the desired future character of the area, in 
accordance with section 2.5.2 of Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 and is not 
considered to be in the public interest.  

  

5



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

Background 

The Site and Surrounding Development 

1. The site has a legal description of Lot 2 DP 559934, known as 15-17 William Street, 
Alexandria. The site is rectangular in shape with area of approximately 1,101sqm. The 
site has a primary street frontage of 35.7m to William Street and a secondary street 
frontage of 36.2m to William Lane. The site falls from William Street towards William 
Lane with a levels difference of approximately 2.8m.  

2. The site contains a single storey warehouse at William Street.  Due to the difference in 
the topography, the warehouse is a 2 storey building at William Lane.  

3. The site is located within a precinct with a transitional urban character. The site is 
located within a row of properties on the western side of William Street bordered by 
Reserve Street to the north and Collins Street to the south.  The subject site is the final 
'remnant' commercial /industrial building  on the western side of the street block to be 
converted to residential uses.  

4. There are commercial warehouses located to the north-east of the site on the opposite 
side of William Street and to the south-east of the site at Collins Street.  

5. At the northern boundary are located 6 x multi-dwelling townhouses that are on Strata 
Title (11-13 William Street - Figure 4). Further to the north, at the corner of Reserve 
Street, is located a mixed use development containing residential apartments and 
multi-dwelling houses (1-9A William Street - Figures 5); 

6. At the southern boundary at 19A-19F William Street are located 6 x multi-dwelling 
townhouses that are on Torrens Title. Further to the south is located a residential 
development containing apartments (21-27 William Street - Figures 6).  

7. To the east of the site, on the opposite side of William Street, is located Beaconsfield 
Park containing open space, tennis courts and amenities.  To the west of the site, on 
the opposite side of William Lane are located commercial premises that have 
frontages to O'Riordan Street.  

8. The site is not a heritage item and is not located within a heritage conservation area. 
The site is located within the Green Square and Beaconsfield localities and is not 
identified as being subject to flooding.  

9. A site visit was carried out on 9 February 2021. Photos of the site and surrounds are 
provided below.  

6



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

 

Figure 1: Aerial view of site and surrounds  

 

Figure 2: Site viewed from William Street, generally looking north-east 

7



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

 

Figure 3: Site viewed from William Lane, generally looking south-east  

   

Figure 4: 11-13 William Street to the northern boundary, viewed from William Street and William Lane 

8



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

    

Figure 5: 1-9A William Street further to the north at the corner of Reserve Street, viewed from William 
Street and William Lane 

   

Figure 6: 19A-19E William Street to the southern boundary, viewed from William Street and William 
Lane 

   

Figure 7: 21 William Street further to the south at Collins Street, viewed from William Street and 
William Lane 

9



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

 

Figure 8: 29-41 William Street further to the south at Collins Street, viewed from William Street and 
William Lane 

History Relevant to the Development Application 

Development Applications - Site 

10. Historic consents relating to the operation of the site as a factory and for business 
identification signage were granted under applications D/1999/304 and D/2000/1162. 
There are no other applications that are relevant to the current proposal. 

Neighbouring sites - North 

11. 1-9 William Street: D/2014/1028 (as amended) was approved for the demolition of 
existing buildings, remediation of site and the construction of a residential 
development. 

12. 11-13 William Street: D/2012/1852 (as amended) was approved on 22 August 2013 by 
the Land and Environment Court for alterations and additions to an existing industrial 
warehouse building to create 6 x 2 storey townhouses with basement carparking. 

Neighbouring sites - South 

13. 19A-19F William Street: D/2013/62 (as amended) was approved on 13 July 2015 for 
the demolition of an existing warehouse and the construction of 6 x 3 storey 
townhouses and 2 x apartments with lower ground floor car parking. 

14. 21-27 William Street: D/2015/145 (as amended) was approved by the Land and 
Environment Court on 17 March 2016 for the construction of a 4 storey residential flat 
building consisting of 36 apartments, one level of basement parking for 28 vehicles 
and associated site and landscaping works. 

  

10



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

Compliance Action 

15. The site is not subject to any compliance actions that are relevant to the subject 
application.   

Amendments 

16. A request for additional information and amendments was sent to the applicant in 
March 2021, following an assessment of the proposed development by Council 
Officers.  

17. The applicant was requested to amend drawings and provide supporting documents to 
address the following issues: 

(a) non-compliance with the FSR standard; 

(b) inadequate building separation and poor residential amenity; 

(c) inadequate deep soil and landscape provisions; 

(d) unclear solar access impacts; and 

(e) waste facilities, contamination and stormwater issues. 

18. The applicant responded to the request in April, by submitting amended drawings and 
solar diagrams.  Council officers considered that while some improvements had been 
made the revised drawings failed to respond adequately to the issues raised.  

19. In particular, the amended proposal continues to exceed the FSR standards and 
presents excessive building bulk, as evidenced by insufficient building separation, with 
resulting impacts upon the residential amenity of the subject site and neighbouring 
sites. Landscaped areas are inadequate to provide the intended privacy mitigation and 
the proposal exceeds the maximum car parking provisions.  

20. A number of discussions have been held with the applicant in regard to the issues 
raised.  Council officers remain concerned that FSR and separation issues will remain 
unresolved.  Subsequently the application is being reported to LPP and recommended 
for refusal.  

21. The amended drawings form the subject of the assessment.  

Proposed Development  

22. The amended application seeks consent for the following: 

(a) demolition of an existing warehouse building; 

(b) excavation of a basement level and site remediation; 

(c) construction of 14 x 3-4 storey multi-dwelling houses (terraced townhouses), 
including 4 x 2 bedroom dwellings and 10 x 3 bedroom dwellings;  

(d) vehicle access from William Lane and pedestrian entry to all dwellings from 
William Street and William Lane; and 

11



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

(e) site landscaping. 

23. The multi-dwelling housing development is proposed to contain: 

(a) a partial basement beneath dwellings T8-T14 that have a frontage to William 
Street and a ground level parking area beneath dwellings T1-T7 facing William 
Lane containing a communal bin storage area; 

(b) ground level: open plan living areas opening onto terrace private open spaces 
within a central courtyard; 

(c) Level 1:  2 bedrooms per dwelling; 

(d) Level 2: third bedrooms for dwellings T3-T5 and T8-T14 and roof terraces for 
dwellings T1-T2, T6-T7; and 

(e) third level: roof terraces for dwellings T8-T14. 

24. Building facades are proposed to include the following materials (see discussion below 
in relation to the use of 'or similar'):  

(a) face brick at the lower levels 1 and 2; 

(b) Colourbond 'Monument' roof cladding for level 3 facades and painted balcony 
balustrades; and 

(c) timber pergolas at the roof level and aluminium windows.  

25. The proposal includes a public benefit offer, in the form of a monetary contribution, to 
provide for Community Infrastructure in the Green Square Locality. The offer has not 
been accepted by Council officers given the proposal fails to satisfy a key objective 
6.14(1)(b) of SLEP2012, which is to provide a development that reflects the desired 
character of the locality and that minimises adverse impacts on the amenity of the 
locality.  

26. Having considered the matters in 6.14(3), the consent authority cannot be satisfied the 
development is consistent with objective 6.14(1)(b) listed above. In failing to satisfy the 
objective of the clause, the monetary offer is not accepted and the land is not eligible 
for an amount of additional floor space in accordance with Clause 6.14(4) of 
SLEP2012. A Voluntary Planning Agreement (VPA) has not been drafted. 

27. A full set of architectural drawings is provided at Attachment A. An extract from the 
architectural package is provided below. 

12



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

 

Figure 9: Basement plan  

 

Figure 10: Ground level 

13



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

 

Figure 11: Level 1 

 

Figure 12: Roof level 

14



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

 

Figure 13: East elevation (William Street) 

 

Figure 14: West elevation (William Lane) 

 

Figure 15: Internal elevation (looking west towards William Lane) 

15



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

 

Figure 16: Internal elevation (looking east towards William Street) 

 

Figure 17: Section Plan showing partial basement under dwellings T8-T14 (William Street) and above 
ground parking areas under dwellings T1-T7 (William Lane)  

16



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

 

Figure 18: Architectural render - William Street frontage 

Assessment 

28. The proposed development has been assessed under Section 4.15 of the 
Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (EP&A Act). 

State Environmental Planning Policies  

State Environmental Planning Policy No 55 - Remediation of Land 

29. The aim of State Environmental Planning Policy (SEPP) No 55 is to ensure that a 
change of land use will not increase the risk to health, particularly in circumstances 
where a more sensitive land use is proposed. 

30. The proposal has been reviewed by Council’s Health and Building specialists with 
regard for the provisions of the State Environmental Planning Policy No 55—
Remediation of Land. The documents lodged with the application have been found to 
be unsatisfactory.  

31. In particular: 

(a) the Detailed Site Investigation (DESI) states that no assessment has been 
carried out for the presence of phenols or asbestos despite them being identified 
as contaminants of potential concern; and 

17



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

(b) whilst the applicant has engaged a NSW Accredited Site Auditor to peer review 
and audit the site investigation, there is no documentation from the Site Auditor 
to peer review the DESI and endorse its conclusions that the site is suitable for 
the proposed use. 

32. The applicant was requested to provide an addendum to incorporate all further 
investigations that were recommended by the NSW EPA accredited Site Auditor. The 
applicant has failed to provide the requested documents at the time of assessment.  

State Environmental Planning Policy (Building Sustainability Index: BASIX) 2004 

33. The applicant provided supporting documents with the application that demonstrate 
the proposal is capable of satisfying the provisions of the BASIX SEPP. 

State Environmental Planning Policy (Infrastructure) 2007 

34. The provisions of SEPP (Infrastructure) 2007 have been considered in the assessment 
of the development application. 

Division 5, Subdivision 2: Development likely to affect an electricity transmission or 
distribution network 

Clause 45 Determination of development applications – other development 

35. The application is subject to Clause 45 of the SEPP as the development involves the 
penetration of ground within 2m of an underground electricity power line. 

36. As such, the application was referred to Ausgrid for a period of 21 days. A response 
was received and no objection was raised. 

Local Environmental Plans 

Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 

37. An assessment of the proposed development against the relevant provisions of the 
Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 is provided in the following sections.  

  

18



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

Part 1 Preliminary 

Provision  Compliance Comment 

1.2   Aims of Plan No The proposed development provides 
poor amenity for its intended future 
occupants and to the occupants of 
neighbouring buildings. 

The development fails to satisfy the 
Aims of SLEP 2012 at 1.2(h) and 1.2(j), 
in relation to the amenity and quality of 
life of the local community, in relation to 
achieving a high quality urban form and 
design excellence and the requirement 
to reflect the desired future character of 
the locality.  

Part 2 Permitted or prohibited development  

Provision  Compliance Comment 

2.3 Zone objectives and Land 
Use Table 

Yes The site is located in the B4 Mixed Use 
zone. The proposed development is 
defined as multi-dwelling housing and is 
permissible with consent in the zone.   

Part 4 Principal development standards 

Provision  Compliance  Comment  

4.3 Height of buildings Yes A maximum building height of 15m is 
permitted. The proposal has a maximum 
height of approximately 14m and 
complies with the maximum height of 
buildings development standard.  

4.4 Floor space ratio No Clause 4.4 of SLEP 2012 allows for a 
maximum floor space ratio (FSR) of 1:1.  

In accordance with Clause 6.14 of 
SLEP2012, an additional FSR provision 
of 0.5:1 can be provided in relation to 
the provision for Green Square 
community infrastructure, increasing the 
maximum FSR for the site to 1.5:1 
(GFA: 1,651.5sqm). 

The proposal provides 1,702sqm of 
GFA, resulting in a floor space ratio of 

19



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

Provision  Compliance  Comment  

1.55:1, and exceeds the permissible 
standard by 50.5sqm or 3 per cent. 

A request to vary the floor space ratio 
development standard in accordance 
with Clause 4.6 has been submitted. 
See further details in the ‘Discussion’ 
section below. 

4.6 Exceptions to development 
standards 

No The proposed development seeks to 
vary the development standard 
prescribed under Clause 4.4. A written 
statement addressing the provisions of 
Clause 4.6 of SLEP 2012 fails to 
recognise the extent of the variation to 
the FSR standard and does not meet the 
requirements of the clause. See further 
details in the ‘Discussion’ section below. 

Part 6 Local provisions – height and floor space 

Provision  Compliance Comment 

Division 2 Additional floor space outside Central Sydney 

6.14 Community infrastructure 

floor space at Green Square 

No The proposed development is eligible for 
an additional floor space ratio of 0.5:1. A 
public benefit offer for a monetary 
contribution in accordance with Clause 
6.14 of SLEP2012 has been submitted 
but is not supported. See discussion 
below in the issues section. 

Division 4 Design excellence 

6.21 Design excellence No The current scheme fails to deliver the 
highest standard of architectural, urban 
and landscape design and is contrary to 
the design excellence provisions. See 
further details in the ‘Discussion’ section 
below. 

 

  

20



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

Part 7 Local provisions – general 

Provision  Compliance Comment 

Division 1 Car parking ancillary to other development 

7.5 Residential flat buildings, 

dual occupancies and multi 

dwelling housing 

 

No A maximum of 14 car parking spaces are 
permitted for 4 x 3 bedroom dwellings 
and 10 x 2 bedroom dwellings in the 'B' 
area.  

The amended proposal includes 15 car 
parking spaces and fails to comply with 
the relevant development standards. 

Clause 7.5(2) of SLEP2012 can be 
useful in increasing the maximum car 
parking provision, however does not 
apply in this instance. Given that no 
visitor parking spaces are shown on the 
architectural drawings, the maximum car 
parking provision cannot be increased 
above 14 spaces.  

Division 3 Affordable housing 

7.13   Contribution for purpose 

of affordable housing 

Yes The site is located within the Green 
Square affordable housing contribution 
area.  

In the event the proposal was supported, 
it would be subject to a Section 7.13 
contribution.   

Division 4 Miscellaneous 

7.14 Acid Sulfate Soils Yes The site is within a class 5 Acid Sulfate 
zone, which is 150m from a class 3 zone 
around the Alexandria Canal to the west. 

The Detailed Site Investigation 
concludes that there is a very low risk of 
finding acid sulfate soils and basement 
excavation is not likely to encounter 
groundwater, which is approximately 6m 
below ground level. 

Council's Health and Building specialists 
are satisfied that no additional 
information is required to address acid 
sulfate soils. 

21



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

Provision  Compliance Comment 

7.19 Demolition must not result 
in long term adverse visual 
impact 

Yes The applicant has not requested that the 
construction process should be staged 
and has not indicated there would be 
substantial delays between demolition 
and construction works.   

Development Control Plans 

Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 

38. An assessment of the proposed development against the relevant provisions within the 
Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 is provided in the following sections.  

Section 2 – Locality Statements  

39. The site is located within the Beaconsfield locality. The proposed development is 
contrary to a key design principle of the locality, in that it does not result in high quality 
built form in the southern area of the neighbourhood which has a transitional urban 
character.  

 

Section 3 – General Provisions   

Provision Compliance Comment 

3.2. Defining the Public Domain  Yes The proposal has been amended to 
elevate residential entries above the 
footpath level to provide for better visual 
privacy whilst retaining passive 
surveillance.  

3.5 Urban Ecology No The amended proposal provides 
insufficient planter volumes to provide 
for meaningful landscape screening and 
does not provide for canopy trees.  

The development does not have the 
ability to provide 15 per cent canopy 
coverage within 10 years and fails to 
satisfy the provisions of the Landscape 
Code. 

3.6 Ecologically Sustainable 
Development 

Yes Details have been provided to 
demonstrate the proposal is capable of 
satisfying BASIX requirements. 

 

22



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

Provision Compliance Comment 

3.8 Subdivision, Strata 
Subdivision and Consolidation 

Yes The proposed development involves 
Stratum subdivision of the site, providing 
a communal car parking level. The new 
allotments are regular in shape and 
would not have a detrimental impact on 
the setting of the site.   

3.9 Heritage Yes The site is not a heritage item and is not 
located within a heritage conservation 
area.   

3.10 Significant Architectural 
Building Types 

Yes The site contains a warehouse that is 
likely to be older than 50 years. Aerial 
photographs from 1975 show the 
warehouse in place.  

Despite this, the existing warehouse 
does not display any features that are 
remarkable or rare. The warehouse is 
utilitarian in character and has a simple 
rectangular form that is not reinforced 
with any particular features such as 
vertical brick piers, arches, articulated 
bays or feature windows. 

 

3.11 Transport and Parking 

Schedule 7.8.5 Accessible car 
parking spaces 

No A traffic impact assessment report 
submitted with the application states that 
a maximum of 14 car parking spaces are 
to be provided in accordance with the 
SLEP2012 maximum and that visitor 
parking is not provided.  

The report states that motorcycle 
parking is not required by SDCP 2012 
other than a single space and that bike 
parking should be provided for all 
dwellings.  Amended plans show 15  
parking spaces and motorcycles and 
bicycle parking spaces provided within 
all garages.  

2 adaptable car parking spaces are 
provided within the ground level of 
adaptable dwelling T2, resulting in a 
non-compliance with the SLEP2012 
maximum car parking provision (see 
discussion above - Clause 7.5).  

23



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

Provision Compliance Comment 

There are no provisions in SLEP2012 or 
SDCP2012 that require the provision of 
visitor car parking spaces within multi-
dwelling development. However, the 
SLEP2012 maximum may be increased 
where visitor parking is provided [see 
discussion above in Clause 7.5(2) of 
SLEP2012].  

Part 3.11.4(6) of SDCP2012 states that 
where a residential development 
proposes less than the maximum 
number of car parking spaces (under 
SLEP2012), that the reduction in the 
number of spaces should be shared 
proportionally between resident parking 
spaces and visitor parking spaces. 
However, in this instance, it is proposed 
to provide 15 spaces, which is greater 
than the maximum.  

3.12 Accessible Design Yes A disability access report submitted with 
the application states that the proposal 
can comply with the provision of one 
adaptable dwelling. Dwelling T2 can be 
adapted with an internal lift to comply 
with the standards.  

3.13 Social and Environmental 
Responsibilities 

Yes The proposed development provides 
adequate passive surveillance and is 
generally designed in accordance with 
the CPTED principles. 

3.14 Waste No The proposal does not provide a 
minimum 4sqm of dedicated space for 
residential bulky and problem waste 
storage within a lockable cage, 
designated screened area or room. 

 

  

24



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

Section 4 – Development Types  

4.1 Single Dwellings, Terraces and Dual Occupancies  

Provision  Compliance Comment 

4.1.1 Building height No SDCP2012 recommends a maximum 
building height of 3 storeys.  The 
proposal has a height of 4 storeys at the 
western edge of the development. See 
further details in the ‘Discussion’ section 
below. 

4.1.2 Building setbacks Yes The proposed development relates to 
the existing front and side setbacks 
patterns along William Street.  

4.1.3 Residential amenity  

As demonstrated below, the proposed development will have acceptable residential 
amenity and will not have unreasonable impacts on the residential amenity of 
neighbouring properties. 

4.1.3.1 Solar access Yes View from the sun diagrams 
demonstrate that proposed and 
neighbouring dwellings receive greater 
than 2 hours of solar access at the 
winter solstice.  

4.1.3.2 Solar collectors Yes The proposal does not include the 
installation of photovoltaic solar panels. 
There are no existing PVC arrays 
located on the roof areas of 
neighbouring buildings.   

4.1.3.3 Landscaping No Minimal soil volumes are provided within 
the central courtyard to provide for 
landscaped privacy mitigation plantings. 
See discussion below.  

4.1.3.4 Deep soil planting No The amended proposal provides a 
narrow strip of deep soil at the William 
Street frontage with an effective width of 
1.7m (61sqm or 5.5 per cent of site 
area). 

The deep soil area does not allow for 
significant canopy trees and fails to 
comply with the 15 per cent control 
specified by SDCP2012.  

25



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

Provision  Compliance Comment 

4.1.3.5 Private open space Yes Dwellings are provided with private open 
space at the ground level and on roof 
terraces. Private open spaces receive in 
excess of 2 hours' solar access on 21 
June.  

4.1.3.6 Visual privacy No Insufficient building separation and 
directly opposing windows provides poor 
residential amenity in relation to visual 
and acoustic privacy. Mitigation 
measures include fixed and obscure 
windows that decrease natural 
ventilation and create a sense of 
enclosure within rooms.  

4.1.8 Balconies, verandahs and 
decks 

No Roof terraces rely on landscaped planter 
boxes to mitigate direct overlooking of 
the living spaces of neighbouring 
development and bedroom windows of 
dwellings within the same development. 
See discussion below.  

Section 5 – Specific Areas  

Provision  Compliance Comment 

5.2 Green Square No The amended proposal provides 
residential accommodation with 
insufficient building separation, deep soil 
provision and poorly integrated 
landscape design. This results in poor 
residential amenity for adjoining and 
future  residents that fails to complement 
the existing and desired future character 
of the neighbourhood. 

5.2.3 Community infrastructure No A public benefit offer has been 
submitted by the applicant to enable a 
monetary contribution towards 
community infrastructure within the 
Green Square locality.  

The offer has not been accepted due to 
poor design outcomes and the 
exceedance of floor space bonus 
provisions within Green Square. 

 

26



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

Provision  Compliance Comment 

The proposal fails to satisfy provision 
6.14 of SLEP 2012 and Provision 
5.2.3(1) of SDCP 2012, which specifies 
that consent may be granted for 
development up to the maximum gross 
floor area achievable under Clause 6.14 
of Sydney LEP 2012, but only if the 
development contributes to the desired 
character of the locality in which it is 
located and has little or no impacts on 
the amenity of that locality. See 
discussion below in the Issues section.  

 

Discussion  

Floor Space Ratio - Calculation 

40. The maximum floor space ratio (FSR) is provided by: 

(a) Clause 4.4 of SLEP 2012 that allows for a maximum floor space ratio (FSR) of 
1:1; and  

(b) Clause 6.14 of SLEP2012 allows for an additional provision of 0.5:1, subject to  
to the delivery of community infrastructure within Green Square community. 
Acceptance of such an offer increases the maximum FSR for the site to 1.5:1 
(GFA: 1,651.5sqm). 

41. The applicant has provided a gross floor area (GFA) diagram showing the proposal 
with a GFA of 1,629sqm, resulting in a FSR of 1.48:1.  

42. The applicant's GFA diagram excludes all areas below the ground levels of the 14 x 
dwellings. However, these exclusions are reliant upon the area below dwellings T1-T7 
meeting the SLEP2012 definition of a 'basement', which is: 

(a) the space of a building where the floor level of that space is predominantly below 
ground level (existing) and where the floor level of the storey immediately above 
is less than 1 metre above ground level (existing).  

43. The area beneath dwellings T1-T7 is above the ground level of William Lane and does 
not constitute the definition of a basement. The area below dwellings T8-T14 is below 
the ground level of William Street and satisfies the definition.  

44. The areas excluded by the applicant include approximately 73sqm of GFA that when 
included, result in a GFA of 1,710sqm and a FSR of 1.55:1. The proposal exceeds the 
permissible standard by 50.5sqm or three per cent.  

45. These areas include a communal waste bin storage room (20sqm), bin storage areas, 
a second car parking space beneath dwelling T2 that exceeds the maximum car 
parking provision at Clause 7.5 of SLEP; and motorcycle parking spaces beneath each 
dwelling that are not required by SDCP2012 controls. 

27



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

 

Figure 19: ground level parking area facing William Lane (shaded yellow) does not satisfy the 
SLEP2012 definition of a 'basement' 

 

Figure 20: Areas within ground level parking area and basement that are excluded in applicant's GFA 
diagram but that should be included 

28



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

FSR - Community infrastructure floor space at Green Square 

46. In accordance with Clause 6.14 of SLEP2012, the proposed development is eligible for 
an additional FSR provision of 0.5:1 to provide for infrastructure within the Green 
Square locality. The proposal does not provide any infrastructure on the site and the 
contribution contained in the Public Benefit Offer is monetary.  

47. The quantum of additional FSR is contingent on the consent authority being satisfied 
the development is consistent with the key objectives.  In particular objective 
6.14(1)(b), that requires development to reflect the desired character of the locality and 
that minimise adverse impacts on the amenity of the locality. In this regard, the subject 
proposal fails to achieve design excellence by providing poor design and amenity 
outcomes for future occupants of the site, primarily as a result of insufficient separation 
between dwellings.  

48. There is no rationale for exceeding the controls, particularly where this also results in a 
development that results in a poor design outcome. Addressing the issues around 
residential amenity is likely to result in a decrease in floor space. This is to provide 
increased building separation. Further, the application does not address the FSR that 
has not been included within the parking areas of the development. The applicant has 
not provided a clause 4.6 statement that is satisfactory (see discussion below).  

49. In failing to satisfy the objective of clause 6.14, the land is not eligible for an amount of 
additional floor space in accordance with Clause 6.14(4) of the Sydney Local 
Environmental Plan 2012 and Council as the consent authority is not obliged to accept 
the Public Benefit Offer that was lodged with the application. Consequently, the 
application cannot be supported. 

Clause 4.6 Request to Vary a Development Standard 

50. Clause 4.4 of the Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 (SLEP2012) allows for a 
maximum floor space ratio for the site of 1:1. The applicant has offered to enter into a 
Planning Agreement to provide for Green Square community infrastructure. In 
accordance with Clause 6.14 of SLEP 2012. The contribution (if it were to be 
accepted) allows for an additional FSR provision of 0.5:1 and a total FSR of 1.5:1 
(GFA: 1,651.5sqm).  

51. The applicant has provided GFA diagrams with the amended proposal that show FSR: 
1.48:1 (GFA: 1,629sqm).  However, the GFA diagrams do not include approximately 
72.6sqm of GFA located within the ground level of the site at William Lane (beneath 
dwellings T1-T7), including a communal garbage room and areas of GFA located 
within the garages of dwellings T1-T7. 

52. When included, the proposal has approximately 1,702sqm of GFA, resulting in a floor 
space ratio of 1.55:1. The proposal exceeds the permissible standard by 50.5sqm or 
three per cent. 

53. A written request to vary the floor space ratio development standard in accordance 
with Clause 4.6 was submitted with the original proposal. The request identifies a non-
compliance of only 6.5sqm and understates the extent of the non-compliance.  

  

29



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

54. The written request seeks to justify the contravention of the development standard by 
demonstrating: 

(a) That compliance with the development standard is unreasonable or unnecessary 
in the circumstances of the case;  

(b) That there are sufficient environmental planning grounds to justify contravening 
the standard; 

(c) The proposed development will be consistent with the objectives of the zone; 
and  

(d) The proposed development will be consistent with the objectives of the standard. 

55. The applicant seeks to justify the contravention of the floor space ratio development 
standard on the following basis: 

(a) That compliance with the development standard is unreasonable or unnecessary 
in the circumstances of the case on the following basis: 

 the proposed works represent a desirable and appropriate form of 
development on the subject site; 

 the proposed FSR non-compliance will be indiscernible from William 
Street, William Lane and the adjoining properties; 

 the bulk and scale of the development is compatible with surrounding 
existing development and is consistent with the desired future character of 
the area; 

(b) That there are sufficient environmental planning grounds to justify contravening 
the standard: 

 the FSR variation will not be responsible for any unreasonable bulk or 
scale impacts, noting that the proposal complies with the LEP building 
height development standard and the DCP 3-storey height limit control 
(sic);  

 the proposed FSR variation is not responsible for any unreasonable 
adverse impacts to surrounding properties in terms of overshadowing, 
privacy and view loss; 

 the proposed density, scale and bulk of the development is appropriate 
and will not appear out of character when viewed in its context of other 
buildings in the vicinity; and 

 the proposal includes landscaping at the front and centre of the site on the 
Ground Floor and First Floor which will soften the built form and will retain 
existing street trees.  

  

30



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

(c) The proposed development will be consistent with the objectives of the zone;  

 the proposed works represent a desirable and appropriate form of 
development on the subject site and satisfy objective (a), which is to 
provide sufficient floor space to meet anticipated development needs for 
the foreseeable future; 

 the proposal complies with the LEP and DCP parking rates and satisfy 
objective (b), which is to regulate the density of development, built form 
and land use intensity and to control the generation of vehicle and 
pedestrian traffic; 

 the minor nature of the variation would not generate any inconsistency with 
objective (c), which is to provide for an intensity of development that is 
commensurate with the capacity of existing and planned infrastructure; and 

 the proposal provides a compatible building envelope without creating a 
development with overbearing height, bulk or scale and without 
compromising the desired future character of the area and that complies 
with the DCP 3-storey height limit control (sic) and satisfies objective (d), 
which is to ensure that new development reflects the desired character of 
the locality in which it is located and minimises adverse impacts on the 
amenity of that locality.  

(d) The proposed development will be consistent with the objectives of the FSR 
standard on the following basis: 

 the proposed works represent a desirable and appropriate form of 
development on the subject site and will have a height, bulk and scale that 
is compatible with the 3-storey townhouse developments to the north of the 
subject site. The proposed development is suitably located in an area close 
to bus services and Green Square railway station.  

 As such, the proposal satisfies the objectives of the FSR standard, which 
are to provide a mixture of compatible land uses, integrate suitable 
business, office, residential, retail and other development in accessible 
locations so as to maximise public transport patronage and encourage 
walking and cycling and to ensure uses support the viability of centres. 

56. Development consent must not be granted unless the consent authority is satisfied 
that: 

(a) The applicant’s written request has adequately addressed the matters required 
to be demonstrated by subclause 3 of Clause 4.6 being that compliance with the 
development standard is unreasonable or unnecessary in the circumstances of 
the case, and that there are sufficient environmental planning grounds to justify 
contravening the standard; and 

(b) The proposed development will be in the public interest because it is consistent 
with the objectives of the particular standard and the objectives for development 
within the zone in which the development is proposed to be carried out. 

  

31



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

57. In the circumstances of the application, the applicant has failed to adequately 
demonstrate by way of their submitted Clause 4.6 statement that compliance with the 
standard is unreasonable and unnecessary and that the objectives of the development 
standards are achieved, notwithstanding non-compliance with the standard. In 
particular: 

(a) The written Clause 4.6 statement significantly understates the extent of the non-
compliance with the FSR standard. The statement fails to detail the impacts of 
the proposal accurately and does not enable the consent authority to be satisfied 
that the arguments put forward in the written Clause 4.6 statement can be 
justified.  

(b) The proposal provides dwellings with insufficient separation distance and that 
with a resulting density the provides poor residential amenity for occupants. The 
significant understatement of FSR and poor residential amenity demonstrate that 
key objectives of Clause 4.4(1)(b) and (d) of SLEP2012 are not achieved.  The 
proposal fails to regulate the density of development and provide a built form and 
land use intensity that reflects the desired character of the locality and fails to 
minimise adverse impacts on the amenity of that locality.  

(c) The understatement of FSR and provision of poor residential amenity do not 
enable the consent authority to be satisfied that key provisions of Clause 6.14(b) 
and (c) of SLEP0212 can be satisfied. These provisions aim to ensure that 
greater densities reflect the desired character of the localities in which they are 
allowed and that increased densities minimise adverse impacts on the amenity of 
those localities.  

58. With regard for clause 4.6(3)(b) of Sydney LEP 2012, the written request provided by 
the applicant has failed to demonstrate there are sufficient environmental planning 
grounds to justify contravening the development standard. In particular: 

(a) the statement outlines that the FSR variation is not responsible for any 
unreasonable adverse impacts to surrounding properties in terms of 
overshadowing, privacy and view loss, however fails to address that: 

 significant privacy impacts result from insufficient separation distance 
between dwellings and from opposing windows at various levels of the 
building; 

 privacy mitigation measures, including fixed and obscure windows limit 
natural cross ventilation and create a sense of enclosure within bedrooms 
provide high residential amenity;  

 roof level terraces directly overlook neighbouring dwellings, with a 
dependence on landscaped planter boxes that are difficult to maintain and 
expensive to remove (upon failure) for future occupants; and 

 the applicant has failed to demonstrate that sufficient soil depths and 
volumes are provided at the center of the site where landscaped solutions 
are proposed to mitigate privacy impacts between dwellings.  

  

32



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

59. The applicant’s written request has significantly understated the extent of the 
departure from the development standard and has failed to adequately address the 
matters required to be demonstrated by subclause 4.6(3) of SLEP2012. The 
applicant’s written request has failed to demonstrate that the proposed development 
will be in the public interest because it is not consistent with key objectives of the FSR 
development standard and with a key objective for development within the B4 Mixed 
Use zone in which the development is proposed to be carried out.  

60. The applicant has failed to demonstrate by way of their clause 4.6 statement that 
compliance with the development standard is unreasonable and unnecessary in the 
circumstances of the case. In particular, the applicant has failed to demonstrate by 
way of their clause 4.6 statement that the objectives of Clause 4.4 of Sydney LEP 
2012 are achieved notwithstanding non-compliance with the standard. 

61. For the reasons provided above, the requested variation to the floor space ratio 
development standard is not supported. The applicant's written request has not 
adequately addressed the extent of the non-compliance and the matters relevant to 
4.6(3) of the Sydney LEP 2012. 

62. Further, the applicant's written statement has not been successful in arguing that one 
of the five ways established in Wehbe has been satisfied, being that the objectives of 
the development standard are achieved notwithstanding non-compliance with the 
standard.  

63. The applicant's written statement does not demonstrate the proposal is satisfactory in 
relation to the environmental planning grounds used to justify contravening the 
development standard. The proposed development is therefore not in the public 
interest as it is inconsistent with the objectives of the FSR standard that is applicable 
to the site. 

Residential Amenity - Building Separation  

64. Amended drawings show a separation distance of 8.7m between the eastern and 
western rows of townhouses. The separation distance fails to provide adequate 
separation between habitable rooms that have opposing windows.  Poor residential 
amenity results from compromised visual and acoustic privacy (Figure 21 below).  

33



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

 

Figure 21: 8.7m building separation and opposing windows 

65. The applicant states that the minimal separation strategy follows the approach adopted 
within a development to the south of the site at 29-41 William Street. Opposing 
dwellings are separated by 7.7m. This development has used obscure-glazed windows 
and obscure-glazed, angled balconies that face the internal courtyards (Figure 22 
below).  

 

Figure 22: obscure-glazed windows and balconies at 29-41 William Street (source: applicant 
drawings)   

34



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

66. The subject proposal provides fixed and obscure glazed windows to a height of 1.8m 
with smaller operable windows above that height (Figure 23 below). The fixed and 
obscure glazed windows reduce natural cross ventilation to the dwellings and create a 
sense of enclosure within bedrooms.  

 

Figure 23: Proposed windows facing internal courtyards within the subject site, with fixed, obscure-
glazed windows to 1.8m and operable windows above  

67. The Design Advisory Panel (Residential Subcommittee) advised that the Apartment 
Design Guide (ADG) can be used as a guide to assessment. The ADG specifies that a 
minimum of 12m separation should be provided between habitable windows or 
balconies.  

68. The 12m separation distance specified by the ADG should establish a minimum target 
for this development in the absence of alternative mitigation strategies. Superior 
privacy mitigation strategies have been employed within neighbouring sites to the 
north and south of the subject site that were also designed by the project architect. 
Examples are discussed below in the following paragraphs. 

69. At 1-9 William Street (D/2014/1028) - residential apartment building: 

(a) apartments at the northern part of the development have been designed so that 
habitable rooms face non-habitable rooms. Dwellings are separated by a 
genuine deep soil zone to enable growth of landscaped screening (Figure 24); 
and 

(b) apartments at the southern part of the development have been designed with 
habitable to non-habitable interfaces between dwellings (Figure 24). 

35



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

 

Figure 24: genuine deep soil separating apartments at 1-9 William Street 

 

Figure 25: approved floor plans for apartments within 1-9 William Street, showing balconies facing 
blank walls opposite 

36



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

70. At 19 William Street (D/2013/62) - 6 x 3 storey townhouses and 2 x apartments: 

(a) multi-dwelling houses have been designed such that their balconies face the 
external walls (with no windows) of apartments opposite (Figure 26). 

 

Figure 26: approved floor plans for dwellings at 19 William Street showing balconies facing blank 
walls opposite 

71. At 21-27 William Street (D/2015/145) - residential apartment building: 

(a) dwellings have been designed with non-habitable to non-habitable interfaces and 
with an appropriate deep soil zone to enable growth of landscaped screening 
(Figure 27).  

 

Figure 27: approved floor plans for apartments within 21-27 William Street, showing genuine deep 
soil, outward-facing living areas and no opposing windows  

37



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

Visual Privacy - Landscaping 

72. Amended drawings included a line of site diagram showing the degree of overlooking 
from the roof level of dwelling T1 (Figure 28 below). The diagram shows that visual 
privacy is proposed to be mitigated using planter boxes at the edges of the roof 
terraces. 

73. The planter boxes provide horizontal separation and are landscaped, however they are 
to be maintained by the residents of individual Torrens titled dwellings and are unsafe 
given their elevation above ground levels. Given they will be difficult and dangerous to 
maintain, it is likely many of the planter boxes will fail throughout the development. 
This would result in a deleterious impact upon the building facades and result in visual 
privacy impacts.  

74. This form of privacy mitigation provides an architectural feature that is difficult to 
maintain and expensive to remove for future owners.  

75. The diagram illustrates that despite the planter box, the roof terrace will directly 
overlook the living spaces of neighbouring development at 19 William Street and the 
bedroom windows of dwellings within the same development at the eastern side of the 
site. 

Site Landscaping 

76. The scheme is reliant on site landscaping to mitigate visual privacy impacts caused by 
insufficient building separation. Issues with the proposal include: 

(a) Only a small section of genuine deep soil is provided at the William Street 
frontage for the provision of meaningful plantings. Planters planter boxes at the 
central courtyard do not constitute genuine deep soil as defined by the City's 
Landscape Code as they are located on top of structures.  

(b) Planter boxes within the central courtyards have areas of 3.9sqm and depths of 
700mm. They are not sufficient to support small canopy trees with volumes of 
2.7 cubic metres each, noting the Landscape Code requires 9 cubic metres and 
soil depths of 800mm.  

(c) The proposal relies on numerous planter boxes throughout the building facades 
to soften its appearance at levels 2 and 3 of the building. The planter boxes are 
impractical and unsafe to maintain, and would be expensive to remove for future 
owners of the development.  

38



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

 

Figure 28: Drawing extract provided by the applicant showing a high degree of mutual overlooking. 
Privacy impacts are proposed to be mitigated by planter boxes that are 2-3 storeys above ground 
levels, at the edges of the building. The planter boxes are dangerous to maintain considering there is 
no strata manager to arrange professional maintenance.  

Design Excellence 

77. The proposed development provides inadequate separation distance between 
opposite dwellings and fails to provide high residential amenity for future occupants. 
The impacts of directly opposing windows are proposed to be mitigated by fixed and 
obscure glazing that have resultant impacts for occupants by providing minimal 
window openings and unnecessary sense of enclosure.  

78. Inadequate soil volumes are provided within central garden planters that are intended 
to facilitate sufficient landscape plantings to mitigate privacy impacts.  

79. The proposal relies on numerous planter boxes throughout the building facades to 
soften its appearance. The planter boxes are impractical and unsafe to maintain due to 
their height and edge location, and in the event of multiple garden box failures, would 
have a deleterious impact on the building facades. They will be difficult to maintain and 
expensive to remove for future owners.  

80. The building proposes facade treatments that are unclear in that the Schedule of 
Finishes refers to building materials 'or similar'. Front second level balconies use 
painted wall finishes that are incongruous to face brick lower sections and vertical wall 
cladding reads as a continuous vertical plane that adds to the excessive bulk of the 
upper level of the building.   

81. The proposal fails to deliver the highest standard of architectural, urban and landscape 
design, with regard for the residential amenity for its intended future occupants and 
neighbouring buildings and with regard for suitable building bulk, massing and 
modulation. The proposal fails to provide excellence and integration of landscape 
design.  

39



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

Consultation 

Internal Referrals 

82. The application was discussed with the City's Design Advisory Panel (Residential 
Subcommittee) and with other specialists. Objections were raised to the proposal as 
outlined below.   

83. The City's Design Advisory Panel (Residential Subcommittee) and urban design 
specialist raised issues in relation to: 

(a) The typology of the development, questioning whether the development should 
be considered a residential apartment building for the purposes of assessment 
and that there is inadequate separation distance between the eastern and 
western rows of dwellings.  

Comment: all dwellings have direct access at the ground level from the roadway 
and as such, satisfy the definition of multi-dwelling houses. The ADG does not 
apply to the development, however is useful in providing a guide to assessment 
of residential amenity as outlined above.  

(b) the proposal should not exceed the relevant FSR and the maximum height in 
storeys (3 storeys); 

(c) increasing the provision of deep soil planting, preferably in the internal 
courtyards and separation distance between eastern and western dwellings. 
Setbacks should be increased at William Street to provide for canopy trees; 

(d) air-conditioning units are shown in internal courtyards and should be located at 
the roof level; 

(e) switch boards and fire services form prominent features at the building edges 
and should be integrated into the architecture of the building to ensure they are 
not visually dominating; 

(f) insufficient detail in relation to solar access for neighbouring dwellings; 

(g) aesthetics are underdeveloped including within central courtyards and use of 'or 
similar' for materials schedules. 

Comment: the issues raised by the DAP Residential Subcommittee were 
included in a letter requesting amended drawings. Amended drawings were 
submitted for assessment, however do not resolve the issues outlined above.  

84. The City's Landscape specialist raised issues in relation to: 

(a) the aspiration for raised planters, green walls and a verdant green development 
at the ground level is not reflected in the proposed plans that show a series or 
narrow planters with minimal soil depth and soil volume; 

(b) the proposed landscape not being feasible and not complying with the Sydney 
Landscape Code and planning control in relation to achieving desired privacy 
mitigation, canopy cover and maintenance. 

  

40



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

85. The City's waste specialist raised issues in relation to inaccurate calculation of waste 
generation and that a bulky goods waste storage room has not been provided.  

86. The City's Public Domain specialists advised that proposal involves stormwater being 
discharged to the kerb and gutter and that this will cause flooding at the basement 
entry. A Stormwater Quality Assessment and amended Stormwater Concept Design 
were requested. The applicant has failed to provide the requested stormwater details 
with the amended drawings.  

87. The City's health and building specialist advised that the documents lodged with the 
application to address the provisions of the State Environmental Planning Policy No 
55—Remediation of Land are unsatisfactory. An addendum document was requested 
to be peer reviewed by a Site Auditor resulting in either a Section A Site Audit 
Statement to endorse the previous conclusions within the DESI that the land is suitable 
for the proposed use or to provide a Remedial Action Plan (RAP) to make the Site 
Suitable for the proposed use. The applicant has failed to provide the requested 
contamination details with the amended drawings. 

88. The City's transport specialist advised that the proposal should be redesigned to 
encourage Sustainable Transport (and Active Transport) in a manner which aligns with 
the targets and objectives set out in Sustainable Sydney 2030.  

89. The City's surveyor is of the view that whilst the Draft Plan of Stratum Subdivision is 
generally satisfactory, there are several easements not shown that should be provided. 
Further, as there will be no Owners Corporation, it is recommended that a BMS 
(Building Management Statement) be prepared and registered with the subdivision and 
in the absence of a BMS, a positive covenant for maintenance of common areas, 
including the roof and external structure of the building be prepared.  

External Referrals 

Ausgrid 

90. Pursuant to Section 45 of the SEPP (Infrastructure) 2007, the application was referred 
to Ausgrid for comment.  A response was received raising no objections to the 
proposed development.  

Water NSW 

91. The application was referred to Water NSW for comment. A response was received 
raising no objections to the proposed development.  

Advertising and Notification 

92. In accordance with the City of Sydney Community Participation Plan 2019, the 
proposed development was notified and advertised for a period of 21 days between 28 
October 2020 and 19 November 2020. Two submissions were received in objection to 
the proposal.  

93. On 11 June, Council's assessing officer became aware of an issue with the original 
notification of the development application. Whilst site notices had been installed at the 
site boundaries, letters had not been sent out to neighbours. This was attributed to an 
IT issue.  

41



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

94. Consequently, the application was re-notified for a period of 14 days, between 2 June 
and 24 June 2021. No submissions have been received to date following the re-
notification of the proposal.   

95. Submissions received following the initial notification period raised the following 
issues: 

(a) Issue: The proposal exceeds the FSR control and the height in storeys control, 
setting a poor precedent. 

Response: the proposal exceeds the FSR and the height in storeys control. The 
scheme provides poor residential amenity due to inadequate building separation 
and is recommended for refusal.   

(b) Issue: Loss of visual and acoustic privacy due to roof level terraces and 
overshadowing impacts.  

Response: proposed roof terraces will overlook neighbouring dwellings in the 
event landscaping fails. See discussion above in the Issues section.  

 Financial Contributions 

Contribution under Section 7.11 of the EP&A Act 1979  

96. In the event the proposal was supported, it would be subject of a S7.11 contribution 
under the provisions of the City of Sydney Development Contributions Plan 2015. 

Contribution under Section 7.13 of the Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 

97. The site is located within the Green Square affordable housing contribution area. In the 
event the proposal was supported, it would be subject to a Section 7.13 contribution.   

Relevant Legislation 

98. Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979. 

Conclusion 

99. The application fails to accurately assess floor space ratio and the proposal exceeds 
the standards set out at clauses 4.4 and 6.14 of SLEP2012.  While a public benefit 
offer to provide a monetary contribution toward community infrastructure in Green 
Square has been made, it is not supportable. 

100. The applicant's request for a variation to the floor space ratio development standard 
fails to adequately address the requirements under clause 4.6 of SLEP2012 as 
outlined elsewhere in this report. The applicant fails to state the quantum of the non-
compliance with the standard and has not demonstrated that compliance with the 
standard is unreasonable or unnecessary in the circumstances of the application. 

  

42



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

101. The proposal is not considered to exhibit design excellence in accordance with the 
requirements of Clause 6.21 of Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 as it fails to 
deliver the highest standard of architectural, urban and landscape design. The 
proposal provides poor residential amenity for its intended future occupants.  

102. The proposed development does not satisfy the matters for consideration provided by 
Section 4.15 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 in that it is not 
compliant with key provisions of SLEP2012 and SDCP2012. As such, the proposal 
fails to provide development that is suitable for the subject site. 

103. The public interest cannot be served by the approval of an application that fails to meet 
the minimum amenity requirements of the relevant planning instruments and that is not 
in keeping with its immediate context and neighbouring development in relation to 
building separation, landscape and deep soil provision and neighbourhood character. 

ANDREW THOMAS 

Executive Manager Planning and Development 

Adrian McKeown, Senior Planner.  

43



Attachment A 

Selected Drawings

44



L
O

T
 2

 /
 D

P
 5

5
9
9

3
4

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
IA

L
 D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
1

5
-1

7
 W

il
li

a
m

 S
tr

e
e

t,
 A

le
x
a

n
d

ri
a

 2
0

1
5

DR
A

W
IN

G
 L

IS
T

NO
.

SH
EE

T 
NA

M
E

RE
V.

00
C

O
V

E
R

 P
A

G
E

2
01

S
IT

E
 A

N
A

LY
S

IS
 P

LA
N

3
02

B
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

 P
LA

N
4

03
G

R
O

U
N

D
 F

LO
O

R
 P

LA
N

3
04

LE
V

E
L 

O
N

E
 F

LO
O

R
 P

LA
N

3
05

LE
V

E
L 

T
W

O
 F

LO
O

R
 P

LA
N

3
06

R
O

O
F

 P
LA

N
3

07
E

LE
V

A
T

IO
N

S
 N

O
R

T
H

 A
N

D
 S

O
U

T
H

2
08

E
LE

V
A

T
IO

N
S

 E
A

S
T

 A
N

D
 W

E
S

T
2

09
S

E
C

T
IO

N
S

2
10

C
A

LC
U

LA
T

IO
N

 D
IA

G
R

A
M

 -
 G

F
A

3
11

C
A

LC
U

LA
T

IO
N

 D
IA

G
R

A
M

 -
 P

. O
. S

2
12

C
A

LC
U

LA
T

IO
N

 D
IA

G
R

A
M

 -
 D

E
E

P
 S

O
IL

 &
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
IN

G
3

13
S

H
A

D
O

W
 D

IA
G

R
A

M
 1

 O
F

 2
2

14
S

H
A

D
O

W
 D

IA
G

R
A

M
 2

 O
F

 2
2

15
W

IN
D

O
W

S
 A

N
D

 D
O

O
R

S
 S

C
H

E
D

U
LE

1
16

P
H

O
T

O
M

O
N

T
A

G
E

1
17

F
IN

IS
H

E
S

 S
C

H
E

D
U

LE
2

18
D

R
IV

E
W

A
Y

 D
E

T
A

IL
S

1
19

T
Y

P
IC

A
L 

T
E

R
R

A
C

E
 L

A
Y

O
U

T
1

20
D

E
M

O
LI

T
IO

N
 P

LA
N

1
21

S
E

D
IM

E
N

T
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L 

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 P
LA

N
1

22
T

E
M

P
O

R
A

R
Y

 S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E
S

/ 
H

O
A

R
D

IN
G

 D
E

T
A

IL
S

1
23

S
U

B
D

IV
IS

IO
N

 P
LA

N
1

24
A

D
A

P
T

A
B

LE
 D

E
S

IG
N

1
25

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
C

A
P

E
 E

LE
V

A
T

IO
N

S
1

26
N

O
T

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

 P
LA

N
 1

 O
F

 2
1

27
N

O
T

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

 P
LA

N
 2

 O
F

 2
1

28
W

A
S

T
E

 R
O

O
M

 D
E

S
IG

N
29

D
IA

G
R

A
M

 -
 P

R
IV

A
C

Y
 L

O
S

S
1

30
S

O
LA

R
 A

C
C

E
S

S
 D

IA
G

R
A

M
S

 1
 O

F
 2

1
31

S
O

LA
R

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 D
IA

G
R

A
M

S
 2

 O
F

 2
1

32
D

E
T

A
IL

S
- 

F
R

O
N

T
 F

E
N

C
E

1

S
tr

ee
t 

D
ire

ct
or

y 
(w

w
w

.s
tr

ee
t-

di
re

ct
or

y.
co

m
.a

u)
S

tr
ee

t 
D

ire
ct

or
y 

(w
w

w
.s

tr
ee

t-
di

re
ct

or
y.

co
m

.a
u)

A
ria

l P
ho

to
gr

ap
h

 (
m

ap
s.

si
x.

ns
w

.g
o

v.
a

u)
A

ria
l P

ho
to

gr
ap

h
 (

m
ap

s.
si

x.
ns

w
.g

o
v.

a
u)

B
A

SI
X 

A
SS

ES
SO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
 S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

A
R

TI
ST

 IM
PR

ES
SI

O
N

45



U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

B
M

 D
H

&
W

 T
O

P
 K

E
R

B
R

L
=

1
6

.2
1

 (
A

H
D

)

16
.9

8
17

.1
3

16
.8

9

16
.8

2

16
.8

5

16.75

16.70

16.70

16.55

16
.6

7

16
.4

3

16.25

16
.0

8

16.24

16
.2

2

16
.4

5
16

.6
8

16
.8

6

24
.4

3

INV5

INV5

Stre
et

 L
ight

KB
/O

ut
le

t

KB/Outlet

KB/Outlet

KB/O
utle

t

KB/O
ut

le
t

P
A

T
H

C
O

N
C

P
A

T
H

C
O

N
C

P
A

T
H

C
O

N
C

P
A

T
H

SM
S

17
.1

8

P
P

CL2
CL2

CL2
CL2

CL2
16

.1
7

16
.3

2
16

.6
0

16
.8

0
17

.1
2

16
.5

U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

1 0
9

T
1

T
2

T
3

20
 m

²

W
A

ST
E

C
O

LL
EC

TI
O

N
R

O
O

M

T
6

T
7

T
8

T
9

T
10

T
11

T
13

T
14

DEEP SOIL

16955003955165606520060002009955200

(C.O.S)

1670

A
IS

LE2 0
9

D
R

IV
EW

A
Y1:8

CR
ES

T

W
 I

 L
 L

 I
 A

 M
  

  
  

 L
 A

 N
 E

EN
TR

Y
EN

TR
Y

EN
TR

Y

3.
3 

m

4.
6 

m

FIRE EGRESS

FIRE EGRESS

3.
3 

m

4.
9 

m

1:
20

F
F

L 
16

.9
90

1:9[N
o 

Sl
op

e]

F
F

L 
16

.4
20

EN
AB

LE
 V

IS
U

AL
 

SP
LA

Y 
A

S 
P

ER
 

AS
28

90
.1

RE
FE

R
 D

RA
W

IN
G

 
N

O
.1

8 
FO

R
 D

R
IV

E
W

AY
 

D
E

TA
IL

S

EN
TR

Y

RAMP

R
L 

17
.0

50

VE
N

TI
LA

TE
D

 G
AR

AG
E 

DO
O

R
 A

S
 S

PE
C

IF
IE

D
.

G
RA

TE
D

 D
RA

IN
 &

 P
IT

.
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 H
YD

R
AU

LI
C

 
C

O
N

SU
LT

AN
T'

S 
D

ET
A

IL
 &

 S
PE

C
.

MSB

MSB

MSB

M
SB

M
S

B

MSB

MSB

3.
2 

m

T
4

1
2

3
4

5
6

T
12

EN
TR

Y
EN

TR
Y

(c
.o

.s
)

51
0

0
51

1
5

51
1

5
51

1
5

51
1

5
51

1
5

(c
.o

.s
)

55
2

5

BOUNDARY

BOUNDARY

BOUNDARY

BOUNDARY

T
5

3.
2 

m

R
L 

16
.4

70
R

L 
16

.5
00

R
L 

16
.8

90

F
F

L 
16

.9
90

R
L 

17
.0

50

10
00

M
AI

L
M

AI
L

M
AI

L
M

AI
L

M
AI

L
M

AI
L

M
AI

L

F
F

L 
16

.4
20

CC
R

F
F

L 
16

.9
90

AD
AP

TA
BL

E
C

A
R 

PA
RK

IN
G

 S
P

AC
E

BI
N

BI
N

BI
N

BI
N

BI
N

BI
N

BI
N

RE
FE

R
 T

O
 W

A
ST

E 
M

AN
A

G
EM

E
NT

 P
LA

N

36
0

0

EX
. V

E
HI

CU
LA

R
 C

R
O

SS
IN

G
 

TO
 B

E
 D

E
M

O
LI

SH
ED

BE
LO

W
 G

R
O

U
N

D
 O

SD
 T

A
N

K 
TO

 
H

YD
R

AU
LI

C
 E

N
G

'S
 D

R
AW

IN
G

S

F
F

L 
16

.8
20

F
F

L 
16

.9
90

ST
EP

F
F

L 
16

.6
20

S
IL

T 
A

R
R

ES
TO

R
 

PI
T

D
P

D
P

3.
5 

m

3.
4 

m

3.
9 

m
3.

4 
m

3.
4 

m
BI

C
YC

LE
 

RA
C

K

BI
C

YC
LE

 
RA

C
K

BI
C

YC
LE

 
RA

C
K

BI
N

BI
C

YC
LE

 
RA

C
K

BI
C

YC
LE

 
RA

C
K

BI
C

YC
LE

 
RA

C
K

BI
N

BI
N

BI
N

BI
N

BI
N

BI
N

F
F

L 
16

.4
20

F
F

L 
16

.6
50

F
F

L 
16

.5
45

BI
C

YC
LE

 
RA

C
K

4.
9 

m
4.

9 
m

4.
9 

m
4.

9 
m

4.
6 

m

R
L 

16
.7

20

R
L 

16
.9

90

R
L 

16
.8

90 BI
C

YC
LE

 
RA

C
K

10
0

0

F
F

L 
16

.4
20

F
F

L 
16

.4
20

F
F

L 
16

.4
20

(3
0*

 1
20

L 
BI

NS
)

BI
C

YC
LE

 
RA

C
K

BI
C

YC
LE

 
RA

C
K

BI
C

YC
LE

 
RA

C
K

BI
C

YC
LE

 
RA

C
K

BI
C

YC
LE

 
RA

C
K

SY
D

N
EY

 L
O

C
A

L 
EN

VI
R

O
N

M
EN

TA
L 

PL
A

N
 2

01
2

PA
R

T 
7 

D
IV

IS
IO

N
 1

 C
A

R
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 A

N
C

IL
LA

R
Y 

TO
 O

TH
ER

 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T

7.
5 

  R
ES

ID
EN

TI
AL

 F
LA

T 
BU

IL
D

IN
G

S,
 D

U
AL

 O
C

C
U

PA
N

C
IE

S 
AN

D
 M

U
LT

I D
W

EL
LI

N
G

 H
O

U
SI

N
G

(1
)  

TH
E 

M
AX

IM
U

M
 N

U
M

BE
R

 O
F 

C
AR

 P
AR

KI
N

G
 S

PA
C

ES
 F

O
R

 R
ES

ID
EN

TI
AL

 F
LA

T 
BU

IL
D

IN
G

S,
 D

U
AL

 
O

C
C

U
PA

N
C

IE
S 

AN
D

 M
U

LT
I D

W
EL

LI
N

G
 H

O
U

SI
N

G
 IS

 A
S 

FO
LL

O
W

S—
(B

)  
O

N
 L

AN
D

 IN
 C

AT
EG

O
R

Y 
B—

(I)
  F

O
R

 E
AC

H
 S

TU
D

IO
 D

W
EL

LI
N

G
—

0.
2 

SP
AC

ES
, A

N
D

(II
)  

FO
R

 E
AC

H
 1

 B
ED

R
O

O
M

 D
W

EL
LI

N
G

—
0.

4 
SP

AC
ES

, A
N

D
(II

I) 
 F

O
R

 E
AC

H
 2

 B
ED

R
O

O
M

 D
W

EL
LI

N
G

—
0.

8 
SP

AC
ES

, A
N

D
(IV

)  
FO

R
 E

AC
H

 3
 O

R
 M

O
R

E 
BE

D
R

O
O

M
 D

W
EL

LI
N

G
—

1.
1 

SP
AC

ES

N
O

. O
F 

D
W

EL
LI

N
G

3 
B

ED
R

O
O

M
 

2 
B

ED
R

O
O

M
 

4*
0.

8=
3.

2 
SP

AC
ES

10
*1

.1
=1

1 
SP

AC
ES

R
EQ

. P
A

R
K

IN
G

 R
A

TE
S

TO
TA

L 
3.

2+
11

=1
4.

2 
SP

AC
ES

C
O

M
PI

ES

SY
D

N
EY

 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
C

O
N

TR
O

L 
PL

A
N

 2
01

2
3.

11
.3

 B
IK

E 
PA

R
K

IN
G

 A
N

D
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TE
D

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S

R
ES

ID
EN

TI
AL

 A
C

C
O

M
M

O
D

AT
IO

N
 

1 
PE

R
 D

W
EL

LI
N

G
   

   
   

 1
 V

IS
IT

O
R

 S
PA

C
E 

PE
R

 1
0 

D
W

EL
LI

N
G

LE
G

EN
D

BA
TT

ER
Y 

PO
W

ER
 B

AN
K/

 C
H

AR
G

E 
ST

AT
IO

N
 (T

ES
LA

)

M
S

B
M

AI
N

 S
W

IT
CH

 B
O

AR
D

D
O

W
N 

PI
PE

D
P

 

D
RA

IN
 O

U
TL

ET
D

O

R
ET

AI
NI

N
G

 W
AL

L
R

W
 

EX
IS

TI
NG

E
X

EQ
U

AL
E

Q

FL
O

O
R 

W
AS

TE
F

W

FI
N

IS
H

ED
 F

LO
O

R 
LE

VE
L

F
F

L

R
AI

N
 W

AT
ER

 O
U

TL
ET

R
W

O

G
EN

ER
A

L 
N

O
TE

S

W
A

LL
 T

YP
ES

:
-E

X
TE

RN
AL

 W
AL

LS
 T

O
 B

E
 2

00
M

M
 C

O
N

CR
ET

E 
W

A
LL

, 
C

EM
E

NT
 R

EN
D

ER
E

D 
A

ND
 P

AI
N

T 
AS

 S
PE

C
IF

IE
D

 IN
 T

HE
 

FI
N

IS
H

ES
 S

CH
ED

U
LE

. M
U

S
T 

BE
 N

O
N-

C
O

M
B

US
TI

B
LE

.

-A
LL

 IN
TE

R
N

AL
 W

A
LL

S 
TO

 B
E

 1
10

M
M

 T
IM

BE
R 

ST
U

D
 W

A
LL

S.
M

U
ST

 B
E 

N
O

N
-C

O
M

B
US

TI
BL

E 
W

HE
R

E 
R

EQ
U

IR
ED

 T
O

 B
E 

FI
R

E-
R

ES
IS

TI
N

G
.

P
R

H
S

PE
RM

AN
E

NT
LY

 F
IX

ED
 R

A
D

IA
N

T 
H

EA
T 

AT
TE

N
UA

TI
O

N
 S

C
R

EE
NS

P
O

S
PR

IV
AT

E 
O

PE
N

 S
PA

CE

D
E

R
E

K
  R

A
IT

H
B

Y
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
U

R
E

in
fo

@
de

re
kr

ai
th

by
.c

om
.a

u 
   

   
   

 

C
lie

nt
:

D
O

 N
O

T
 S

C
A

L
E

 O
F

F
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

. 
W

O
R

K
 T

O
 F

IG
U

R
E

D
 D

IM
E

N
S

IO
N

S
 O

N
L

Y
. 

P
ro

je
ct

:

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 T
IT

L
E

S
ca

le
:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o.

D
ra

w
n/

C
he

ck
ed

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
.

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

T 
:  

( 0
 2

 ) 
 9

 5
 1

 8
  3

 5
 6

 3
   

  A
 B

 N
 : 

6 
1 

6 
1 

3 
1 

7 
4 

0 
2 

0

4
4

3
 P

A
R

R
A

M
A

T
T

A
 R

O
A

D
,

L 
E

 I
 C

 H
 H

 A
 R

 D
 T

   
N

 S
 W

   
2

 0
 4

 0

D
A

 S
U

B
M

IS
S

IO
N

D
at

e:

A1 ORIGINAL SIZE

Ar
ch

ite
ct

  #
74

69
A

L
L

 D
IM

E
N

S
IO

N
S

 A
R

E
 T

O
 B

E
 C

O
N

F
IR

M
E

D
 O

N
 S

IT
E

 P
R

IO
R

 T
O

 C
O

M
M

E
N

C
E

M
E

N
T

 O
F

 
W

O
R

K
. R

E
P

O
R

T
 A

N
Y

 D
IS

C
R

E
P

A
N

C
IE

S
 T

O
 T

H
E

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

. 
N

O
M

IN
A

T
E

D
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
 

D
E

R
E

K
 R

A
IT

H
B

Y
 R

E
G

: 7
4

69
 C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T 
D

R
A

 (
A

U
S

) 
P

T
Y

 L
T

D

1
:2

0
0@

A
3

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l A
s 

in
d

ic
at

e
d@

A
1

B
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

 P
LA

N

20
07

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
IA

L
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

M
R

 D
A

V
ID

 F
IN

D
LA

Y

A
L 

/
D

R

0
4

/2
02

0

0
2

1
5

-1
7

 W
il

li
a

m
 S

tr
e

et
,

A
le

xa
n

d
ri

a
 2

0
1

5

T
O

W
N

P
LA

N
N

IN
G

A
B

C
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
S

H
O

P
 4

/5
0

0 
E

LI
Z

A
B

E
T

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T
,

S
U

R
R

Y
 H

IL
LS

 N
S

W
 2

0
10

(0
2)

 9
31

0
 4

97
9

an
th

o
ny

@
a

bc
pl

a
n.

co
m

.a
u

B
C

A

D
E

S
IG

N
 C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

C
E

 P
T

Y
 L

T
D

S
H

O
P

 2
/3

5
 B

U
C

K
IN

G
H

A
M

 S
T

R
E

E
T

S
U

R
R

Y
 H

IL
LS

 N
S

W
 2

01
0

(0
2)

 8
39

9
 3

70
7

sy
dn

e
y@

de
si

g
nc

o
nf

id
e

nc
e

.c
o

m

H
Y

D
R

A
U

LI
C T

A
A

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

IN
G

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

 2
01

/2
5

F
A

L
C

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 C
R

O
W

S
 N

E
S

T
 N

S
W

20
65

04
11

77
87

99
ta

ae
ng

in
ee

rs
@

g
m

ai
l.c

o
m

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E C
O

N
Z

E
P

T
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

S
S

U
IT

E
1

01
/ 5

06
 M

IL
L

E
R

 S
T

,
C

A
M

M
E

R
A

Y
 N

S
W

 2
06

2

(0
2)

9
92

2
 5

31
2

e
nq

ur
ie

s@
co

nz
ep

t.
ne

t.
au

B
A

S
IX

G
R

A
D

W
E

LL
 C

O
N

S
U

LT
IN

G
P

O
 B

O
X

 8
1

9 
B

O
W

R
A

L
 N

S
W

25
76

04
0

89
6

41
3

9
da

vi
d@

g
ra

d
w

el
lc

on
su

lti
ng

.c
o

m

1
 : 

10
0

B
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

1

FI
N

IS
H

ES
 L

EG
EN

D

Sy
m

bo
l

Ty
pe

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

BL
1

Ty
pe

: W
al

l F
in

is
he

s
C

ha
rc

oa
l P

ow
de

r C
oa

te
d 

Ba
lu

st
ra

de
BW

Ty
pe

: W
al

l F
in

is
he

s
Ex

po
se

d 
re

d 
br

ic
k 

w
al

l t
o 

cl
ie

nt
's 

ch
oi

ce
C

CR
Fl

oo
r F

in
is

h
Po

lis
he

d 
co

nc
re

te
 fl

oo
rin

g
C

PT
Ty

pe
: F

lo
or

 F
in

is
h

D
ye

d 
ny

lo
n 

ca
rp

et
G

L
W

in
do

w 
& 

D
oo

r T
yp

e
C

le
ar

 g
la

ss
 lo

ur
ve

s 
w

ith
 c

ha
rc

oa
l p

ow
de

r c
oa

te
d 

fra
m

e
M

L
M

et
al

 F
ra

m
e

Ch
ar

co
al

 P
ow

de
r C

oa
te

d 
Sc

re
en

s
M

R
R

oo
f F

in
is

h
Co

lo
ur

bo
nd

 'M
on

um
en

t' 
or

 s
ilim

ar
P1

W
al

l F
in

ish
D

ul
ux

 'N
at

ur
al

 w
hi

te
' o

r s
im

ila
r

P2
W

al
l F

in
ish

D
ul

ux
 'T

ra
nq

ui
l R

et
re

at
' o

r s
im

ila
r

T1
Ty

pe
: F

lo
or

 F
in

is
h

Ex
te

rn
al

 b
al

co
ny

 ti
le

s
T2

Ty
pe

: F
lo

or
 F

in
is

h
W

et
 a

re
a 

til
es

TB
Fl

oo
r F

in
ish

O
ak

 ti
m

be
r f

lo
or

in
g

TP
Ty

pe
: W

al
l F

in
ish

Ti
m

be
r p

er
go

la
W

1
Ty

pe
:W

in
do

w 
Fr

am
e

C
ha

rc
oa

l P
ow

de
r C

oa
te

d 
W

in
do

w
 F

ra
m

e

R
ev

.
D

at
e

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

B
y

1
10

/2
0

D
A

 S
U

B
M

IS
S

IO
N

A
L

2
02

/2
1

IS
S

U
E

 T
O

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

A
L

3
03

/2
1

FO
R

 C
O

O
R

D
IN

A
TI

O
N

A
L

4
04

/2
1

IS
S

U
E

 T
O

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

A
L

46



16.24

19
.4

1

19.27

19.1819
.3

2

19.04

19
.04

18.94

19
.0

9

19
.0

6

18.91

19
.0

7

19
.1

3

19
.2

1
19

.3
7

19
.4

1

19
.4

6

19.39

19
.3

0

19.29

19.25

19.22

19
.5

0

17.30

16
.9

8
17

.4
6

17
.1

3
16

.8
9

16
.8

2

16
.8

5

16.75

16.70

16.70

16.55

16
.6

7

16
.4

3

16.25

16
.0

8

16
.2

2

16
.4

5
16

.6
8

16
.8

6

16
.8

9

24
.4

3

INV1

INV1

INV1

INV1

INV5

INV5

Stre
et

 L
ig

ht

KB
/O

ut
le

t

KB/Outlet

KB/O
utle

tK
B/O

utle
t

KB/Outlet

KB/O
utle

t

KB/O
ut

le
t

KB/Outlet

C
O

N
C

P
A

T
H

V
C

 2
5°

0
8'

1
5

"

 2
05

°0
5

'2
5

"

 3
5.

74
5

 T
itl

e

114°31'30"

 3
6.

20
5

19
.0

8
19

.1
0

19
.4

3
19

.4
2 19
.3

719
.3

9
19

.3
9

16
.0

7

GAS
GAS

GAS
TEL

TE
L TEL

SV

TE
L

V
C

C
O

N
C

  P
A

T
H

C
O

N
C

  P
A

T
H

C
O

N
C

  P
A

T
H

C
o

n
c

&
   

G
u

tt
er

K
er

b

C
O

N
C

P
A

T
H

C
O

N
C

P
A

T
H

C
O

N
C

P
A

T
H

SM
S

17
.1

8

P
P

PARA25
.66

CL1
CL1

CL1
CL1

CL1
CL1

CL1
CL1

CL2
CL2

CL2
CL2

CL2
CL2

19
.1

0

19
.1

4
19

.2
1

19
.2

6
19

.3
2

19
.3

4
19

.4
0

19
.4

4

15
.8

8
16

.1
7

16
.3

2
16

.6
0

16
.8

0
17

.1
2

16

16
.5

19

S
P

 9
4

06
1

U
P

U
P

U
P

D
N

U
P

U
P

D
N

D
N

U
P

U
P D

N

U
P

D
N

D
N

D
N

D
N

D
N

D
N

D
N

D
N

1 0
9

A
A

B
B

(C.O.S)

203096008700

(C.O.S)

10270

2 0
9

EX
. D

R
IV

EW
AY

 T
O

 B
E

 R
E

M
O

V
ED

 
AN

D
 N

EW
 G

RA
S

S 
AN

D
 K

ER
B 

TO
 

C
O

UN
CI

L'
S 

SP
E

CS
.

PR
O

P
O

S
ED

 N
EW

 
DR

IV
E

W
AY

 B
E

LO
W

 

T
14

T
12

T
10

T
9

19
 W

IL
LI

A
M

 S
TR

EE
T

TH
R

EE
-S

TO
R

EY
 

TO
W

N
H

O
U

SE
S

M
ET

A
L 

R
O

O
F

11
-1

3 
W

IL
LI

A
M

 S
TR

EE
T

TH
R

EE
-S

TO
R

EY
 

TO
W

N
H

O
U

SE
S

M
ET

A
L 

R
O

O
F

W
 I

 L
 L

 I
 A

 M
  

  
  

L
 A

 N
 E

 

W
 I

 L
 L

 I
 A

 M
  

  
  

   
S

 T
 R

 E
 E

 T

T1

T1
T1

T1
T1

T1
T1

T1

T1
T1

T1
T1

T1
T1

T1

F

F

F

T
8

KITCHEND
IN

IN
G

LI
VI

N
G EN

TR
Y

STAIRS 
FROM BF

TE
R

R
A

C
E

S
TA

IR
S

 
TO

 F
F

KITCHEN

D
IN

IN
G

LI
VI

N
G

EN
TR

Y

STAIRS 
FROM BF

TE
R

R
A

C
E

S
TA

IR
S

 
TO

 F
F

KITCHEN

D
IN

IN
G

LI
VI

N
G

EN
TR

Y

STAIRS 
FROM BF

TE
R

R
A

C
E

S
TA

IR
S

 
TO

 F
F

BBQ

BBQ

BBQ

F

KITCHEND
IN

IN
G

LI
VI

N
G EN

TR
Y

STAIRS 
FROM BF

TE
R

R
A

C
E

S
TA

IR
S

 
TO

 F
F

BBQ

F

KITCHEN

D
IN

IN
G

LI
VI

N
G

EN
TR

Y

STAIRS 
FROM BF

TE
R

R
A

C
E

S
TA

IR
S

 
TO

 F
F

BBQ

F

KITCHEND
IN

IN
G

LI
VI

N
G EN

TR
Y

STAIRS 
FROM BF

TE
R

R
A

C
E

S
TA

IR
S

 
TO

 F
F

BBQ

G
R

EE
N

 
W

A
LL

G
R

EE
N

 
W

A
LL

G
R

EE
N

 
W

A
LL

G
R

EE
N

 
W

A
LL

G
R

EE
N

 
W

A
LL

G
R

EE
N

 
W

A
LL

G
R

EE
N

 
W

A
LL

G
R

EE
N

 
W

A
LL

G
R

EE
N

 
W

A
LL

G
R

EE
N

 
W

A
LL

G
R

EE
N

 
W

A
LL

G
R

EE
N

 
W

A
LL

F
F

L 
20

.0
25

F
F

L 
20

.0
25

F
F

L 
20

.0
25

F
F

L 
20

.0
25

F
F

L 
20

.0
25

F
F

L 
20

.0
25

TB
TB

TB
TB

TB
TB

M
SB

M
SB

M
SB

M
SB

M
SB

M
SB

R
EF

ER
 T

O
 L

AN
DS

C
A

PE
 

AR
C

H
IT

EC
T'

S
 D

RA
W

IN
G

S
 &

 S
P

EC
.

1 1

2 2

3 3

4 4

5 5

6 6

PR
O

P
O

S
ED

 P
LA

N
TS

 R
EF

E
R 

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

DE
SI

G
NE

R'
S 

D
E

TA
IL

S
 &

 S
P

EC
.

M
AI

L
M

AI
L

M
AI

L
M

AI
L

M
AI

L
M

AI
L

(c
.o

.s
)

52
1

5
51

1
5

51
1

5
51

1
5

51
1

5
51

1
5

(c
.o

.s
)

49
5

5

(c
.o

.s
)

55
2

5
51

1
5

51
1

5
51

1
5

51
1

5
51

1
5

(c
.o

.s
)

51
0

0

BOUNDARY

BOUNDARY

F

F

F

F

F

TE
R

R
A

C
E

LI
VI

N
G

D
IN

IN
G

KITCHEN

S
TA

IR
S

 
TO

 F
F

ST
AI

RS
 

FR
O

M
 B

F

TE
R

R
A

C
E

LI
VI

N
G

D
IN

IN
G

KITCHEN
S

TA
IR

S
 

TO
 F

F

ST
AI

RS
 

FR
O

M
 B

F

P

TE
R

R
A

C
E

LI
VI

N
G

D
IN

IN
G

KITCHEN

S
TA

IR
S

 
TO

 F
F

ST
AI

RS
 

FR
O

M
 B

F

P

TE
R

R
A

C
E

LI
VI

N
G

D
IN

IN
G

KITCHEN

S
TA

IR
S

 
TO

 F
F

ST
AI

RS
 

FR
O

M
 B

F

TE
R

R
A

C
E

LI
VI

N
G

D
IN

IN
G

KITCHEN

S
TA

IR
S

 
TO

 F
F

ST
AI

RS
 

FR
O

M
 B

F

TE
R

R
A

C
E

LI
VI

N
G

D
IN

IN
G

KITCHEN

S
TA

IR
S

 
TO

 F
F

ST
AI

RS
 

FR
O

M
 B

F

P
P

P
P

TE
R

R
A

C
E

LI
VI

N
G

D
IN

IN
G

KITCHEN

S
TA

IR
S

 
TO

 F
F

ST
AI

RS
 

FR
O

M
 B

F

P

B
A

L
B

A
L

B
A

L
B

A
L

B
A

L
B

A
L

B
A

L

T
1

T
2

T
4

T
6

T
7

F

BBQ

BBQ

BBQ

BBQ

BBQ

BBQ

BOUNDARY

BOUNDARY

D
IN

IN
G

LI
VI

N
G

STAIRS 
FROM BF

TE
R

R
A

C
E

S
TA

IR
S 

TO
 F

F

BBQ

G
R

EE
N

 
W

A
LL

G
R

EE
N

 
W

A
LL

M
AI

L

BBQ

FI
R

E 
SC

R
EE

N
 T

O
 

BC
A 

RE
PO

RT

FI
R

E 
SC

R
EE

N
 T

O
 

BC
A 

RE
PO

RT

F

T1
T1

T1
T1

T1
T1

PL
AN

TE
RB

O
X

P
LA

N
TE

R
BO

X
PL

AN
TE

RB
O

X
PL

AN
TE

R
BO

X
PL

AN
TE

R
BO

X
PL

AN
TE

R
BO

X

TB

TB
TB

TB
TB

TB
TB

F
F

L 
19

.6
20

F
F

L 
19

.6
20

F
F

L 
19

.6
20

F
F

L 
19

.6
20

F
F

L 
19

.6
20

F
F

L 
19

.6
20

F
F

L 
19

.6
20

T
3

CO
NC

RE
TE

 S
EA

TI
NG

 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 S

EA
TI

NG
 

CO
NC

RE
TE

 S
EA

TI
NG

 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 S

EA
TI

NG
 

CO
NC

RE
TE

 S
EA

TI
NG

 
CO

NC
RE

TE
 S

EA
TI

NG
 

C
O

NC
RE

TE
 S

E
AT

IN
G

IN
TE

R
NA

L 
TE

R
RA

C
E 

D
ET

AI
LS

 &
 

SP
EC

S.
 R

E
FE

R
 T

O
 IN

TE
R

IO
R

 
DE

SI
G

N
ER

'S
 D

R
AW

IN
G

S 

C
O

NC
RE

TE
 S

EA
TI

N
G

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E 
SE

AT
IN

G
C

O
NC

RE
TE

 S
EA

TI
N

G
C

O
NC

RE
TE

 S
EA

TI
N

G
C

O
N

C
R

ET
E 

S
EA

TI
N

G
C

O
N

C
R

ET
E 

S
EA

TI
N

G
C

O
NC

RE
TE

 S
EA

TI
N

G

F

KITCHEN
FI

R
E 

SC
R

EE
N

 T
O

 
BC

A 
RE

PO
RT

EN
TR

Y
M

SB

(A
D

A
PT

A
B

LE
U

N
IT

)

DR
AI

N
DR

AI
N

DR
AI

N
DR

AI
N

DR
AI

N
DR

AI
N

DR
AI

N

dp

R
W

O

DR
AI

N

R
W

O

DR
AI

N

R
W

O

DR
AI

N

R
W

O

DR
AI

N

R
W

O

DR
AI

N

R
W

O

DR
AI

N

R
W

O

DR
AI

N

R
W

O

DR
AI

N

R
W

O

DR
AI

N

R
W

O

DR
AI

N

R
W

O

DR
AI

N

R
W

O

DR
AI

N

R
W

O

DR
AI

N

R
W

O

DR
AI

N

dp
dp

dp
dp

dp
dp

R
W

O
R

W
O

R
W

O
R

W
O

R
W

O
R

W
O

R
W

O

E
X.

 D
R

IV
EW

AY
 T

O
 B

E
 R

E
M

O
V

ED
 

A
ND

 N
EW

 G
R

AS
S 

AN
D

 K
ER

B 
TO

 
C

O
U

N
C

IL
'S

 S
PE

CS
.

PL
AN

TE
RB

O
X

dp
dp

dp
dp

dp
dp

(C.O.S)

10045 8700 9600

(C.O.S)

2250

ST
EP

ST
EP

ST
EP

ST
EP

T
11

T
5

H
YD

RA
N

T 
TO

 
FU

R
TH

ER
 D

E
TA

IL
S

T
13

F
F

L 
19

.5
20

F
F

L 
19

.5
20

F
F

L 
19

.5
20

F
F

L 
19

.5
20

F
F

L 
19

.5
20

F
F

L 
19

.5
20

F
F

L 
19

.5
20

F
F

L 
20

.0
25

R
L 

19
.4

05
R

L 
19

.4
05

R
L 

19
.4

05
R

L 
19

.4
05

R
L 

19
.4

05
R

L 
19

.3
25

R
L 

19
.3

25

F
F

L 
19

.9
25

F
F

L 
19

.9
25

F
F

L 
19

.9
25

F
F

L 
19

.9
25

F
F

L 
19

.9
25

F
F

L 
19

.9
25

F
F

L 
19

.9
25

PL
A

N
TE

RB
O

X
PL

AN
TE

RB
O

X
PL

A
N

TE
RB

O
X

PL
AN

TE
RB

O
X

P
LA

N
TE

R
BO

X
PL

AN
TE

RB
O

X
PL

AN
TE

RB
O

X

dp

SY
D

N
EY

 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
C

O
N

TR
O

L 
PL

A
N

 2
01

2
4.

1.
1 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
EI

G
H

T
(1

) D
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
s 

no
t t

o 
ex

ce
ed

 th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 n
um

be
r o

f s
to

re
ys

 a
s 

sh
ow

n 
on

 th
e 

Bu
ild

in
g 

he
ig

ht
 in

 s
to

re
ys

 m
ap

. T
he

 m
ax

im
um

 m
ay

 o
nl

y 
be

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
w

he
re

 it
 c

an
 b

e 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
d 

th
at

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t:
(a

) r
ei

nf
or

ce
s 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

an
d 

de
si

re
d 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

d 
ch

ar
ac

te
r;

(b
) i

s 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r, 
sc

al
e 

an
d 

fo
rm

 o
f s

ur
ro

un
di

ng
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 
in

 h
er

ita
ge

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
ar

ea
s;

 a
nd

(c
) d

oe
s 

no
t d

et
ra

ct
 fr

om
 th

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
r, 

an
d 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
bu

ild
in

g.
(2

) T
he

 s
tre

et
 fr

on
ta

ge
 h

ei
gh

t o
f a

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
m

us
t n

ot
 e

xc
ee

d 
th

e 
m

ax
im

um
he

ig
ht

 s
ho

w
n 

fo
r t

he
 s

tre
et

 fr
on

ta
ge

 o
n 

th
e 

Bu
ild

in
g 

st
re

et
 fr

on
ta

ge
 h

ei
gh

t i
n

st
or

ey
s 

m
ap

.
(3

) W
he

re
 th

e 
Bu

ild
in

g 
st

re
et

 fr
on

ta
ge

 h
ei

gh
t i

n 
st

or
ey

s 
m

ap
 d

oe
s 

no
t 

in
di

ca
te

th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 h
ei

gh
t, 

th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 s
tre

et
 fr

on
ta

ge
 h

ei
gh

t i
s 

to
 g

en
er

al
ly

be
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

st
re

et
 fr

on
ta

ge
 h

ei
gh

ts
 o

f a
dj

ac
en

t b
ui

ld
in

gs
, o

r t
he

pr
ed

om
in

an
t s

tre
et

 fr
on

ta
ge

 h
ei

gh
t i

n 
st

or
ey

s 
in

 th
e 

vi
ci

ni
ty

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d

bu
ild

in
g.

4.
1.

2 
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

ET
B

A
C

K
S

(1
) F

ro
nt

 s
et

ba
ck

s 
ar

e 
to

 b
e 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 w

ith
 th

e 
Bu

ild
in

g 
se

tb
ac

ks
 m

ap
. W

he
re

no
 fr

on
t s

et
ba

ck
 is

 s
ho

w
n 

on
 th

e 
m

ap
, t

he
 fr

on
t s

et
ba

ck
 is

 to
 b

e 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

ed
om

in
an

t s
et

tin
g 

in
 th

e 
st

re
et

.

4.
1.

3.
5 

PR
IV

A
TE

 O
PE

N
 S

PA
C

E
(1

) P
riv

at
e 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
 a

t t
he

 g
ro

un
d 

le
ve

l i
s 

to
 h

av
e 

a 
m

in
im

um
 a

re
a 

of
 1

6s
qm

an
d 

m
in

im
um

 d
im

en
si

on
 o

f 3
m

.
(2

) P
riv

at
e 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
 is

 to
 b

e 
di

re
ct

ly
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
fro

m
 th

e 
liv

in
g 

ar
ea

 o
f t

he
dw

el
lin

g 
an

d 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 s
er

vi
ng

 a
s 

an
 e

xt
en

si
on

 o
f t

he
 li

vi
ng

 a
re

a

4.
1.

7.
1 

FR
O

N
T 

FE
N

C
ES

(1
) F

ro
nt

 fe
nc

es
 a

re
 to

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 w
he

re
 it

 is
 a

 p
re

do
m

in
an

t f
ea

tu
re

 o
f a

 s
tre

et
fro

nt
ag

e 
w

ith
in

 a
 s

tre
et

 b
lo

ck
.

(2
) F

ro
nt

 fe
nc

es
 a

re
 to

 a
lig

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
fro

nt
 p

ro
pe

rty
 b

ou
nd

ar
y 

or
 re

fle
ct

 th
e

pr
ed

om
in

an
t f

en
ce

 a
lig

nm
en

t a
lo

ng
 th

e 
st

re
et

.
(3

) H
ei

gh
t, 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 a

nd
 a

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
al

 d
es

ig
n 

an
d 

st
yl

in
g 

of
 n

ew
 fe

nc
es

 m
us

t
be

 c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 fe

nc
es

 th
at

 w
er

e 
ty

pi
ca

l o
f t

he
 p

er
io

d 
in

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
st

re
et

w
as

 p
re

do
m

in
an

tly
 d

ev
el

op
ed

, o
r p

er
io

d 
th

e 
dw

el
lin

g 
w

as
 b

ui
lt.

(4
) T

he
 h

ei
gh

t o
f t

he
 fe

nc
e 

ab
ov

e 
fo

ot
pa

th
 le

ve
l e

xc
lu

di
ng

 th
e 

he
ig

ht
 o

f a
ny

re
ta

in
in

g 
w

al
l a

nd
 a

s 
sh

ow
n 

in
 F

ig
ur

e 
4.

19
 is

 to
 b

e:
(a

) 0
.9

m
 fo

r s
ol

id
 m

as
on

ry
 fe

nc
es

; a
nd

(b
) 1

.2
m

 o
n 

op
en

 o
r p

ar
tia

lly
 tr

an
sp

ar
en

t s
ty

le
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

pa
lis

ad
e 

or
 p

ic
ke

t
fe

nc
es

, a
nd

 a
ny

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

po
st

s 
an

d 
pi

er
s 

ar
e 

to
 b

e 
no

 h
ig

he
r t

ha
n 

1.
5m

.
(5

) T
he

 h
ei

gh
t o

f t
he

 fe
nc

e 
m

us
t s

te
p 

to
 fo

llo
w

 a
ny

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 le

ve
l a

lo
ng

 th
e

st
re

et
 b

ou
nd

ar
y.

(6
) F

en
ci

ng
 is

 to
 b

e 
lo

ca
te

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

si
gh

t l
in

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

pe
de

st
ria

ns
 a

nd
ve

hi
cl

es
 e

xi
tin

g 
th

e 
si

te
 a

re
 n

ot
 o

bs
cu

re
d 

an
d 

so
 g

at
es

 d
o 

no
t o

pe
n 

ov
er

 th
e

pu
bl

ic
 ro

ad
w

ay
 o

r f
oo

tp
at

h.

M
S

B
M

AI
N

 S
W

IT
CH

 B
O

AR
D

D
O

W
N 

PI
PE

D
P

 

D
RA

IN
 O

U
TL

ET
D

O

R
ET

AI
NI

N
G

 W
AL

L
R

W
 

EX
IS

TI
NG

E
X

EQ
U

A
L

E
Q

FL
O

O
R 

W
AS

TE
F

W

FI
N

IS
H

ED
 F

LO
O

R 
LE

VE
L

F
F

L

R
AI

N
 W

AT
ER

 O
U

TL
ET

R
W

O

G
EN

ER
A

L 
N

O
TE

S

W
A

LL
 T

YP
ES

:
-E

X
TE

RN
AL

 W
AL

LS
 T

O
 B

E
 2

00
M

M
 C

O
N

CR
ET

E 
W

A
LL

, 
C

EM
E

NT
 R

EN
D

ER
E

D 
A

ND
 P

AI
N

T 
AS

 S
PE

C
IF

IE
D

 IN
 T

HE
 

FI
N

IS
H

ES
 S

CH
ED

U
LE

. M
U

S
T 

BE
 N

O
N-

C
O

M
B

US
TI

B
LE

.

-A
LL

 IN
TE

R
N

AL
 W

AL
LS

 T
O

 B
E

 1
10

M
M

 T
IM

BE
R 

ST
U

D
 W

A
LL

S.
M

U
ST

 B
E 

N
O

N
-C

O
M

B
US

TI
BL

E 
W

HE
R

E 
R

EQ
U

IR
ED

 T
O

 B
E 

FI
R

E-
R

ES
IS

TI
N

G
.

P
R

H
S

PE
RM

AN
E

NT
LY

 F
IX

ED
 R

A
D

IA
N

T 
H

EA
T 

AT
TE

N
UA

TI
O

N
 S

C
R

EE
NS

P
O

S
PR

IV
AT

E 
O

PE
N

 S
PA

CE

A
C

O
U

ST
IC

 N
O

TE
S

R
EC

O
M

M
E

N
D

ED
 P

AR
TI

TI
O

N
 W

AL
L 

SY
ST

EM

PA
RT

IT
IO

N
C

O
NS

TR
UC

TI
O

N/
 D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

AI
RB

O
RN

E 
SO

U
ND

IM
PA

CT
 S

O
U

ND

FL
O

O
R

SE
PA

R
AT

IN
G

 S
O

U'
S,

 O
R

 A
N

 S
O

U 
FR

O
M

 
A 

PL
A

NT
 R

O
O

M
, L

IF
T 

SH
AF

T,
 

ST
AI

R
W

AY
, P

UB
LI

C
 C

O
R

R
ID

O
R

, P
U

BL
IC

 
LO

BB
Y 

O
R

 T
H

E 
LI

K
E,

 O
R

 P
AR

T 
O

F 
A 

D
IF

FE
RE

NT
 C

LA
SS

IF
IC

A
TI

O
N

 

R
w+

 C
tr 

≥
50

Ln
, w

 ≤
62

IN
TE

R
-

TE
N

AN
C

Y 
W

A
LL

R
w+

 C
tr 

≥
50

N
O

T
A

PP
LI

C
AB

LE

D
O

O
R

LO
C

AT
ED

 IN
 A

 W
AL

L 
SE

PA
R

TI
NG

 A
N

 
SO

U 
FR

O
M

 A
 S

TA
IR

W
AY

, P
UB

LI
C

 
C

O
RR

ID
O

R
, P

U
BL

IC
 L

O
BB

Y
 O

R
 T

H
E

 L
IK

E

R
w 

≥
30

N
O

T 
A

PP
LI

C
AB

LE

SE
RV

IC
ES

D
UC

T,
 S

O
IL

, W
A

ST
E 

O
R

 W
A

TE
R

 S
U

PP
LY

 
P

IP
ES

 L
O

C
A

TE
D

 IN
 A

 W
A

LL
 O

R
 F

LO
O

R
 

C
AV

IT
Y 

AN
D

 S
E

RV
ES

 O
R

 P
AS

SE
S 

TH
R

O
U

G
H

 M
O

R
E 

TH
AN

 O
N

E 
S

O
U

 
(IN

C
LU

D
IN

G
 A

 S
TO

RM
W

AT
ER

 P
IP

E)

N
O

T 
A

PP
LI

C
AB

LE
R

w+
 C

tr 
≥

40
(H

A
BI

TA
BL

E
)

R
w+

C
tr 

≥
25

 
(O

TH
ER

)

R
EC

O
M

M
EN

DE
D

 P
A

RT
IT

IO
N

 F
LO

O
R

 / 
C

EI
LI

N
G

 S
Y

ST
EM

S

C
AR

PE
T 

FL
O

O
R

S 
-S

TA
N

DA
R

D 
CA

R
PE

T 
U

ND
ER

LA
YS

 7
m

m
 T

HI
C

K 
O

VE
R 

& 
G

RE
AT

ER
 T

H
AN

 1
50

 m
m

 C
O

N
CR

ET
E

10
0 

m
m

 D
EE

P
 C

A
VI

TY
 B

E
NE

AT
H 

W
IT

H 
13

 m
m

 S
U

S
PE

N
D

ED
 P

LA
ST

ER
BO

AR
D 

C
EI

LI
N

G
 W

IL
L 

TY
PI

C
AL

LY
 P

R
O

VI
D

E 
AN

 L
'n

Tw
  ≤

40
.

12
5 

m
m

 C
O

NC
RE

TE
 P

AN
EL

, 2
0m

m
 

C
AV

IT
Y,

 6
4m

m
 S

TE
EL

 S
TU

D
S

, 7
0m

m
 

PO
LY

ES
TE

R 
IN

S
U

LA
TI

O
N

 &
 1

3m
m

 
C

EM
E

NT
 R

EN
D

ER
 T

O
 E

AC
H

 S
ID

E

D
IS

C
O

NT
IN

UO
U

S

20
0 

m
m

 C
O

NC
RE

TE
 P

AN
EL

, 1
3m

m
 

C
EM

E
NT

 R
EN

D
ER

 T
O

 E
AC

H
 S

ID
E

R
w+

 C
tr 

≥
50

C
O

M
M

O
N

 
W

A
LL

12
5 

m
m

 T
H

IC
K

 C
O

N
CR

E
TE

 P
A

NE
L

R
w 

≥
50

B
A

SI
X

N
O

TE
S

R
EF

ER
 T

O
 C

E
R

TI
FI

CA
TE

 F
O

R 
C

O
M

PL
E

TE
 D

ET
AI

LS
 &

 R
EQ

UI
RE

M
E

NT
S

TH
ER

M
AL

 S
PE

C
IF

IC
A

TI
O

N
S

1.
 P

R
O

VI
D

E
 E

X
TE

RN
A

L 
W

IN
D

O
W

S 
A

ND
 D

O
O

R
 S

YS
TE

M
S:

a)
 S

IN
G

LE
 L

O
W

 E
; A

LU
M

IN
IU

M
 F

R
AM

E;
 U

W
5.

4/
SH

G
C

W
0.

49
  F

O
R

 C
AS

EM
EN

T 
EN

TR
Y 

D
O

O
R

 (T
1,

T4
,T

5,
T8

,T
10

,T
11

,T
12

)
b)

 S
IN

G
LE

 L
O

W
 E

; A
LU

M
IN

IU
M

 F
R

AM
E;

 U
W

5.
4/

SH
G

C
W

0.
58

  F
O

R
 F

IX
E

D 
LO

UR
VE

S,
 S

LI
DI

N
G

 (T
1,

T4
,T

5,
T8

,T
10

,T
11

,T
12

)
c)

 S
IN

G
LE

 C
LE

AR
; A

LU
M

IN
IU

M
 F

R
AM

E;
 U

W
6.

7/
SH

G
C

W
0.

57
  F

O
R

 C
AS

EM
EN

T 
EN

TR
Y 

D
O

O
R

 (T
2,

T3
,T

6,
T7

,T
9,

T1
3,

T1
4)

d)
 S

IN
G

LE
 C

LE
AR

; A
LU

M
IN

IU
M

 F
R

AM
E;

 U
W

6.
7/

SH
G

C
W

0.
70

  F
O

R
 F

IX
E

D 
LO

UR
VE

S,
 S

LI
DI

N
G

 (T
2,

T3
,T

6,
T7

,T
9,

T1
3,

T1
4)

2.
 E

XT
ER

N
A

L 
W

A
LL

S:
 M

IN
. R

2.
5 

IN
SU

LA
TE

D
 M

E
TA

L 
C

LA
D

D
IN

G
 W

A
LL

; M
IN

. R
1.

5 
C

O
NC

RE
TE

 L
IN

ED
 W

AL
L 

& 
R

2.
5 

B
R

IC
K

 V
E

N
EE

R
 W

AL
L

3.
 IN

TE
R

N
AL

 W
AL

LS
: R

2.
5 

B
U

LK
 P

LA
ST

ER
BO

AR
D

 O
N

 S
TU

D
4.

 F
LO

O
R

S:
 M

IN
. R

4.
0 

IN
SU

LA
TI

O
N

 C
O

N
CR

ET
E 

FL
O

O
R

 A
BO

V
E 

G
AR

AG
E

 &
 M

IN
. R

1.
4 

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E 
FL

O
O

R 
W

H
ER

E 
O

PE
N

 B
E

LO
W

5.
 C

EI
LI

N
G

S
: R

4.
0 

B
U

LK
 P

LA
ST

ER
BO

AR
D

 B
E

LO
W

 M
E

TA
L 

D
EC

K
6.

 R
O

O
F:

 6
0 

m
m

 A
NT

IC
O

N
 (R

1.
3)

 M
E

TA
L 

D
EC

K 
R

O
O

F 
& 

80
 m

m
 P

IR
 O

R
 E

Q
U

IV
 (R

4.
0)

 C
O

N
C

R
ET

E 
R

O
O

F

W
AT

ER
TH

E
 A

PP
LI

C
AN

T 
M

U
ST

 :
1.

 P
LA

N
T 

IN
D

IG
EN

O
U

S 
O

R
 L

O
W

 W
AT

ER
 U

SE
 S

P
EC

IE
S 

O
F 

VE
G

E
TA

TI
O

N
 T

H
R

O
UG

H
O

U
T 

TH
E

 A
RE

A 
O

F 
LA

ND
 S

PE
C

FI
ED

 F
O

R
 T

H
E 

D
W

EL
LI

N
G

.
2.

 IN
ST

AL
L 

FI
X

TU
RE

S 
O

R
 A

P
PL

IA
NC

ES
 A

CC
O

R
D

IN
G

 R
A

TI
N

G
 S

PE
C

IF
IE

D
.

SH
O

W
ER

 H
EA

D
S

: 3
 S

TA
R

 (>
6 

B
UT

 <
=7

.5
L/

M
IN

); 
TO

IL
E

T 
FL

US
H

IN
G

 S
YS

TE
M

, K
IT

C
HE

N
 T

AP
S

AN
D

 B
A

TH
RO

O
M

 T
AP

S:
 4

 S
TA

R
; 

3.
 N

O
 H

O
T 

W
A

TE
R 

R
EC

IR
C

U
LA

TI
O

N
 S

Y
ST

EM
 O

R
 D

IV
ER

SI
O

N
 T

O
 B

E 
IN

ST
A

LL
E

D
;

EN
ER

G
Y

TH
E

 A
PP

LI
C

AN
T 

M
U

ST
:

1.
  I

NS
TA

LL
 H

O
T 

W
AT

ER
 S

Y
ST

EM
 A

S
 S

PE
CI

FI
E

D
; G

A
S 

IN
S

TA
NT

AN
EO

U
S

: 5
 S

TA
R

2.
  V

E
NT

IL
A

TI
O

N
 S

YS
TE

M
 A

S 
IN

D
IV

ID
U

AL
 F

AN
, D

U
CT

ED
 T

O
 F

AC
AD

E 
O

R
 R

O
O

F 
A

ND
 M

AN
UA

L 
S

W
IT

C
H

 O
N

/ O
FF

 F
O

R 
EA

C
H

 
BA

TH
R

O
O

M
,K

IT
C

HE
N

 A
N

D 
LA

U
ND

R
Y,

 A
CC

O
RD

IN
G

 S
PE

C
S

.
3.

 A
LL

 D
W

E
LL

IN
G

S 
TO

 IN
ST

AL
L 

1-
PH

AS
E 

AI
R

C
O

N
D

IT
IO

NI
N

G
 2

 S
TA

R 
ZO

N
E

DI
N

 L
IV

IN
G

 A
R

EA
S,

 B
ED

R
O

O
M

 A
R

EA
S 

FO
R 

C
O

O
LI

N
G

 A
N

D
 

H
EA

TI
N

G
.

4.
 T

1,
 T

2,
 T

6 
A

ND
 T

7 
H

AV
E 

O
NE

 B
AT

HR
O

O
M

 N
A

TU
R

A
LL

Y 
LI

T 
AN

D
 A

LL
 O

TH
ER

 D
W

EL
LI

N
G

S 
TO

 H
A

VE
 2

 B
A

TH
RO

O
M

S
 N

A
TU

RA
LL

Y 
LI

T.
5.

  I
NS

TA
LL

 'A
PP

LI
A

N
C

ES
 &

 O
TH

E
R 

EF
FI

C
IE

N
C

Y 
M

EA
SU

R
ES

' A
C

CO
R

DI
N

G
 T

A
BL

E 
SP

E
CS

.
G

A
S 

C
O

O
KT

O
P 

&
 E

LE
C

TR
IC

AL
 O

VE
N 

PR
IV

A
TE

 O
U

TD
O

O
R

 O
R

 U
N

S
HE

LT
ER

ED
 C

LO
TH

ES
 D

R
YI

NG
 L

IN
E

S

TH
ER

M
AL

 C
O

M
FO

RT
TH

E
 A

PP
LI

C
AN

T 
M

U
ST

:
1.

  C
O

NS
TR

UC
T 

A
CC

O
RD

IN
G

 T
H

E
 T

H
ER

M
AL

 S
P

EC
S.

 S
E

T 
O

U
T 

IN
 T

HE
 A

SS
ES

SO
R 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

E.
2.

  W
H

ER
E 

TH
ER

E 
IS

 A
N

 IN
-S

LA
B 

HE
AT

IN
G

 O
R

 C
O

O
LI

NG
 S

YS
TE

M
: I

N
ST

AL
L 

IN
SU

LA
TI

O
N

 W
IT

H
 A

N
 R

-V
AL

UE
 O

F 
N

O
T 

LE
SS

 T
H

A
N 

1.
0 

U
N

D
ER

N
EA

TH
 T

H
E 

SL
AB

 A
N

D 
AR

O
U

N
D

 T
H

E 
VE

RT
IC

AL
 E

D
G

E
S 

O
F 

TH
E 

PE
RI

M
ET

ER
 O

F 
TH

E
 S

LA
B;

 O
R

 O
N

 A
 S

US
PE

N
D

ED
 F

LO
O

R,
 

IN
S

TA
LL

 IN
SU

LA
TI

O
N

 W
IT

H
 A

N
 R

-V
A

LU
E 

O
F 

NO
T 

LE
SS

 T
H

AN
 1

.0
 U

N
DE

R
N

EA
TH

 T
H

E 
SL

AB
 A

N
D 

AR
O

U
ND

 T
H

E 
VE

RT
IC

AL
 E

D
G

E
S 

O
F 

TH
E

 P
ER

IM
ET

ER
 O

F 
TH

E 
SL

AB
.

3.
 C

O
N

ST
R

UC
T 

FL
O

O
R

S 
AN

D
 W

AL
LS

 IN
 A

C
C

O
R

DA
N

C
E 

W
IT

H
 T

A
BL

E 
SP

E
CS

.

D
E

R
E

K
  R

A
IT

H
B

Y
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
U

R
E

in
fo

@
de

re
kr

ai
th

by
.c

om
.a

u 
   

   
   

 

C
lie

nt
:

D
O

 N
O

T
 S

C
A

L
E

 O
F

F
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

. 
W

O
R

K
 T

O
 F

IG
U

R
E

D
 D

IM
E

N
S

IO
N

S
 O

N
L

Y
. 

P
ro

je
ct

:

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 T
IT

L
E

S
ca

le
:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o.

D
ra

w
n/

C
he

ck
ed

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
.

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

T 
:  

( 0
 2

 ) 
 9

 5
 1

 8
  3

 5
 6

 3
   

  A
 B

 N
 : 

6 
1 

6 
1 

3 
1 

7 
4 

0 
2 

0

4
4

3
 P

A
R

R
A

M
A

T
T

A
 R

O
A

D
,

L 
E

 I
 C

 H
 H

 A
 R

 D
 T

   
N

 S
 W

   
2

 0
 4

 0

D
A

 S
U

B
M

IS
S

IO
N

D
at

e:

A1 ORIGINAL SIZE

Ar
ch

ite
ct

  #
74

69
A

L
L

 D
IM

E
N

S
IO

N
S

 A
R

E
 T

O
 B

E
 C

O
N

F
IR

M
E

D
 O

N
 S

IT
E

 P
R

IO
R

 T
O

 C
O

M
M

E
N

C
E

M
E

N
T

 O
F

 
W

O
R

K
. R

E
P

O
R

T
 A

N
Y

 D
IS

C
R

E
P

A
N

C
IE

S
 T

O
 T

H
E

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

. 
N

O
M

IN
A

T
E

D
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
 

D
E

R
E

K
 R

A
IT

H
B

Y
 R

E
G

: 7
4

69
 C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T 
D

R
A

 (
A

U
S

) 
P

T
Y

 L
T

D

1
:2

0
0@

A
3

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l A
s 

in
d

ic
at

e
d@

A
1

G
R

O
U

N
D

 F
LO

O
R

 P
LA

N

20
07

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
IA

L
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

M
R

 D
A

V
ID

 F
IN

D
LA

Y

A
L 

/
D

R

0
4

/2
02

0

0
3

1
5

-1
7

 W
il

li
a

m
 S

tr
e

et
,

A
le

xa
n

d
ri

a
 2

0
1

5

T
O

W
N

P
LA

N
N

IN
G

A
B

C
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
S

H
O

P
 4

/5
0

0 
E

LI
Z

A
B

E
T

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T
,

S
U

R
R

Y
 H

IL
LS

 N
S

W
 2

0
10

(0
2)

 9
31

0
 4

97
9

an
th

o
ny

@
a

bc
pl

a
n.

co
m

.a
u

B
C

A

D
E

S
IG

N
 C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

C
E

 P
T

Y
 L

T
D

S
H

O
P

 2
/3

5
 B

U
C

K
IN

G
H

A
M

 S
T

R
E

E
T

S
U

R
R

Y
 H

IL
LS

 N
S

W
 2

01
0

(0
2)

 8
39

9
 3

70
7

sy
dn

e
y@

de
si

g
nc

o
nf

id
e

nc
e

.c
o

m

H
Y

D
R

A
U

LI
C T

A
A

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

IN
G

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

 2
01

/2
5

F
A

L
C

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 C
R

O
W

S
 N

E
S

T
 N

S
W

20
65

04
11

77
87

99
ta

ae
ng

in
ee

rs
@

g
m

ai
l.c

o
m

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E C
O

N
Z

E
P

T
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

S
S

U
IT

E
1

01
/ 5

06
 M

IL
L

E
R

 S
T

,
C

A
M

M
E

R
A

Y
 N

S
W

 2
06

2

(0
2)

9
92

2
 5

31
2

e
nq

ur
ie

s@
co

nz
ep

t.
ne

t.
au

B
A

S
IX

G
R

A
D

W
E

LL
 C

O
N

S
U

LT
IN

G
P

O
 B

O
X

 8
1

9 
B

O
W

R
A

L
 N

S
W

25
76

04
0

89
6

41
3

9
da

vi
d@

g
ra

d
w

el
lc

on
su

lti
ng

.c
o

m

1
 : 

10
0

G
R

O
U

N
D

 F
L

O
O

R
 P

L
A

N
1

FI
N

IS
H

ES
 L

EG
EN

D

Sy
m

bo
l

Ty
pe

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

BL
1

Ty
pe

: W
al

l F
in

is
he

s
Ch

ar
co

al
 P

ow
de

r C
oa

te
d 

Ba
lu

st
ra

de
BW

Ty
pe

: W
al

l F
in

is
he

s
Ex

po
se

d 
re

d 
br

ic
k 

w
al

l t
o 

cl
ie

nt
's 

ch
oi

ce
C

CR
Fl

oo
r F

in
is

h
Po

lis
he

d 
co

nc
re

te
 fl

oo
rin

g
C

PT
Ty

pe
: F

lo
or

 F
in

is
h

D
ye

d 
ny

lo
n 

ca
rp

et
G

L
W

in
do

w 
& 

D
oo

r T
yp

e
C

le
ar

 g
la

ss
 lo

ur
ve

s 
w

ith
 c

ha
rc

oa
l p

ow
de

r c
oa

te
d 

fra
m

e
M

L
M

et
al

 F
ra

m
e

Ch
ar

co
al

 P
ow

de
r C

oa
te

d 
Sc

re
en

s
M

R
R

oo
f F

in
is

h
C

ol
ou

rb
on

d 
'M

on
um

en
t' 

or
 s

ilim
ar

P1
W

al
l F

in
ish

D
ul

ux
 'N

at
ur

al
 w

hi
te

' o
r s

im
ila

r
P2

W
al

l F
in

ish
D

ul
ux

 'T
ra

nq
ui

l R
et

re
at

' o
r s

im
ila

r
T1

Ty
pe

: F
lo

or
 F

in
is

h
Ex

te
rn

al
 b

al
co

ny
 ti

le
s

T2
Ty

pe
: F

lo
or

 F
in

is
h

W
et

 a
re

a 
til

es
TB

Fl
oo

r F
in

ish
O

ak
 ti

m
be

r f
lo

or
in

g
TP

Ty
pe

: W
al

l F
in

is
h

Ti
m

be
r p

er
go

la
W

1
Ty

pe
:W

in
do

w
 F

ra
m

e
C

ha
rc

oa
l P

ow
de

r C
oa

te
d 

W
in

do
w

 F
ra

m
e

R
ev

.
D

at
e

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

B
y

1
10

/2
0

D
A

 S
U

B
M

IS
S

IO
N

A
L

2
03

/2
1

FO
R

 C
O

O
R

D
IN

A
TI

O
N

A
L

3
04

/2
1

IS
S

U
E

 T
O

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

A
L

47



D
N

U
P

U
P

D
N

D
N

D
N

U
P

U
P

D
N

U
P

U
P

D
N

D
N

D
N

D
N

U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

D
N

D
N

D
N

D
N

D
N

D
N

D
N

1 0
9

A
A

B
B

(C.O.S)

203096008700
2 0
9

B
A

TH
B

ED
R

O
O

M

LD
Y

B
ED

R
O

O
M

ST
AI

R

DN TO GF

T
2

19
 W

IL
LI

A
M

 S
TR

EE
T

TH
R

EE
-S

TO
R

EY
 

TO
W

N
H

O
U

SE
S

M
ET

A
L 

R
O

O
F

11
-1

3 
W

IL
LI

A
M

 S
TR

EE
T

TH
R

EE
-S

TO
R

EY
 

TO
W

N
H

O
U

SE
S

M
ET

A
L 

R
O

O
F

CP
T

T2
T2

B
ED

R
O

O
M

B
A

TH

LD
Y

ST
O

B
ED

R
O

O
M

R
O

B
E

ROBE

B
ED

RO
O

M
B

A
TH

LD
Y

ST
O

B
ED

R
O

O
M

R
O

B
E

ROBE

B
ED

RO
O

M
B

A
TH

LD
Y

ST
O

B
ED

R
O

O
M

R
O

B
E

ROBE

B
ED

R
O

O
M

B
A

TH

LD
Y

ST
O

B
ED

R
O

O
M

R
O

B
E

ROBE

B
ED

RO
O

M
B

A
TH

LD
Y

ST
O

B
ED

R
O

O
M

R
O

B
E

ROBE

B
ED

R
O

O
M

B
A

TH

LD
Y

ST
O

B
ED

R
O

O
M

R
O

B
E

ROBE

R
O

O
F 

BE
LO

W
R

O
O

F 
BE

LO
W

1 1

2 2

3 3

4 4

5 5

6 6

FI
R

E 
SC

R
EE

N
 T

O
 

BC
A 

RE
PO

RT

FI
R

E 
SC

R
EE

N
 T

O
 

BC
A 

RE
PO

RT

FI
R

E 
SC

R
EE

N
 T

O
 

BC
A 

RE
PO

RT

FI
R

E 
SC

R
EE

N
 T

O
 

BC
A 

RE
PO

RT

FI
R

E 
SC

R
EE

N
 T

O
 

BC
A 

RE
PO

RT

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 L

IN
E 

AB
O

V
E

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 L

IN
E 

AB
O

V
E

BOUNDARY

BOUNDARY

1.
6 

m2.7 m

B
ED

R
O

O
M B

ED
R

O
O

M
B

A
TH

LD
YST

AI
R

S 
TO

 R
T

DN TO GF

B
ED

R
O

O
M

B
ED

R
O

O
M

B
A

TH

LD
Y

ST
AI

R
S 

TO
 R

T

DN TO GF

RO
B

E
R

O
B

E

3.
9 

m

1.
6 

m2.7 m

B
ED

R
O

O
M

B
ED

R
O

O
M

B
A

TH

LD
Y

ST
AI

R
S 

TO
 R

T

DN TO GF

RO
B

E

1.
6 

m

B
ED

R
O

O
M B

ED
R

O
O

M
B

A
TH

LD
YST

AI
R

S 
TO

 R
T

DN TO GF

R
O

B
E 2.7 m

1.
6 

m

3.
9 

m
4.

0 
m

B
ED

R
O

O
M B

ED
R

O
O

M
B

A
TH

LD
YST

AI
R

S 
TO

 R
T

DN TO GF

R
O

B
E

3.
9 

m

2.7 m

1.
6 

m

2.7 m

B
ED

R
O

O
M B

ED
R

O
O

M
B

A
TH

LD
YST

AI
R

S 
TO

 R
T

DN TO GF

R
O

B
E

CP
T

CP
T

CP
T

T2
T2

T2

CP
T

CP
T

CP
T

T2

BOUNDARY

BOUNDARY

(c
.o

.s
)

49
5

5
51

1
5

51
1

5
51

1
5

51
1

5
51

1
5

(c
.o

.s
)

52
1

5

CP
T

T2
T2

CP
T

CP
T

3.7 m

3.
2 

m

3.6 m

1.
6 

m
1.

6 
m

3.7 m

3.
2 

m

1.
6 

m
1.

6 
m

3.
2 

m

3.6 m

3.
2 

m

1.
6 

m
1.

6 
m

B
ED

RO
O

M
B

A
TH

LD
Y

ST
O

B
ED

R
O

O
M

R
O

BE

ROBE

1.
6 

m

3.
9 

m

3.7 m

3.7 m

3.
9 

m

T2
T2

CP
T

CP
T

CP
T

CP
T

T2
T2

T2

T
8

T
9

T
11

T
13

T
14

T
1

3
3

65

(c
.o

.s
)

51
0

0
51

1
5

51
1

5
51

1
5

51
1

5
51

1
5

(c
.o

.s
)

55
2

5

13
55

FI
R

E 
SC

R
EE

N
 T

O
 

BC
A 

RE
PO

RT

DESK

(A
D

A
PT

A
B

LE
U

N
IT

)

dp
dp

dp
dp

dp
dp

dp
R

O
BE

dp
dp

dp
dp

dp
dp

dp

(C.O.S)

10270

2250960010045

1.8 m

T
10

T
3

T
4

T
5

T
6

T
7

T
12

NOOK

NOOK

NOOK

NOOK

3.
2 

m
3.

2 
m

8700

3.
2 

m

3.6 m

T2

3.6 m

3.6 m

3.6 m

3.6 m

3.6 m

3.7 m

3.7 m

3.7 m

F
F

L 
22

.7
20

F
F

L 
22

.7
20

F
F

L 
22

.7
20

F
F

L 
22

.7
20

F
F

L 
22

.7
20

F
F

L 
22

.7
20

F
F

L 
22

.7
20

F
F

L 
23

.1
25

F
F

L 
23

.1
25

F
F

L 
23

.1
25

F
F

L 
23

.1
25

F
F

L 
23

.1
25

F
F

L 
23

.1
25

F
F

L 
23

.1
25

SY
D

N
EY

 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
C

O
N

TR
O

L 
PL

A
N

 2
01

2
4.

1.
1 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
EI

G
H

T
(1

) D
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
s 

no
t t

o 
ex

ce
ed

 th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 n
um

be
r o

f s
to

re
ys

 a
s 

sh
ow

n 
on

 th
e 

Bu
ild

in
g 

he
ig

ht
 in

 s
to

re
ys

 m
ap

. T
he

 m
ax

im
um

 m
ay

 o
nl

y 
be

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
w

he
re

 it
 c

an
 b

e 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
d 

th
at

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t:
(a

) r
ei

nf
or

ce
s 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

an
d 

de
si

re
d 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

d 
ch

ar
ac

te
r;

(b
) i

s 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r, 
sc

al
e 

an
d 

fo
rm

 o
f s

ur
ro

un
di

ng
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 
in

 h
er

ita
ge

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
ar

ea
s;

 a
nd

(c
) d

oe
s 

no
t d

et
ra

ct
 fr

om
 th

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
r, 

an
d 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
bu

ild
in

g.
(2

) T
he

 s
tre

et
 fr

on
ta

ge
 h

ei
gh

t o
f a

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
m

us
t n

ot
 e

xc
ee

d 
th

e 
m

ax
im

um
he

ig
ht

 s
ho

w
n 

fo
r t

he
 s

tre
et

 fr
on

ta
ge

 o
n 

th
e 

Bu
ild

in
g 

st
re

et
 fr

on
ta

ge
 h

ei
gh

t i
n

st
or

ey
s 

m
ap

.
(3

) W
he

re
 th

e 
Bu

ild
in

g 
st

re
et

 fr
on

ta
ge

 h
ei

gh
t i

n 
st

or
ey

s 
m

ap
 d

oe
s 

no
t 

in
di

ca
te

th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 h
ei

gh
t, 

th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 s
tre

et
 fr

on
ta

ge
 h

ei
gh

t i
s 

to
 g

en
er

al
ly

be
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

st
re

et
 fr

on
ta

ge
 h

ei
gh

ts
 o

f a
dj

ac
en

t b
ui

ld
in

gs
, o

r t
he

pr
ed

om
in

an
t s

tre
et

 fr
on

ta
ge

 h
ei

gh
t i

n 
st

or
ey

s 
in

 th
e 

vi
ci

ni
ty

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d

bu
ild

in
g.

4.
1.

2 
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

ET
B

A
C

K
S

(1
) F

ro
nt

 s
et

ba
ck

s 
ar

e 
to

 b
e 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 w

ith
 th

e 
Bu

ild
in

g 
se

tb
ac

ks
 m

ap
. W

he
re

no
 fr

on
t s

et
ba

ck
 is

 s
ho

w
n 

on
 th

e 
m

ap
, t

he
 fr

on
t s

et
ba

ck
 is

 to
 b

e 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

ed
om

in
an

t s
et

tin
g 

in
 th

e 
st

re
et

.

4.
1.

3.
5 

PR
IV

A
TE

 O
PE

N
 S

PA
C

E
(1

) P
riv

at
e 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
 a

t t
he

 g
ro

un
d 

le
ve

l i
s 

to
 h

av
e 

a 
m

in
im

um
 a

re
a 

of
 1

6s
qm

an
d 

m
in

im
um

 d
im

en
si

on
 o

f 3
m

.
(2

) P
riv

at
e 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
 is

 to
 b

e 
di

re
ct

ly
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
fro

m
 th

e 
liv

in
g 

ar
ea

 o
f t

he
dw

el
lin

g 
an

d 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 s
er

vi
ng

 a
s 

an
 e

xt
en

si
on

 o
f t

he
 li

vi
ng

 a
re

a

4.
1.

7.
1 

FR
O

N
T 

FE
N

C
ES

(1
) F

ro
nt

 fe
nc

es
 a

re
 to

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 w
he

re
 it

 is
 a

 p
re

do
m

in
an

t f
ea

tu
re

 o
f a

 s
tre

et
fro

nt
ag

e 
w

ith
in

 a
 s

tre
et

 b
lo

ck
.

(2
) F

ro
nt

 fe
nc

es
 a

re
 to

 a
lig

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
fro

nt
 p

ro
pe

rty
 b

ou
nd

ar
y 

or
 re

fle
ct

 th
e

pr
ed

om
in

an
t f

en
ce

 a
lig

nm
en

t a
lo

ng
 th

e 
st

re
et

.
(3

) H
ei

gh
t, 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 a

nd
 a

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
al

 d
es

ig
n 

an
d 

st
yl

in
g 

of
 n

ew
 fe

nc
es

 m
us

t
be

 c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 fe

nc
es

 th
at

 w
er

e 
ty

pi
ca

l o
f t

he
 p

er
io

d 
in

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
st

re
et

w
as

 p
re

do
m

in
an

tly
 d

ev
el

op
ed

, o
r p

er
io

d 
th

e 
dw

el
lin

g 
w

as
 b

ui
lt.

(4
) T

he
 h

ei
gh

t o
f t

he
 fe

nc
e 

ab
ov

e 
fo

ot
pa

th
 le

ve
l e

xc
lu

di
ng

 th
e 

he
ig

ht
 o

f a
ny

re
ta

in
in

g 
w

al
l a

nd
 a

s 
sh

ow
n 

in
 F

ig
ur

e 
4.

19
 is

 to
 b

e:
(a

) 0
.9

m
 fo

r s
ol

id
 m

as
on

ry
 fe

nc
es

; a
nd

(b
) 1

.2
m

 o
n 

op
en

 o
r p

ar
tia

lly
 tr

an
sp

ar
en

t s
ty

le
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

pa
lis

ad
e 

or
 p

ic
ke

t
fe

nc
es

, a
nd

 a
ny

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

po
st

s 
an

d 
pi

er
s 

ar
e 

to
 b

e 
no

 h
ig

he
r t

ha
n 

1.
5m

.
(5

) T
he

 h
ei

gh
t o

f t
he

 fe
nc

e 
m

us
t s

te
p 

to
 fo

llo
w

 a
ny

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 le

ve
l a

lo
ng

 th
e

st
re

et
 b

ou
nd

ar
y.

(6
) F

en
ci

ng
 is

 to
 b

e 
lo

ca
te

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

si
gh

t l
in

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

pe
de

st
ria

ns
 a

nd
ve

hi
cl

es
 e

xi
tin

g 
th

e 
si

te
 a

re
 n

ot
 o

bs
cu

re
d 

an
d 

so
 g

at
es

 d
o 

no
t o

pe
n 

ov
er

 th
e

pu
bl

ic
 ro

ad
w

ay
 o

r f
oo

tp
at

h.

M
S

B
M

AI
N

 S
W

IT
CH

 B
O

AR
D

D
O

W
N 

PI
PE

D
P

 

D
RA

IN
 O

U
TL

ET
D

O

R
ET

AI
NI

N
G

 W
AL

L
R

W
 

EX
IS

TI
NG

E
X

EQ
U

A
L

E
Q

FL
O

O
R 

W
AS

TE
F

W

FI
N

IS
H

ED
 F

LO
O

R 
LE

VE
L

F
F

L

R
AI

N
 W

AT
ER

 O
U

TL
ET

R
W

O

G
EN

ER
A

L 
N

O
TE

S

W
A

LL
 T

YP
ES

:
-E

X
TE

RN
AL

 W
AL

LS
 T

O
 B

E
 2

00
M

M
 C

O
N

CR
ET

E 
W

A
LL

, 
C

EM
E

NT
 R

EN
D

ER
E

D 
A

ND
 P

AI
N

T 
AS

 S
PE

C
IF

IE
D

 IN
 T

HE
 

FI
N

IS
H

ES
 S

CH
ED

U
LE

. M
U

S
T 

BE
 N

O
N-

C
O

M
B

US
TI

B
LE

.

-A
LL

 IN
TE

R
N

AL
 W

AL
LS

 T
O

 B
E

 1
10

M
M

 T
IM

BE
R 

ST
U

D
 W

A
LL

S.
M

U
ST

 B
E 

N
O

N
-C

O
M

B
US

TI
BL

E 
W

HE
R

E 
R

EQ
U

IR
ED

 T
O

 B
E 

FI
R

E-
R

ES
IS

TI
N

G
.

P
R

H
S

PE
RM

AN
E

NT
LY

 F
IX

ED
 R

A
D

IA
N

T 
H

EA
T 

AT
TE

N
UA

TI
O

N
 S

C
R

EE
NS

P
O

S
PR

IV
AT

E 
O

PE
N

 S
PA

CE

A
C

O
U

ST
IC

 N
O

TE
S

R
EC

O
M

M
E

N
D

ED
 P

AR
TI

TI
O

N
 W

AL
L 

SY
ST

EM

PA
RT

IT
IO

N
C

O
NS

TR
UC

TI
O

N/
 D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

AI
RB

O
RN

E 
SO

U
ND

IM
PA

CT
 S

O
U

ND

FL
O

O
R

SE
PA

R
AT

IN
G

 S
O

U'
S,

 O
R

 A
N

 S
O

U 
FR

O
M

 
A 

PL
A

NT
 R

O
O

M
, L

IF
T 

SH
AF

T,
 

ST
AI

R
W

AY
, P

UB
LI

C
 C

O
R

R
ID

O
R

, P
U

BL
IC

 
LO

BB
Y 

O
R

 T
H

E 
LI

K
E,

 O
R

 P
AR

T 
O

F 
A 

D
IF

FE
RE

NT
 C

LA
SS

IF
IC

A
TI

O
N

 

R
w+

 C
tr 

≥
50

Ln
, w

 ≤
62

IN
TE

R
-

TE
N

AN
C

Y 
W

A
LL

R
w+

 C
tr 

≥
50

N
O

T
A

PP
LI

C
AB

LE

D
O

O
R

LO
C

AT
ED

 IN
 A

 W
AL

L 
SE

PA
R

TI
NG

 A
N

 
S

O
U

 F
R

O
M

 A
 S

TA
IR

W
AY

, P
UB

LI
C

 
C

O
R

R
ID

O
R

, P
U

BL
IC

 L
O

BB
Y

 O
R

 T
H

E
 L

IK
E

R
w 

≥
30

N
O

T 
A

PP
LI

C
AB

LE

SE
RV

IC
E

S
D

UC
T,

 S
O

IL
, W

A
ST

E 
O

R
 W

A
TE

R
 S

U
PP

LY
 

P
IP

ES
 L

O
C

A
TE

D
 IN

 A
 W

A
LL

 O
R

 F
LO

O
R

 
C

AV
IT

Y 
AN

D
 S

E
RV

ES
 O

R
 P

AS
SE

S 
TH

R
O

U
G

H
 M

O
R

E 
TH

AN
 O

N
E 

S
O

U
 

(IN
C

LU
D

IN
G

 A
 S

TO
RM

W
AT

ER
 P

IP
E)

N
O

T 
A

PP
LI

C
AB

LE
R

w+
 C

tr 
≥

40
(H

A
BI

TA
BL

E
)

R
w+

C
tr 

≥
25

 
(O

TH
ER

)

R
EC

O
M

M
EN

DE
D 

PA
RT

IT
IO

N
 F

LO
O

R
 / 

C
EI

LI
N

G
 S

Y
ST

EM
S

C
AR

PE
T 

FL
O

O
R

S 
-S

TA
N

DA
R

D 
CA

R
PE

T 
U

ND
ER

LA
YS

 7
m

m
 T

HI
C

K 
O

VE
R 

& 
G

RE
AT

ER
 T

H
AN

 1
50

 m
m

 C
O

N
CR

ET
E

10
0 

m
m

 D
E

EP
 C

A
VI

TY
 B

E
NE

AT
H 

W
IT

H 
13

 m
m

 S
U

S
PE

N
D

ED
 P

LA
ST

ER
BO

AR
D 

C
EI

LI
N

G
 W

IL
L 

TY
PI

C
AL

LY
 P

R
O

VI
D

E 
AN

 L
'n

Tw
  ≤

40
.

12
5 

m
m

 C
O

NC
RE

TE
 P

AN
EL

, 2
0m

m
 

C
AV

IT
Y,

 6
4m

m
 S

TE
EL

 S
TU

D
S

, 7
0m

m
 

PO
LY

ES
TE

R 
IN

S
U

LA
TI

O
N

 &
 1

3m
m

 
C

EM
E

NT
 R

EN
D

ER
 T

O
 E

AC
H

 S
ID

E

D
IS

C
O

NT
IN

UO
U

S

20
0 

m
m

 C
O

NC
RE

TE
 P

AN
EL

, 1
3m

m
 

C
EM

E
NT

 R
EN

D
ER

 T
O

 E
AC

H
 S

ID
E

R
w+

 C
tr 

≥
50

C
O

M
M

O
N

 
W

A
LL

12
5 

m
m

 T
H

IC
K

 C
O

N
CR

E
TE

 P
A

NE
L

R
w 

≥
50

B
A

SI
X

N
O

TE
S

R
EF

ER
 T

O
 C

E
R

TI
FI

CA
TE

 F
O

R 
C

O
M

PL
E

TE
 D

ET
AI

LS
 &

 R
EQ

UI
RE

M
E

NT
S

TH
ER

M
AL

 S
PE

C
IF

IC
A

TI
O

N
S

1.
 P

R
O

VI
D

E
 E

X
TE

RN
A

L 
W

IN
D

O
W

S 
A

ND
 D

O
O

R
 S

YS
TE

M
S:

a)
 S

IN
G

LE
 L

O
W

 E
; A

LU
M

IN
IU

M
 F

R
AM

E;
 U

W
5.

4/
SH

G
C

W
0.

49
  F

O
R

 C
AS

EM
EN

T 
EN

TR
Y 

D
O

O
R

 (T
1,

T4
,T

5,
T8

,T
10

,T
11

,T
12

)
b)

 S
IN

G
LE

 L
O

W
 E

; A
LU

M
IN

IU
M

 F
R

AM
E;

 U
W

5.
4/

SH
G

C
W

0.
58

  F
O

R
 F

IX
E

D 
LO

UR
VE

S,
 S

LI
DI

N
G

 (T
1,

T4
,T

5,
T8

,T
10

,T
11

,T
12

)
c)

 S
IN

G
LE

 C
LE

AR
; A

LU
M

IN
IU

M
 F

R
AM

E;
 U

W
6.

7/
SH

G
C

W
0.

57
  F

O
R

 C
AS

EM
EN

T 
EN

TR
Y 

D
O

O
R

 (T
2,

T3
,T

6,
T7

,T
9,

T1
3,

T1
4)

d)
 S

IN
G

LE
 C

LE
AR

; A
LU

M
IN

IU
M

 F
R

AM
E;

 U
W

6.
7/

SH
G

C
W

0.
70

  F
O

R
 F

IX
E

D 
LO

UR
VE

S,
 S

LI
DI

N
G

 (T
2,

T3
,T

6,
T7

,T
9,

T1
3,

T1
4)

2.
 E

XT
ER

N
A

L 
W

A
LL

S:
 M

IN
. R

2.
5 

IN
SU

LA
TE

D
 M

E
TA

L 
C

LA
D

D
IN

G
 W

A
LL

; M
IN

. R
1.

5 
C

O
NC

RE
TE

 L
IN

ED
 W

AL
L 

& 
R

2.
5 

B
R

IC
K

 V
E

N
EE

R
 W

AL
L

3.
 IN

TE
R

N
AL

 W
AL

LS
: R

2.
5 

B
U

LK
 P

LA
ST

ER
BO

AR
D

 O
N

 S
TU

D
4.

 F
LO

O
R

S:
 M

IN
. R

4.
0 

IN
SU

LA
TI

O
N

 C
O

N
CR

ET
E 

FL
O

O
R

 A
BO

V
E 

G
AR

AG
E

 &
 M

IN
. R

1.
4 

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E 
FL

O
O

R 
W

H
ER

E 
O

PE
N

 B
E

LO
W

5.
 C

EI
LI

N
G

S
: R

4.
0 

B
U

LK
 P

LA
ST

ER
BO

AR
D

 B
E

LO
W

 M
E

TA
L 

D
EC

K
6.

 R
O

O
F:

 6
0 

m
m

 A
NT

IC
O

N
 (R

1.
3)

 M
E

TA
L 

D
EC

K 
R

O
O

F 
& 

80
 m

m
 P

IR
 O

R
 E

Q
U

IV
 (R

4.
0)

 C
O

N
C

R
ET

E 
R

O
O

F

W
AT

ER
TH

E 
A

PP
LI

C
AN

T 
M

U
ST

 :
1.

 P
LA

N
T 

IN
D

IG
EN

O
U

S 
O

R
 L

O
W

 W
AT

ER
 U

SE
 S

P
EC

IE
S 

O
F 

VE
G

E
TA

TI
O

N
 T

H
R

O
UG

H
O

U
T 

TH
E

 A
RE

A 
O

F 
LA

ND
 S

PE
C

FI
ED

 F
O

R
 T

H
E 

D
W

EL
LI

N
G

.
2.

 IN
ST

AL
L 

FI
X

TU
RE

S 
O

R
 A

P
PL

IA
NC

ES
 A

CC
O

R
D

IN
G

 R
A

TI
N

G
 S

PE
C

IF
IE

D
.

SH
O

W
ER

 H
EA

D
S

: 3
 S

TA
R

 (>
6 

B
UT

 <
=7

.5
L/

M
IN

); 
TO

IL
E

T 
FL

US
H

IN
G

 S
YS

TE
M

, K
IT

C
HE

N
 T

AP
S

AN
D

 B
A

TH
RO

O
M

 T
AP

S:
 4

 S
TA

R
; 

3.
 N

O
 H

O
T 

W
A

TE
R 

R
EC

IR
C

U
LA

TI
O

N
 S

Y
ST

EM
 O

R
 D

IV
ER

SI
O

N
 T

O
 B

E 
IN

ST
A

LL
E

D
;

EN
ER

G
Y

TH
E 

A
PP

LI
C

AN
T 

M
U

ST
:

1.
  I

NS
TA

LL
 H

O
T 

W
AT

ER
 S

Y
ST

EM
 A

S
 S

PE
CI

FI
E

D
; G

A
S 

IN
S

TA
NT

AN
EO

U
S

: 5
 S

TA
R

2.
  V

E
NT

IL
A

TI
O

N
 S

YS
TE

M
 A

S 
IN

D
IV

ID
U

AL
 F

AN
, D

U
CT

ED
 T

O
 F

AC
AD

E 
O

R
 R

O
O

F 
A

ND
 M

AN
UA

L 
S

W
IT

C
H

 O
N

/ O
FF

 F
O

R 
EA

C
H

 
BA

TH
R

O
O

M
,K

IT
C

HE
N

 A
N

D 
LA

U
ND

R
Y,

 A
CC

O
RD

IN
G

 S
PE

C
S

.
3.

 A
LL

 D
W

E
LL

IN
G

S 
TO

 IN
ST

AL
L 

1-
PH

AS
E 

AI
R

C
O

N
D

IT
IO

NI
N

G
 2

 S
TA

R 
ZO

N
E

DI
N

 L
IV

IN
G

 A
R

EA
S,

 B
ED

R
O

O
M

 A
R

EA
S 

FO
R 

C
O

O
LI

N
G

 A
N

D
 

H
EA

TI
N

G
.

4.
 T

1,
 T

2,
 T

6 
A

ND
 T

7 
H

AV
E 

O
NE

 B
AT

HR
O

O
M

 N
A

TU
R

A
LL

Y 
LI

T 
AN

D
 A

LL
 O

TH
ER

 D
W

EL
LI

N
G

S 
TO

 H
A

VE
 2

 B
A

TH
RO

O
M

S
 N

A
TU

RA
LL

Y 
LI

T.
5.

  I
NS

TA
LL

 'A
PP

LI
A

N
C

ES
 &

 O
TH

E
R 

EF
FI

C
IE

N
C

Y 
M

EA
SU

R
ES

' A
C

CO
R

DI
N

G
 T

A
BL

E 
SP

E
CS

.
G

A
S 

C
O

O
KT

O
P 

&
 E

LE
C

TR
IC

AL
 O

VE
N 

PR
IV

A
TE

 O
U

TD
O

O
R

 O
R

 U
N

S
HE

LT
ER

ED
 C

LO
TH

ES
 D

R
YI

NG
 L

IN
E

S

TH
ER

M
AL

 C
O

M
FO

RT
TH

E 
A

PP
LI

C
AN

T 
M

U
ST

:
1.

  C
O

NS
TR

UC
T 

A
CC

O
RD

IN
G

 T
H

E
 T

H
ER

M
AL

 S
P

EC
S.

 S
E

T 
O

U
T 

IN
 T

HE
 A

SS
ES

SO
R 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

E.
2.

  W
H

ER
E 

TH
ER

E 
IS

 A
N

 IN
-S

LA
B 

HE
AT

IN
G

 O
R

 C
O

O
LI

NG
 S

YS
TE

M
: I

N
ST

AL
L 

IN
SU

LA
TI

O
N

 W
IT

H
 A

N
 R

-V
AL

UE
 O

F 
N

O
T 

LE
SS

 T
H

A
N 

1.
0 

U
N

D
ER

N
EA

TH
 T

H
E 

SL
AB

 A
N

D 
AR

O
U

N
D

 T
H

E 
VE

RT
IC

AL
 E

D
G

E
S 

O
F 

TH
E 

PE
RI

M
ET

ER
 O

F 
TH

E
 S

LA
B;

 O
R

 O
N

 A
 S

US
PE

N
D

ED
 F

LO
O

R,
 

IN
S

TA
LL

 IN
SU

LA
TI

O
N

 W
IT

H
 A

N
 R

-V
A

LU
E 

O
F 

NO
T 

LE
SS

 T
H

AN
 1

.0
 U

N
DE

R
N

EA
TH

 T
H

E 
SL

AB
 A

N
D 

AR
O

U
ND

 T
H

E 
VE

RT
IC

AL
 E

D
G

E
S 

O
F 

TH
E 

P
ER

IM
ET

ER
 O

F 
TH

E 
SL

AB
.

3.
 C

O
N

ST
R

UC
T 

FL
O

O
R

S 
AN

D
 W

AL
LS

 IN
 A

C
C

O
R

DA
N

C
E 

W
IT

H
 T

A
BL

E 
SP

E
CS

.

D
E

R
E

K
  R

A
IT

H
B

Y
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
U

R
E

in
fo

@
de

re
kr

ai
th

by
.c

om
.a

u 
   

   
   

 

C
lie

nt
:

D
O

 N
O

T
 S

C
A

L
E

 O
F

F
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

. 
W

O
R

K
 T

O
 F

IG
U

R
E

D
 D

IM
E

N
S

IO
N

S
 O

N
L

Y
. 

P
ro

je
ct

:

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 T
IT

L
E

S
ca

le
:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o.

D
ra

w
n/

C
he

ck
ed

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
.

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

T 
:  

( 0
 2

 ) 
 9

 5
 1

 8
  3

 5
 6

 3
   

  A
 B

 N
 : 

6 
1 

6 
1 

3 
1 

7 
4 

0 
2 

0

4
4

3
 P

A
R

R
A

M
A

T
T

A
 R

O
A

D
,

L 
E

 I
 C

 H
 H

 A
 R

 D
 T

   
N

 S
 W

   
2

 0
 4

 0

D
A

 S
U

B
M

IS
S

IO
N

D
at

e:

A1 ORIGINAL SIZE

Ar
ch

ite
ct

  #
74

69
A

L
L

 D
IM

E
N

S
IO

N
S

 A
R

E
 T

O
 B

E
 C

O
N

F
IR

M
E

D
 O

N
 S

IT
E

 P
R

IO
R

 T
O

 C
O

M
M

E
N

C
E

M
E

N
T

 O
F

 
W

O
R

K
. R

E
P

O
R

T
 A

N
Y

 D
IS

C
R

E
P

A
N

C
IE

S
 T

O
 T

H
E

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

. 
N

O
M

IN
A

T
E

D
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
 

D
E

R
E

K
 R

A
IT

H
B

Y
 R

E
G

: 7
4

69
 C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T 
D

R
A

 (
A

U
S

) 
P

T
Y

 L
T

D

1
:2

0
0@

A
3

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l A
s 

in
d

ic
at

e
d@

A
1

LE
V

E
L 

O
N

E
 F

LO
O

R
 P

LA
N

20
07

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
IA

L
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

M
R

 D
A

V
ID

 F
IN

D
LA

Y

A
L 

/
D

R

0
4

/2
02

0

0
4

1
5

-1
7

 W
il

li
a

m
 S

tr
e

et
,

A
le

xa
n

d
ri

a
 2

0
1

5

T
O

W
N

P
LA

N
N

IN
G

A
B

C
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
S

H
O

P
 4

/5
0

0 
E

LI
Z

A
B

E
T

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T
,

S
U

R
R

Y
 H

IL
LS

 N
S

W
 2

0
10

(0
2)

 9
31

0
 4

97
9

an
th

o
ny

@
a

bc
pl

a
n.

co
m

.a
u

B
C

A

D
E

S
IG

N
 C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

C
E

 P
T

Y
 L

T
D

S
H

O
P

 2
/3

5
 B

U
C

K
IN

G
H

A
M

 S
T

R
E

E
T

S
U

R
R

Y
 H

IL
LS

 N
S

W
 2

01
0

(0
2)

 8
39

9
 3

70
7

sy
dn

e
y@

de
si

g
nc

o
nf

id
e

nc
e

.c
o

m

H
Y

D
R

A
U

LI
C T

A
A

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

IN
G

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

 2
01

/2
5

F
A

L
C

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 C
R

O
W

S
 N

E
S

T
 N

S
W

20
65

04
11

77
87

99
ta

ae
ng

in
ee

rs
@

g
m

ai
l.c

o
m

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E C
O

N
Z

E
P

T
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

S
S

U
IT

E
1

01
/ 5

06
 M

IL
L

E
R

 S
T

,
C

A
M

M
E

R
A

Y
 N

S
W

 2
06

2

(0
2)

9
92

2
 5

31
2

e
nq

ur
ie

s@
co

nz
ep

t.
ne

t.
au

B
A

S
IX

G
R

A
D

W
E

LL
 C

O
N

S
U

LT
IN

G
P

O
 B

O
X

 8
1

9 
B

O
W

R
A

L
 N

S
W

25
76

04
0

89
6

41
3

9
da

vi
d@

g
ra

d
w

el
lc

on
su

lti
ng

.c
o

m

1
 : 

10
0

LE
V

E
L 

O
N

E
 F

LO
O

R
 P

LA
N

1

FI
N

IS
H

ES
 L

EG
EN

D

Sy
m

bo
l

Ty
pe

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

BL
1

Ty
pe

: W
al

l F
in

is
he

s
C

ha
rc

oa
l P

ow
de

r C
oa

te
d 

Ba
lu

st
ra

de
BW

Ty
pe

: W
al

l F
in

is
he

s
Ex

po
se

d 
re

d 
br

ic
k 

w
al

l t
o 

cl
ie

nt
's 

ch
oi

ce
C

CR
Fl

oo
r F

in
is

h
Po

lis
he

d 
co

nc
re

te
 fl

oo
rin

g
C

PT
Ty

pe
: F

lo
or

 F
in

is
h

D
ye

d 
ny

lo
n 

ca
rp

et
G

L
W

in
do

w 
& 

D
oo

r T
yp

e
C

le
ar

 g
la

ss
 lo

ur
ve

s 
w

ith
 c

ha
rc

oa
l p

ow
de

r c
oa

te
d 

fra
m

e
M

L
M

et
al

 F
ra

m
e

Ch
ar

co
al

 P
ow

de
r C

oa
te

d 
Sc

re
en

s
M

R
R

oo
f F

in
is

h
Co

lo
ur

bo
nd

 'M
on

um
en

t' 
or

 s
ilim

ar
P1

W
al

l F
in

ish
D

ul
ux

 'N
at

ur
al

 w
hi

te
' o

r s
im

ila
r

P2
W

al
l F

in
ish

D
ul

ux
 'T

ra
nq

ui
l R

et
re

at
' o

r s
im

ila
r

T1
Ty

pe
: F

lo
or

 F
in

is
h

Ex
te

rn
al

 b
al

co
ny

 ti
le

s
T2

Ty
pe

: F
lo

or
 F

in
is

h
W

et
 a

re
a 

til
es

TB
Fl

oo
r F

in
ish

O
ak

 ti
m

be
r f

lo
or

in
g

TP
Ty

pe
: W

al
l F

in
ish

Ti
m

be
r p

er
go

la
W

1
Ty

pe
:W

in
do

w 
Fr

am
e

C
ha

rc
oa

l P
ow

de
r C

oa
te

d 
W

in
do

w
 F

ra
m

e

R
ev

.
D

at
e

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

B
y

1
10

/2
0

D
A

 S
U

B
M

IS
S

IO
N

A
L

2
03

/2
1

FO
R

 C
O

O
R

D
IN

A
TI

O
N

A
L

3
04

/2
1

IS
S

U
E

 T
O

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

A
L

48



U
P

D
N

D
N

U
P

U
P

D
N

U
P

D
N

U
P

D
N

U
P

D
N

D
N

D
N

D
N

D
N

D
N

D
N

D
N

U
P

D
N

1 0
9

A
A

B
B

TE
R

R
A

C
E

ST
AI

R

PL
A

N
TE

R 
B

O
X

PL
AN

TE
RB

O
X

TE
R

R
A

C
E ST

AI
R

PL
AN

TE
R

 B
O

X

PL
AN

TE
RB

O
X

TE
R

R
A

C
E ST

AI
R

PL
A

NT
ER

 B
O

X

PL
AN

TE
RB

O
X

TE
R

R
A

C
E

ST
AI

R

PL
A

N
TE

R 
B

O
X

PL
AN

TE
RB

O
X

(C.O.S)

1030100096008700

(C.O.S)

10270

2 0
9

T
11

T1
T1

T1

T1
T1

M
A

ST
ER

 
B

ED
R

O
O

M

EN
SU

IT
E

ROBEROBE

B
A

L

STUDY

M
A

ST
ER

 
B

ED
R

O
O

M

EN
SU

IT
E

ROBEROBE

B
A

L

STUDY

M
A

ST
ER

 
B

ED
R

O
O

M

EN
SU

IT
E

ROBEROBE

B
A

L

STUDY

M
A

ST
ER

 
B

ED
R

O
O

M

EN
SU

IT
E

ROBEROBE

B
A

L

STUDY

M
A

ST
ER

 
B

ED
R

O
O

M

EN
SU

IT
E

ROBEROBE

B
A

L

STUDY

M
A

ST
ER

 
B

ED
R

O
O

M

EN
SU

IT
E

ROBEROBE

B
A

L

STUDY

T
9

T
12

T
14

TE
R

R
A

C
E

ST
AI

R

PL
A

N
TE

RB
O

X

B
ED

R
O

O
M

TE
R

R
A

C
E

ST
AI

R

PL
AN

TE
RB

O
X

B
ED

R
O

O
M

EN
S

EN
S

TE
R

R
A

C
E

ST
AI

R

PL
AN

TE
RB

O
X

B
ED

R
O

O
M

EN
S

T2
T2

T2
T2

T2
T2

CP
T

CP
T

CP
T

CP
T

CP
T

CP
T

1 1

2 2

3 3

4 4

5 5

6 6

FI
R

E 
SC

R
EE

N
 T

O
 

BC
A 

RE
PO

RT

FI
R

E 
SC

R
EE

N
 T

O
 

BC
A 

RE
PO

RT

T2
T2

CP
T

T1

CP
T

T2T1

pe
rg

ol
a 

ab
ov

e
pe

rg
ol

a 
ab

ov
e

(c
.o

.s
)

52
1

5
51

1
5

51
1

5
51

1
5

51
1

5
51

1
5

(c
.o

.s
)

49
5

5

BOUNDARY

BOUNDARY

BOUNDARY

BOUNDARY

M
A

ST
ER

 
B

ED
R

O
O

M

EN
SU

IT
E

ROBEROBE

B
A

L

STUDY

T2

(c
.o

.s
)

51
0

0
51

1
5

51
1

5
51

1
5

51
1

5
51

1
5

(c
.o

.s
)

55
2

5

pe
rg

ol
a 

ab
ov

e

T1

pe
rg

ol
a 

ab
ov

e

T1

4.
8 

m
4.

8 
m

4.
9 

m

3.7 m

3.5 m

3.5 m

2.
3 

m
2.

4 
m

2.
4 

m
2.

4 
m

4.
9 

m

3.7 m

3.7 m

4.
9 

m

3.5 m

3.5 m

3.5 m

3.5 m

3.5 m

2.
4 

m
2.

4 
m

2.
4 

m

4.
9 

m
3.7 m

3.7 m

3.7 m

3.4 m

3.4 m

4.
9 

m
4.

9 
m

4.
9 

m
4.

9 
m

4.
9 

m
4.

8 
m

BBQ

BBQ

BBQ

BBQ

FI
R

E 
SC

R
EE

N
 T

O
 

BC
A 

RE
PO

RT

pergola 
above

pergola 
above

pergola 
above

T1
T1

T1
T1

T1

A/C

A/C

A/C

A/C

A/C

A/C

A/C

A/
C

A/
C

A/
C

A/
C

A/
C

A/
C

A/
C

R
W

O
R

W
O

DR
AI

N

dp

DR
AI

N

dp

R
W

O

DR
AI

N

dp

R
W

O

DR
AI

N

dp

R
W

O

DR
AI

N

dp

R
W

O

DR
AI

N

dp

R
W

O

DR
AI

N

dp

DR
AI

N

DR
AI

NR
W

O

R
W

O

dp
dp

DR
AI

N

DR
AI

N

R
W

O

R
W

O

dp

DR
AI

N

R
W

O

dp

DR
AI

N

R
W

O

dp

DR
AI

N

R
W

O

DR
AI

N

R
W

O

R
W

O

dp

DR
AI

N

R
W

O

R
W

O

dp

DR
AI

N
DR

AI
N

dp
dp

dp
dp

RE
FE

R
 T

O
 L

A
N

D
SC

AP
E

 D
R

AW
IN

G
S 

FO
R 

S
PE

C
.&

 D
E

TA
IL

S

CP
T

F
F

L 
25

.8
20

F
F

L 
25

.8
20

F
F

L 
25

.8
20

F
F

L 
25

.8
20

R
O

O
F 

LI
N

E 
AB

O
V

E
F

F
L 

25
.8

20
F

F
L 

25
.8

20

CP
T

T
10

T
8

T
13

10045 8700 9600 1000

(C.O.S)

1250

F
F

L 
25

.8
20

5.
1 

m

3.
0 

m
3.

0 
m

3.
0 

m

F
F

L 
26

.2
25

F
F

L 
26

.2
25

F
F

L 
26

.2
25

F
F

L 
26

.2
25

F
F

L 
26

.2
25

F
F

L 
26

.2
25

F
F

L 
26

.2
25

M
S

B
M

AI
N

 S
W

IT
CH

 B
O

AR
D

D
O

W
N 

PI
PE

D
P

 

D
RA

IN
 O

U
TL

ET
D

O

R
ET

AI
NI

N
G

 W
AL

L
R

W
 

EX
IS

TI
NG

E
X

EQ
U

AL
E

Q

FL
O

O
R 

W
AS

TE
F

W

FI
N

IS
H

ED
 F

LO
O

R 
LE

VE
L

F
F

L

R
AI

N
 W

AT
ER

 O
U

TL
ET

R
W

O

G
EN

ER
A

L 
N

O
TE

S

W
A

LL
 T

YP
ES

:
-E

X
TE

RN
AL

 W
AL

LS
 T

O
 B

E
 2

00
M

M
 C

O
N

CR
ET

E 
W

A
LL

, 
C

EM
E

NT
 R

EN
D

ER
E

D 
A

ND
 P

AI
N

T 
AS

 S
PE

C
IF

IE
D

 IN
 T

HE
 

FI
N

IS
H

ES
 S

CH
ED

U
LE

. M
U

S
T 

BE
 N

O
N-

C
O

M
B

US
TI

B
LE

.

-A
LL

 IN
TE

R
N

AL
 W

A
LL

S 
TO

 B
E

 1
10

M
M

 T
IM

BE
R 

ST
U

D
 W

A
LL

S.
M

U
ST

 B
E 

N
O

N
-C

O
M

B
US

TI
BL

E 
W

HE
R

E 
R

EQ
U

IR
ED

 T
O

 B
E 

FI
R

E-
R

ES
IS

TI
N

G
.

P
R

H
S

PE
RM

AN
E

NT
LY

 F
IX

ED
 R

A
D

IA
N

T 
H

EA
T 

AT
TE

N
UA

TI
O

N
 S

C
R

EE
NS

P
O

S
PR

IV
AT

E 
O

PE
N

 S
PA

CE

A
C

O
U

ST
IC

 N
O

TE
S

R
EC

O
M

M
E

N
D

ED
 P

AR
TI

TI
O

N
 W

AL
L 

SY
ST

EM

PA
RT

IT
IO

N
C

O
NS

TR
UC

TI
O

N/
 D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

AI
RB

O
RN

E 
SO

U
ND

IM
PA

CT
 S

O
U

ND

FL
O

O
R

SE
PA

R
AT

IN
G

 S
O

U
'S

, O
R

 A
N

 S
O

U 
FR

O
M

 
A 

PL
A

NT
 R

O
O

M
, L

IF
T 

SH
AF

T,
 

ST
AI

R
W

AY
, P

UB
LI

C 
C

O
R

R
ID

O
R

, P
U

BL
IC

 
LO

BB
Y 

O
R

 T
H

E 
LI

K
E,

 O
R

 P
AR

T 
O

F 
A 

D
IF

FE
RE

NT
 C

LA
SS

IF
IC

A
TI

O
N

 

R
w+

 C
tr 

≥
50

Ln
, w

 ≤
62

IN
TE

R
-

TE
N

AN
C

Y 
W

A
LL

R
w+

 C
tr 

≥
50

N
O

T
A

PP
LI

C
AB

LE

D
O

O
R

LO
C

AT
ED

 IN
 A

 W
AL

L 
SE

PA
R

TI
NG

 A
N

 
S

O
U

 F
R

O
M

 A
 S

TA
IR

W
AY

, P
UB

LI
C

 
C

O
R

R
ID

O
R

, P
U

BL
IC

 L
O

BB
Y

 O
R

 T
H

E
 L

IK
E

R
w 

≥
30

N
O

T 
A

PP
LI

C
AB

LE

SE
RV

IC
E

S
D

UC
T,

 S
O

IL
, W

A
ST

E 
O

R
 W

A
TE

R
 S

U
PP

LY
 

P
IP

ES
 L

O
C

A
TE

D
 IN

 A
 W

A
LL

 O
R

 F
LO

O
R

 
C

AV
IT

Y 
AN

D
 S

E
RV

ES
 O

R
 P

AS
SE

S 
TH

R
O

U
G

H
 M

O
R

E 
TH

AN
 O

N
E 

S
O

U
 

(IN
C

LU
D

IN
G

 A
 S

TO
RM

W
AT

ER
 P

IP
E)

N
O

T 
A

PP
LI

C
AB

LE
R

w+
 C

tr 
≥

40
(H

A
BI

TA
BL

E
)

R
w+

C
tr 

≥
25

 
(O

TH
ER

)

R
EC

O
M

M
EN

DE
D

 P
A

RT
IT

IO
N

 F
LO

O
R

 / 
C

EI
LI

N
G

 S
Y

ST
EM

S

C
AR

PE
T 

FL
O

O
R

S 
-S

TA
N

DA
R

D 
CA

R
PE

T 
U

ND
ER

LA
YS

 7
m

m
 T

HI
C

K 
O

VE
R 

& 
G

RE
AT

ER
 T

H
AN

 1
50

 m
m

 C
O

N
CR

ET
E

10
0 

m
m

 D
EE

P 
C

A
VI

TY
 B

E
NE

AT
H 

W
IT

H 
13

 m
m

 S
U

S
PE

N
D

ED
 P

LA
ST

ER
BO

AR
D 

C
EI

LI
N

G
 W

IL
L 

TY
PI

C
AL

LY
 P

R
O

VI
D

E 
AN

 L
'n

Tw
  ≤

40
.

12
5 

m
m

 C
O

NC
RE

TE
 P

AN
EL

, 2
0m

m
 

C
AV

IT
Y,

 6
4m

m
 S

TE
EL

 S
TU

D
S

, 7
0m

m
 

PO
LY

ES
TE

R 
IN

S
U

LA
TI

O
N

 &
 1

3m
m

 
C

EM
E

NT
 R

EN
D

ER
 T

O
 E

AC
H

 S
ID

E

D
IS

C
O

NT
IN

UO
U

S

20
0 

m
m

 C
O

NC
RE

TE
 P

AN
EL

, 1
3m

m
 

C
EM

E
NT

 R
EN

D
ER

 T
O

 E
AC

H
 S

ID
E

R
w+

 C
tr 

≥
50

C
O

M
M

O
N

 
W

A
LL

12
5 

m
m

 T
H

IC
K

 C
O

N
CR

E
TE

 P
A

NE
L

R
w 

≥
50

B
A

SI
X

N
O

TE
S

R
EF

ER
 T

O
 C

E
R

TI
FI

CA
TE

 F
O

R 
C

O
M

PL
E

TE
 D

ET
AI

LS
 &

 R
EQ

UI
RE

M
E

NT
S

TH
ER

M
AL

 S
PE

C
IF

IC
A

TI
O

N
S

1.
 P

R
O

VI
D

E
 E

X
TE

RN
A

L 
W

IN
D

O
W

S 
A

ND
 D

O
O

R
 S

YS
TE

M
S:

a)
 S

IN
G

LE
 L

O
W

 E
; A

LU
M

IN
IU

M
 F

R
AM

E;
 U

W
5.

4/
SH

G
C

W
0.

49
  F

O
R 

C
AS

EM
EN

T 
EN

TR
Y 

D
O

O
R

 (T
1,

T4
,T

5,
T8

,T
10

,T
11

,T
12

)
b)

 S
IN

G
LE

 L
O

W
 E

; A
LU

M
IN

IU
M

 F
R

AM
E;

 U
W

5.
4/

SH
G

C
W

0.
58

  F
O

R 
FI

XE
D 

LO
UR

VE
S,

 S
LI

DI
N

G
 (T

1,
T4

,T
5,

T8
,T

10
,T

11
,T

12
)

c)
 S

IN
G

LE
 C

LE
AR

; A
LU

M
IN

IU
M

 F
R

AM
E;

 U
W

6.
7/

SH
G

C
W

0.
57

  F
O

R
 C

AS
EM

EN
T 

EN
TR

Y 
D

O
O

R
 (T

2,
T3

,T
6,

T7
,T

9,
T1

3,
T1

4)
d)

 S
IN

G
LE

 C
LE

AR
; A

LU
M

IN
IU

M
 F

R
AM

E;
 U

W
6.

7/
SH

G
C

W
0.

70
  F

O
R

 F
IX

E
D 

LO
UR

VE
S,

 S
LI

DI
N

G
 (T

2,
T3

,T
6,

T7
,T

9,
T1

3,
T1

4)

2.
 E

XT
ER

N
A

L 
W

A
LL

S:
 M

IN
. R

2.
5 

IN
SU

LA
TE

D
 M

E
TA

L 
C

LA
D

D
IN

G
 W

A
LL

; M
IN

. R
1.

5 
C

O
NC

RE
TE

 L
IN

ED
 W

AL
L 

& 
R

2.
5 

B
R

IC
K

 V
E

N
EE

R
 W

AL
L

3.
 IN

TE
R

N
AL

 W
AL

LS
: R

2.
5 

B
U

LK
 P

LA
ST

ER
BO

AR
D

 O
N

 S
TU

D
4.

 F
LO

O
R

S:
 M

IN
. R

4.
0 

IN
SU

LA
TI

O
N

 C
O

N
CR

ET
E 

FL
O

O
R

 A
BO

V
E 

G
AR

AG
E 

& 
M

IN
. R

1.
4 

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E 
FL

O
O

R 
W

H
ER

E 
O

PE
N

 B
E

LO
W

5.
 C

EI
LI

N
G

S
: R

4.
0 

B
U

LK
 P

LA
ST

ER
BO

AR
D

 B
E

LO
W

 M
E

TA
L 

D
EC

K
6.

 R
O

O
F:

 6
0 

m
m

 A
NT

IC
O

N
 (R

1.
3)

 M
ET

AL
 D

EC
K 

R
O

O
F 

& 
80

 m
m

 P
IR

 O
R

 E
Q

U
IV

 (R
4.

0)
 C

O
N

C
R

ET
E 

R
O

O
F

W
AT

ER
TH

E
 A

PP
LI

C
AN

T 
M

U
ST

 :
1.

 P
LA

N
T 

IN
D

IG
EN

O
U

S 
O

R
 L

O
W

 W
AT

ER
 U

SE
 S

P
EC

IE
S 

O
F 

VE
G

E
TA

TI
O

N
 T

H
R

O
UG

H
O

U
T 

TH
E

 A
RE

A 
O

F 
LA

ND
 S

PE
C

FI
ED

 F
O

R
 T

H
E 

D
W

EL
LI

N
G

.
2.

 IN
ST

AL
L 

FI
X

TU
RE

S 
O

R
 A

P
PL

IA
NC

ES
 A

CC
O

R
D

IN
G

 R
A

TI
N

G
 S

PE
C

IF
IE

D
.

SH
O

W
ER

 H
EA

D
S

: 3
 S

TA
R

 (>
6 

B
UT

 <
=7

.5
L/

M
IN

); 
TO

IL
E

T 
FL

US
H

IN
G

 S
YS

TE
M

, K
IT

C
HE

N
 T

AP
S

AN
D

 B
AT

H
RO

O
M

 T
AP

S:
 4

 S
TA

R
; 

3.
 N

O
 H

O
T 

W
A

TE
R 

R
EC

IR
C

U
LA

TI
O

N 
SY

ST
EM

 O
R

 D
IV

ER
SI

O
N

 T
O

 B
E 

IN
ST

A
LL

E
D

;

EN
ER

G
Y

TH
E

 A
PP

LI
C

AN
T 

M
U

ST
:

1.
  I

NS
TA

LL
 H

O
T 

W
AT

ER
 S

Y
ST

EM
 A

S
 S

PE
CI

FI
E

D
; G

A
S 

IN
S

TA
NT

AN
EO

U
S

: 5
 S

TA
R

2.
  V

E
NT

IL
A

TI
O

N
 S

YS
TE

M
 A

S 
IN

D
IV

ID
U

AL
 F

AN
, D

U
CT

ED
 T

O
 F

AC
AD

E 
O

R
 R

O
O

F 
A

ND
 M

AN
UA

L 
S

W
IT

C
H

 O
N

/ O
FF

 F
O

R 
EA

C
H

 
BA

TH
R

O
O

M
,K

IT
C

HE
N

 A
N

D 
LA

U
ND

R
Y,

 A
CC

O
RD

IN
G

 S
PE

C
S

.
3.

 A
LL

 D
W

E
LL

IN
G

S 
TO

 IN
ST

AL
L 

1-
PH

AS
E 

AI
R

C
O

ND
IT

IO
NI

N
G

 2
 S

TA
R 

ZO
N

E
DI

N
 L

IV
IN

G
 A

R
EA

S,
 B

ED
R

O
O

M
 A

R
EA

S 
FO

R 
C

O
O

LI
N

G
 A

N
D

 
H

EA
TI

N
G

.
4.

 T
1,

 T
2,

 T
6 

A
ND

 T
7 

H
AV

E 
O

NE
 B

AT
HR

O
O

M
 N

A
TU

R
A

LL
Y 

LI
T 

AN
D

 A
LL

 O
TH

ER
 D

W
EL

LI
N

G
S 

TO
 H

A
VE

 2
 B

A
TH

RO
O

M
S

 N
A

TU
RA

LL
Y 

LI
T.

5.
  I

NS
TA

LL
 'A

PP
LI

A
N

C
ES

 &
 O

TH
E

R 
EF

FI
C

IE
N

C
Y 

M
EA

SU
R

ES
' A

C
CO

R
DI

N
G

 T
A

BL
E 

SP
E

CS
.

G
A

S 
C

O
O

KT
O

P 
&

 E
LE

C
TR

IC
AL

 O
V

EN
 

PR
IV

A
TE

 O
U

TD
O

O
R

 O
R

 U
N

S
HE

LT
ER

ED
 C

LO
TH

ES
 D

R
YI

NG
 L

IN
E

S

TH
ER

M
AL

 C
O

M
FO

RT
TH

E
 A

PP
LI

C
AN

T 
M

U
ST

:
1.

  C
O

NS
TR

UC
T 

A
CC

O
RD

IN
G

 T
H

E
 T

H
ER

M
AL

 S
P

EC
S.

 S
E

T 
O

U
T 

IN
 T

HE
 A

SS
ES

SO
R 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

E.
2.

  W
H

ER
E 

TH
ER

E 
IS

 A
N

 IN
-S

LA
B 

HE
AT

IN
G

 O
R

 C
O

O
LI

NG
 S

YS
TE

M
: I

N
ST

AL
L 

IN
SU

LA
TI

O
N

 W
IT

H
 A

N
 R

-V
AL

UE
 O

F 
N

O
T 

LE
SS

 T
H

A
N 

1.
0 

U
N

D
ER

N
EA

TH
 T

H
E 

SL
AB

 A
N

D 
AR

O
U

N
D

 T
H

E 
VE

RT
IC

AL
 E

D
G

E
S 

O
F 

TH
E 

PE
RI

M
ET

ER
 O

F 
TH

E
 S

LA
B;

 O
R

 O
N

 A
 S

U
SP

EN
D

ED
 F

LO
O

R,
 

IN
S

TA
LL

 IN
SU

LA
TI

O
N

 W
IT

H
 A

N
 R

-V
A

LU
E 

O
F 

NO
T 

LE
SS

 T
H

AN
 1

.0
 U

N
DE

R
N

EA
TH

 T
H

E 
SL

AB
 A

N
D 

AR
O

U
ND

 T
H

E 
VE

RT
IC

AL
 E

D
G

E
S 

O
F 

TH
E

 P
ER

IM
ET

ER
 O

F 
TH

E 
SL

AB
.

3.
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T 
FL

O
O

R
S 

AN
D

 W
AL

LS
 IN

 A
C

C
O

R
DA

N
C

E 
W

IT
H

 T
A

BL
E 

SP
E

CS
.

D
E

R
E

K
  R

A
IT

H
B

Y
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
U

R
E

in
fo

@
de

re
kr

ai
th

by
.c

om
.a

u 
   

   
   

 

C
lie

nt
:

D
O

 N
O

T
 S

C
A

L
E

 O
F

F
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

. 
W

O
R

K
 T

O
 F

IG
U

R
E

D
 D

IM
E

N
S

IO
N

S
 O

N
L

Y
. 

P
ro

je
ct

:

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 T
IT

L
E

S
ca

le
:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o.

D
ra

w
n/

C
he

ck
ed

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
.

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

T 
:  

( 0
 2

 ) 
 9

 5
 1

 8
  3

 5
 6

 3
   

  A
 B

 N
 : 

6 
1 

6 
1 

3 
1 

7 
4 

0 
2 

0

4
4

3
 P

A
R

R
A

M
A

T
T

A
 R

O
A

D
,

L 
E

 I
 C

 H
 H

 A
 R

 D
 T

   
N

 S
 W

   
2

 0
 4

 0

D
A

 S
U

B
M

IS
S

IO
N

D
at

e:

A1 ORIGINAL SIZE

Ar
ch

ite
ct

  #
74

69
A

L
L

 D
IM

E
N

S
IO

N
S

 A
R

E
 T

O
 B

E
 C

O
N

F
IR

M
E

D
 O

N
 S

IT
E

 P
R

IO
R

 T
O

 C
O

M
M

E
N

C
E

M
E

N
T

 O
F

 
W

O
R

K
. R

E
P

O
R

T
 A

N
Y

 D
IS

C
R

E
P

A
N

C
IE

S
 T

O
 T

H
E

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

. 
N

O
M

IN
A

T
E

D
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
 

D
E

R
E

K
 R

A
IT

H
B

Y
 R

E
G

: 7
4

69
 C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T 
D

R
A

 (
A

U
S

) 
P

T
Y

 L
T

D

1
:2

0
0@

A
3

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l A
s 

in
d

ic
at

e
d@

A
1

LE
V

E
L 

T
W

O
 F

LO
O

R
 P

LA
N

20
07

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
IA

L
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

M
R

 D
A

V
ID

 F
IN

D
LA

Y

A
L 

/
D

R

0
4

/2
02

0

0
5

1
5

-1
7

 W
il

li
a

m
 S

tr
e

et
,

A
le

xa
n

d
ri

a
 2

0
1

5

T
O

W
N

P
LA

N
N

IN
G

A
B

C
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
S

H
O

P
 4

/5
0

0 
E

LI
Z

A
B

E
T

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T
,

S
U

R
R

Y
 H

IL
LS

 N
S

W
 2

0
10

(0
2)

 9
31

0
 4

97
9

an
th

o
ny

@
a

bc
pl

a
n.

co
m

.a
u

B
C

A

D
E

S
IG

N
 C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

C
E

 P
T

Y
 L

T
D

S
H

O
P

 2
/3

5
 B

U
C

K
IN

G
H

A
M

 S
T

R
E

E
T

S
U

R
R

Y
 H

IL
LS

 N
S

W
 2

01
0

(0
2)

 8
39

9
 3

70
7

sy
dn

e
y@

de
si

g
nc

o
nf

id
e

nc
e

.c
o

m

H
Y

D
R

A
U

LI
C T

A
A

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

IN
G

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

 2
01

/2
5

F
A

L
C

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 C
R

O
W

S
 N

E
S

T
 N

S
W

20
65

04
11

77
87

99
ta

ae
ng

in
ee

rs
@

g
m

ai
l.c

o
m

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E C
O

N
Z

E
P

T
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

S
S

U
IT

E
1

01
/ 5

06
 M

IL
L

E
R

 S
T

,
C

A
M

M
E

R
A

Y
 N

S
W

 2
06

2

(0
2)

9
92

2
 5

31
2

e
nq

ur
ie

s@
co

nz
ep

t.
ne

t.
au

B
A

S
IX

G
R

A
D

W
E

LL
 C

O
N

S
U

LT
IN

G
P

O
 B

O
X

 8
1

9 
B

O
W

R
A

L
 N

S
W

25
76

04
0

89
6

41
3

9
da

vi
d@

g
ra

d
w

el
lc

on
su

lti
ng

.c
o

m

1
 : 

10
0

L
E

V
E

L 
T

W
O

 F
L

O
O

R
 P

L
A

N
1

FI
N

IS
H

ES
 L

EG
EN

D

Sy
m

bo
l

Ty
pe

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

BL
1

Ty
pe

: W
al

l F
in

is
he

s
C

ha
rc

oa
l P

ow
de

r C
oa

te
d 

Ba
lu

st
ra

de
BW

Ty
pe

: W
al

l F
in

ish
es

Ex
po

se
d 

re
d 

br
ic

k 
w

al
l t

o 
cl

ie
nt

's 
ch

oi
ce

C
CR

Fl
oo

r F
in

ish
Po

lis
he

d 
co

nc
re

te
 fl

oo
rin

g
C

PT
Ty

pe
: F

lo
or

 F
in

is
h

D
ye

d 
ny

lo
n 

ca
rp

et
G

L
W

in
do

w
 &

 D
oo

r T
yp

e
C

le
ar

 g
la

ss
 lo

ur
ve

s 
w

ith
 c

ha
rc

oa
l p

ow
de

r c
oa

te
d 

fra
m

e
M

L
M

et
al

 F
ra

m
e

C
ha

rc
oa

l P
ow

de
r C

oa
te

d 
Sc

re
en

s
M

R
Ro

of
 F

in
ish

C
ol

ou
rb

on
d 

'M
on

um
en

t' 
or

 s
ilim

ar
P1

W
al

l F
in

ish
Du

lu
x 

'N
at

ur
al

 w
hi

te
' o

r s
im

ila
r

P2
W

al
l F

in
ish

Du
lu

x 
'T

ra
nq

ui
l R

et
re

at
' o

r s
im

ila
r

T1
Ty

pe
: F

lo
or

 F
in

is
h

Ex
te

rn
al

 b
al

co
ny

 ti
le

s
T2

Ty
pe

: F
lo

or
 F

in
is

h
W

et
 a

re
a 

tile
s

TB
Fl

oo
r F

in
is

h
O

ak
 ti

m
be

r f
lo

or
in

g
TP

Ty
pe

: W
al

l F
in

ish
Ti

m
be

r p
er

go
la

W
1

Ty
pe

:W
in

do
w 

Fr
am

e
C

ha
rc

oa
l P

ow
de

r C
oa

te
d 

W
in

do
w

 F
ra

m
e

R
ev

.
D

at
e

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

B
y

1
10

/2
0

D
A

 S
U

B
M

IS
S

IO
N

A
L

2
03

/2
1

FO
R

 C
O

O
R

D
IN

A
TI

O
N

A
L

3
04

/2
1

IS
S

U
E

 T
O

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

A
L

49



D
N

D
N

D
N

D
N

D
N

D
N

D
N

1 0
9

A
A

B
B

TE
R

R
A

C
E

ST
AI

R

BA
LC

O
N

Y
BE

LO
W

PL
AN

TE
RB

O
X

(C.O.S)

203096008700

(C.O.S)

10270

BBQ

2 0
9

TE
R

R
AC

E
BE

LO
W

R
O

O
F

F
F

L 
25

.8
20

F
F

L 
25

.8
20

F
F

L 
25

.8
20

11
-1

3 
W

IL
LI

A
M

 S
TR

EE
T

TH
R

EE
-S

TO
R

EY
 

TO
W

N
H

O
U

SE
S

M
ET

A
L 

R
O

O
F

VO
ID

TE
RR

A
C

E

ST
AI

R

BA
LC

O
NY

BE
LO

WPL
AN

TE
RB

O
X

BBQ

TE
R

R
AC

E
BE

LO
W

R
O

O
F

TE
R

R
A

C
E

ST
AI

R

BA
LC

O
N

Y
BE

LO
W

PL
AN

TE
RB

O
X

BBQ

TE
R

R
AC

E
BE

LO
W

R
O

O
F

TE
RR

A
C

E

ST
AI

R

BA
LC

O
NY

BE
LO

WPL
AN

TE
RB

O
X

BBQ

TE
R

R
AC

E
BE

LO
W

R
O

O
F

TE
RR

A
C

E

ST
AI

R

BA
LC

O
NY

BE
LO

WPL
AN

TE
RB

O
X

BBQ

TE
R

R
AC

E
BE

LO
W

R
O

O
F

TE
R

R
A

C
E

ST
AI

R

BA
LC

O
N

Y
BE

LO
W

PL
AN

TE
RB

O
X

BBQ

TE
R

R
AC

E
BE

LO
W

R
O

O
F

1 1

2 2

3 3

4 4

5 5

6 6

TP

T1
T1

T1
T1

T1
T1

F
F

L 
29

.3
25

F
F

L 
29

.3
25

F
F

L 
29

.3
25

F
F

L 
29

.3
25

F
F

L 
29

.3
25

F
F

L 
29

.3
25

F
F

L 
25

.8
20

F
F

L 
25

.8
20

F
F

L 
25

.8
20

pe
rg

ol
a 

ab
ov

e
pe

rg
ol

a 
ab

ov
e

pe
rg

ol
a 

ab
ov

e
pe

rg
ol

a 
ab

ov
e

pe
rg

ol
a 

ab
ov

e
pe

rg
ol

a 
ab

ov
e

(c
.o

.s
)

49
5

5
51

1
5

51
1

5
51

1
5

51
1

5
51

1
5

(c
.o

.s
)

52
1

5

PL
AN

TE
R

BO
X

PL
AN

TE
RB

O
X

PL
AN

TE
R

BO
X

P
LA

N
TE

RB
O

X
PL

AN
TE

RB
O

X
P

LA
N

TE
RB

O
X

PL
AN

TE
R

BO
X

PL
AN

TE
R

BO
X

PL
AN

TE
R

BO
X

PL
AN

TE
R

BO
X

BOUNDARY

BOUNDARY

BOUNDARY

BOUNDARY

TE
RR

A
C

E

ST
AI

R

BA
LC

O
NY

BE
LO

WPL
AN

TE
RB

O
X

BBQ

TE
R

R
AC

E
BE

LO
W

R
O

O
F

PL
AN

TE
R

BO
X

T1

F
F

L 
29

.3
25

pe
rg

ol
a 

ab
ov

e

(c
.o

.s
)

55
2

5
51

1
5

51
1

5
51

1
5

51
1

5
51

1
5

(c
.o

.s
)

51
0

0

F
F

L 
25

.8
20

PL
AN

TE
RB

O
X

PL
AN

TE
RB

O
X

PL
AN

TE
RB

O
X

PL
AN

TE
RB

O
X

PL
AN

TE
RB

O
X

PL
AN

TE
RB

O
X

PL
AN

TE
RB

O
X

M
R

M
R

DR
AI

N

R
W

O

R
W

O

DR
AI

N

dp
dp

dp
dp

dp
dp

dp

DR
AI

N

R
W

O

R
W

O

DR
AI

N

DR
AI

N

R
W

O

R
W

O

DR
AI

N

DR
AI

N

R
W

O

R
W

O

DR
AI

N

DR
AI

N

R
W

O

R
W

O

DR
AI

N

DR
AI

N

R
W

O

R
W

O

DR
AI

N

DR
AI

N

R
W

O

R
W

O

DR
AI

N

C
O

LO
U

R
BO

N
D

 R
O

O
F 

S
HE

ET
IN

G
 

R
EF

E
R

 T
O

 F
IN

IS
H

ES
 S

C
H

ED
UL

E 
&

 
M

AN
U

FA
C

TU
R

ER
'S

 S
P

EC
.

FALL 5°

FALL 5°

M
R

M
R

M
R

M
R

FALL 5°

FALL 5°

FALL 5°

G
R

EE
N

 
W

A
LL

RE
FE

R
 T

O
 L

A
N

D
SC

AP
E

 D
R

AW
IN

G
S 

FO
R 

S
PE

C
.&

 D
E

TA
IL

S

G
R

EE
N

 
W

A
LL

G
R

EE
N

 
W

A
LL

G
R

EE
N

 
W

A
LL

G
R

EE
N

 
W

A
LL

G
R

EE
N

 
W

A
LL

G
R

EE
N

 
W

A
LL

RO
O

F 
LI

N
E 

AB
O

VE

G
U

TT
ER

FALL 5°

FALL 5°M
R

(C.O.S)

225096008700

(C.O.S)

10045

M
S

B
M

AI
N

 S
W

IT
CH

 B
O

AR
D

D
O

W
N 

PI
PE

D
P

 

D
RA

IN
 O

U
TL

ET
D

O

R
ET

AI
NI

N
G

 W
AL

L
R

W
 

EX
IS

TI
NG

E
X

EQ
U

AL
E

Q

FL
O

O
R 

W
AS

TE
F

W

FI
N

IS
H

ED
 F

LO
O

R 
LE

VE
L

F
F

L

R
AI

N
 W

AT
ER

 O
U

TL
ET

R
W

O

G
EN

ER
A

L 
N

O
TE

S

W
A

LL
 T

YP
ES

:
-E

X
TE

RN
AL

 W
AL

LS
 T

O
 B

E
 2

00
M

M
 C

O
N

CR
ET

E 
W

A
LL

, 
C

EM
E

NT
 R

EN
D

ER
E

D 
A

ND
 P

AI
N

T 
AS

 S
PE

C
IF

IE
D

 IN
 T

HE
 

FI
N

IS
H

ES
 S

CH
ED

U
LE

. M
U

S
T 

BE
 N

O
N-

C
O

M
B

US
TI

B
LE

.

-A
LL

 IN
TE

R
N

AL
 W

AL
LS

 T
O

 B
E

 1
10

M
M

 T
IM

BE
R 

ST
UD

 W
A

LL
S.

M
U

ST
 B

E 
N

O
N

-C
O

M
B

US
TI

BL
E 

W
HE

R
E 

R
EQ

U
IR

ED
 T

O
 B

E 
FI

R
E-

R
ES

IS
TI

N
G

.

P
R

H
S

PE
RM

AN
E

NT
LY

 F
IX

ED
 R

A
D

IA
N

T 
H

EA
T 

AT
TE

N
UA

TI
O

N
 S

C
R

EE
NS

P
O

S
PR

IV
AT

E 
O

PE
N

 S
PA

CE

A
C

O
U

ST
IC

 N
O

TE
S

R
EC

O
M

M
E

N
D

ED
 P

AR
TI

TI
O

N
 W

AL
L 

SY
ST

EM

PA
RT

IT
IO

N
C

O
NS

TR
UC

TI
O

N/
 D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

AI
RB

O
RN

E 
SO

U
ND

IM
PA

CT
 S

O
U

ND

FL
O

O
R

SE
PA

R
AT

IN
G

 S
O

U'
S,

 O
R

 A
N

 S
O

U 
FR

O
M

 
A 

PL
A

NT
 R

O
O

M
, L

IF
T 

SH
AF

T,
 

ST
AI

R
W

AY
, P

UB
LI

C
 C

O
R

R
ID

O
R

, P
U

BL
IC

 
LO

BB
Y 

O
R

 T
H

E 
LI

K
E,

 O
R

 P
AR

T 
O

F 
A 

D
IF

FE
RE

NT
 C

LA
SS

IF
IC

A
TI

O
N

 

R
w+

 C
tr 

≥
50

Ln
, w

 ≤
62

IN
TE

R
-

TE
N

AN
C

Y 
W

A
LL

R
w+

 C
tr 

≥
50

N
O

T
A

PP
LI

C
AB

LE

D
O

O
R

LO
C

AT
ED

 IN
 A

 W
AL

L 
SE

PA
R

TI
NG

 A
N

 
S

O
U

 F
R

O
M

 A
 S

TA
IR

W
AY

, P
UB

LI
C

 
C

O
R

R
ID

O
R

, P
U

BL
IC

 L
O

BB
Y

 O
R

 T
H

E
 L

IK
E

R
w 

≥
30

N
O

T 
A

PP
LI

C
AB

LE

SE
RV

IC
E

S
D

UC
T,

 S
O

IL
, W

A
ST

E 
O

R
 W

A
TE

R
 S

U
PP

LY
 

P
IP

ES
 L

O
C

A
TE

D
 IN

 A
 W

A
LL

 O
R

 F
LO

O
R

 
C

AV
IT

Y 
AN

D
 S

E
RV

ES
 O

R
 P

AS
SE

S 
TH

R
O

U
G

H
 M

O
R

E 
TH

AN
 O

N
E 

S
O

U
 

(IN
C

LU
D

IN
G

 A
 S

TO
RM

W
AT

ER
 P

IP
E)

N
O

T 
A

PP
LI

C
AB

LE
R

w+
 C

tr 
≥

40
(H

A
BI

TA
BL

E
)

R
w+

C
tr 

≥
25

 
(O

TH
ER

)

R
EC

O
M

M
EN

DE
D

 P
A

RT
IT

IO
N

 F
LO

O
R

 / 
C

EI
LI

N
G

 S
Y

ST
EM

S

C
AR

PE
T 

FL
O

O
R

S 
-S

TA
N

DA
R

D 
CA

R
PE

T 
U

ND
ER

LA
YS

 7
m

m
 T

HI
C

K 
O

VE
R 

& 
G

RE
AT

ER
 T

H
AN

 1
50

 m
m

 C
O

N
CR

ET
E

10
0 

m
m

 D
EE

P 
C

A
VI

TY
 B

E
NE

AT
H 

W
IT

H 
13

 m
m

 S
U

S
PE

N
D

ED
 P

LA
ST

ER
BO

AR
D 

C
EI

LI
N

G
 W

IL
L 

TY
PI

C
AL

LY
 P

R
O

VI
D

E 
AN

 L
'n

Tw
  ≤

40
.

12
5 

m
m

 C
O

NC
RE

TE
 P

AN
EL

, 2
0m

m
 

C
AV

IT
Y,

 6
4m

m
 S

TE
EL

 S
TU

D
S

, 7
0m

m
 

PO
LY

ES
TE

R 
IN

S
U

LA
TI

O
N

 &
 1

3m
m

 
C

EM
E

NT
 R

EN
D

ER
 T

O
 E

AC
H

 S
ID

E

D
IS

C
O

NT
IN

UO
U

S

20
0 

m
m

 C
O

NC
RE

TE
 P

AN
EL

, 1
3m

m
 

C
EM

E
NT

 R
EN

D
ER

 T
O

 E
AC

H
 S

ID
E

R
w+

 C
tr 

≥
50

C
O

M
M

O
N

 
W

A
LL

12
5 

m
m

 T
H

IC
K

 C
O

N
CR

E
TE

 P
A

NE
L

R
w 

≥
50

B
A

SI
X

N
O

TE
S

R
EF

ER
 T

O
 C

E
R

TI
FI

CA
TE

 F
O

R 
C

O
M

PL
E

TE
 D

ET
AI

LS
 &

 R
EQ

UI
RE

M
E

NT
S

TH
ER

M
AL

 S
PE

C
IF

IC
A

TI
O

N
S

1.
 P

R
O

VI
D

E
 E

X
TE

RN
A

L 
W

IN
D

O
W

S 
A

ND
 D

O
O

R
 S

YS
TE

M
S:

a)
 S

IN
G

LE
 L

O
W

 E
; A

LU
M

IN
IU

M
 F

R
AM

E;
 U

W
5.

4/
SH

G
C

W
0.

49
  F

O
R 

C
AS

EM
EN

T 
EN

TR
Y 

D
O

O
R

 (T
1,

T4
,T

5,
T8

,T
10

,T
11

,T
12

)
b)

 S
IN

G
LE

 L
O

W
 E

; A
LU

M
IN

IU
M

 F
R

AM
E;

 U
W

5.
4/

SH
G

C
W

0.
58

  F
O

R 
FI

XE
D 

LO
UR

VE
S,

 S
LI

DI
N

G
 (T

1,
T4

,T
5,

T8
,T

10
,T

11
,T

12
)

c)
 S

IN
G

LE
 C

LE
AR

; A
LU

M
IN

IU
M

 F
R

AM
E;

 U
W

6.
7/

SH
G

C
W

0.
57

  F
O

R
 C

AS
EM

EN
T 

EN
TR

Y 
D

O
O

R
 (T

2,
T3

,T
6,

T7
,T

9,
T1

3,
T1

4)
d)

 S
IN

G
LE

 C
LE

AR
; A

LU
M

IN
IU

M
 F

R
AM

E;
 U

W
6.

7/
SH

G
C

W
0.

70
  F

O
R

 F
IX

E
D 

LO
UR

VE
S,

 S
LI

DI
N

G
 (T

2,
T3

,T
6,

T7
,T

9,
T1

3,
T1

4)

2.
 E

XT
ER

N
A

L 
W

A
LL

S:
 M

IN
. R

2.
5 

IN
SU

LA
TE

D
 M

E
TA

L 
C

LA
D

D
IN

G
 W

A
LL

; M
IN

. R
1.

5 
C

O
NC

RE
TE

 L
IN

ED
 W

AL
L 

& 
R

2.
5 

B
R

IC
K

 V
E

N
EE

R
 W

AL
L

3.
 IN

TE
R

N
AL

 W
AL

LS
: R

2.
5 

B
U

LK
 P

LA
ST

ER
BO

AR
D

 O
N

 S
TU

D
4.

 F
LO

O
R

S:
 M

IN
. R

4.
0 

IN
SU

LA
TI

O
N

 C
O

N
CR

ET
E 

FL
O

O
R

 A
BO

V
E 

G
AR

AG
E 

& 
M

IN
. R

1.
4 

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E 
FL

O
O

R 
W

H
ER

E 
O

PE
N

 B
E

LO
W

5.
 C

EI
LI

N
G

S
: R

4.
0 

B
U

LK
 P

LA
ST

ER
BO

AR
D

 B
E

LO
W

 M
E

TA
L 

D
EC

K
6.

 R
O

O
F:

 6
0 

m
m

 A
NT

IC
O

N
 (R

1.
3)

 M
ET

AL
 D

EC
K 

R
O

O
F 

& 
80

 m
m

 P
IR

 O
R

 E
Q

U
IV

 (R
4.

0)
 C

O
N

C
R

ET
E 

R
O

O
F

W
AT

ER
TH

E
 A

PP
LI

C
AN

T 
M

U
ST

 :
1.

 P
LA

N
T 

IN
D

IG
EN

O
U

S 
O

R
 L

O
W

 W
AT

ER
 U

SE
 S

P
EC

IE
S 

O
F 

VE
G

E
TA

TI
O

N
 T

H
R

O
UG

H
O

U
T 

TH
E

 A
RE

A 
O

F 
LA

ND
 S

PE
C

FI
ED

 F
O

R
 T

H
E 

D
W

EL
LI

N
G

.
2.

 IN
ST

AL
L 

FI
X

TU
RE

S 
O

R
 A

P
PL

IA
NC

ES
 A

CC
O

R
D

IN
G

 R
A

TI
N

G
 S

PE
C

IF
IE

D
.

SH
O

W
ER

 H
EA

D
S

: 3
 S

TA
R

 (>
6 

B
UT

 <
=7

.5
L/

M
IN

); 
TO

IL
E

T 
FL

US
H

IN
G

 S
YS

TE
M

, K
IT

C
HE

N
 T

AP
S

AN
D

 B
AT

H
RO

O
M

 T
AP

S:
 4

 S
TA

R
; 

3.
 N

O
 H

O
T 

W
A

TE
R 

R
EC

IR
C

U
LA

TI
O

N 
SY

ST
EM

 O
R

 D
IV

ER
SI

O
N

 T
O

 B
E 

IN
ST

A
LL

E
D

;

EN
ER

G
Y

TH
E

 A
PP

LI
C

AN
T 

M
U

ST
:

1.
  I

NS
TA

LL
 H

O
T 

W
AT

ER
 S

Y
ST

EM
 A

S
 S

PE
CI

FI
E

D
; G

A
S 

IN
S

TA
NT

AN
EO

U
S

: 5
 S

TA
R

2.
  V

E
NT

IL
A

TI
O

N
 S

YS
TE

M
 A

S 
IN

D
IV

ID
U

AL
 F

AN
, D

U
CT

ED
 T

O
 F

AC
AD

E 
O

R
 R

O
O

F 
A

ND
 M

AN
UA

L 
S

W
IT

C
H

 O
N

/ O
FF

 F
O

R 
EA

C
H

 
BA

TH
R

O
O

M
,K

IT
C

HE
N

 A
N

D 
LA

U
ND

R
Y,

 A
CC

O
RD

IN
G

 S
PE

C
S

.
3.

 A
LL

 D
W

E
LL

IN
G

S 
TO

 IN
ST

AL
L 

1-
PH

AS
E 

AI
R

C
O

ND
IT

IO
NI

N
G

 2
 S

TA
R 

ZO
N

E
DI

N
 L

IV
IN

G
 A

R
EA

S,
 B

ED
R

O
O

M
 A

R
EA

S 
FO

R 
C

O
O

LI
N

G
 A

N
D

 
H

EA
TI

N
G

.
4.

 T
1,

 T
2,

 T
6 

A
ND

 T
7 

H
AV

E 
O

NE
 B

AT
HR

O
O

M
 N

A
TU

R
A

LL
Y 

LI
T 

AN
D

 A
LL

 O
TH

ER
 D

W
EL

LI
N

G
S 

TO
 H

A
VE

 2
 B

A
TH

RO
O

M
S

 N
A

TU
RA

LL
Y 

LI
T.

5.
  I

NS
TA

LL
 'A

PP
LI

A
N

C
ES

 &
 O

TH
E

R 
EF

FI
C

IE
N

C
Y 

M
EA

SU
R

ES
' A

C
CO

R
DI

N
G

 T
A

BL
E 

SP
E

CS
.

G
A

S 
C

O
O

KT
O

P 
&

 E
LE

C
TR

IC
AL

 O
V

EN
 

PR
IV

A
TE

 O
U

TD
O

O
R

 O
R

 U
N

S
HE

LT
ER

ED
 C

LO
TH

ES
 D

R
YI

NG
 L

IN
E

S

TH
ER

M
AL

 C
O

M
FO

RT
TH

E
 A

PP
LI

C
AN

T 
M

U
ST

:
1.

  C
O

NS
TR

UC
T 

A
CC

O
RD

IN
G

 T
H

E
 T

H
ER

M
AL

 S
P

EC
S.

 S
E

T 
O

U
T 

IN
 T

HE
 A

SS
ES

SO
R 

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

E.
2.

  W
H

ER
E 

TH
ER

E 
IS

 A
N

 IN
-S

LA
B 

HE
AT

IN
G

 O
R

 C
O

O
LI

NG
 S

YS
TE

M
: I

N
ST

AL
L 

IN
SU

LA
TI

O
N

 W
IT

H
 A

N
 R

-V
AL

UE
 O

F 
N

O
T 

LE
SS

 T
H

A
N 

1.
0 

U
N

D
ER

N
EA

TH
 T

H
E 

SL
AB

 A
N

D 
AR

O
U

N
D

 T
H

E 
VE

RT
IC

AL
 E

D
G

E
S 

O
F 

TH
E 

PE
RI

M
ET

ER
 O

F 
TH

E
 S

LA
B;

 O
R

 O
N

 A
 S

U
SP

EN
D

ED
 F

LO
O

R,
 

IN
S

TA
LL

 IN
SU

LA
TI

O
N

 W
IT

H
 A

N
 R

-V
A

LU
E 

O
F 

NO
T 

LE
SS

 T
H

AN
 1

.0
 U

N
DE

R
N

EA
TH

 T
H

E 
SL

AB
 A

N
D 

AR
O

U
ND

 T
H

E 
VE

RT
IC

AL
 E

D
G

E
S 

O
F 

TH
E

 P
ER

IM
ET

ER
 O

F 
TH

E 
SL

AB
.

3.
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T 
FL

O
O

R
S 

AN
D

 W
AL

LS
 IN

 A
C

C
O

R
DA

N
C

E 
W

IT
H

 T
A

BL
E 

SP
E

CS
.

D
E

R
E

K
  R

A
IT

H
B

Y
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
U

R
E

in
fo

@
de

re
kr

ai
th

by
.c

om
.a

u 
   

   
   

 

C
lie

nt
:

D
O

 N
O

T
 S

C
A

L
E

 O
F

F
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

. 
W

O
R

K
 T

O
 F

IG
U

R
E

D
 D

IM
E

N
S

IO
N

S
 O

N
L

Y
. 

P
ro

je
ct

:

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 T
IT

L
E

S
ca

le
:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o.

D
ra

w
n/

C
he

ck
ed

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
.

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

T 
:  

( 0
 2

 ) 
 9

 5
 1

 8
  3

 5
 6

 3
   

  A
 B

 N
 : 

6 
1 

6 
1 

3 
1 

7 
4 

0 
2 

0

4
4

3
 P

A
R

R
A

M
A

T
T

A
 R

O
A

D
,

L 
E

 I
 C

 H
 H

 A
 R

 D
 T

   
N

 S
 W

   
2

 0
 4

 0

D
A

 S
U

B
M

IS
S

IO
N

D
at

e:

A1 ORIGINAL SIZE

Ar
ch

ite
ct

  #
74

69
A

L
L

 D
IM

E
N

S
IO

N
S

 A
R

E
 T

O
 B

E
 C

O
N

F
IR

M
E

D
 O

N
 S

IT
E

 P
R

IO
R

 T
O

 C
O

M
M

E
N

C
E

M
E

N
T

 O
F

 
W

O
R

K
. R

E
P

O
R

T
 A

N
Y

 D
IS

C
R

E
P

A
N

C
IE

S
 T

O
 T

H
E

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

. 
N

O
M

IN
A

T
E

D
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
 

D
E

R
E

K
 R

A
IT

H
B

Y
 R

E
G

: 7
4

69
 C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T 
D

R
A

 (
A

U
S

) 
P

T
Y

 L
T

D

1
:2

0
0@

A
3

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l A
s 

in
d

ic
at

e
d@

A
1

R
O

O
F 

P
LA

N

20
07

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
IA

L
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

M
R

 D
A

V
ID

 F
IN

D
LA

Y

A
L 

/
D

R

0
4

/2
02

0

0
6

1
5

-1
7

 W
il

li
a

m
 S

tr
e

et
,

A
le

xa
n

d
ri

a
 2

0
1

5

T
O

W
N

P
LA

N
N

IN
G

A
B

C
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
S

H
O

P
 4

/5
0

0 
E

LI
Z

A
B

E
T

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T
,

S
U

R
R

Y
 H

IL
LS

 N
S

W
 2

0
10

(0
2)

 9
31

0
 4

97
9

an
th

o
ny

@
a

bc
pl

a
n.

co
m

.a
u

B
C

A

D
E

S
IG

N
 C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

C
E

 P
T

Y
 L

T
D

S
H

O
P

 2
/3

5
 B

U
C

K
IN

G
H

A
M

 S
T

R
E

E
T

S
U

R
R

Y
 H

IL
LS

 N
S

W
 2

01
0

(0
2)

 8
39

9
 3

70
7

sy
dn

e
y@

de
si

g
nc

o
nf

id
e

nc
e

.c
o

m

H
Y

D
R

A
U

LI
C T

A
A

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

IN
G

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

 2
01

/2
5

F
A

L
C

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 C
R

O
W

S
 N

E
S

T
 N

S
W

20
65

04
11

77
87

99
ta

ae
ng

in
ee

rs
@

g
m

ai
l.c

o
m

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E C
O

N
Z

E
P

T
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

S
S

U
IT

E
1

01
/ 5

06
 M

IL
L

E
R

 S
T

,
C

A
M

M
E

R
A

Y
 N

S
W

 2
06

2

(0
2)

9
92

2
 5

31
2

e
nq

ur
ie

s@
co

nz
ep

t.
ne

t.
au

B
A

S
IX

G
R

A
D

W
E

LL
 C

O
N

S
U

LT
IN

G
P

O
 B

O
X

 8
1

9 
B

O
W

R
A

L
 N

S
W

25
76

04
0

89
6

41
3

9
da

vi
d@

g
ra

d
w

el
lc

on
su

lti
ng

.c
o

m

1
 : 

10
0

R
O

O
F

 P
LA

N
1

FI
N

IS
H

ES
 L

EG
EN

D

Sy
m

bo
l

Ty
pe

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

BL
1

Ty
pe

: W
al

l F
in

is
he

s
Ch

ar
co

al
 P

ow
de

r C
oa

te
d 

Ba
lu

st
ra

de
BW

Ty
pe

: W
al

l F
in

ish
es

Ex
po

se
d 

re
d 

br
ic

k 
w

al
l t

o 
cli

en
t's

 c
ho

ic
e

C
CR

Fl
oo

r F
in

ish
Po

lis
he

d 
co

nc
re

te
 fl

oo
rin

g
C

PT
Ty

pe
: F

lo
or

 F
in

is
h

D
ye

d 
ny

lo
n 

ca
rp

et
G

L
W

in
do

w 
& 

D
oo

r T
yp

e
C

le
ar

 g
la

ss
 lo

ur
ve

s 
w

ith
 c

ha
rc

oa
l p

ow
de

r c
oa

te
d 

fra
m

e
M

L
M

et
al

 F
ra

m
e

Ch
ar

co
al

 P
ow

de
r C

oa
te

d 
Sc

re
en

s
M

R
Ro

of
 F

in
ish

C
ol

ou
rb

on
d 

'M
on

um
en

t' 
or

 s
ilim

ar
P1

W
al

l F
in

ish
D

ul
ux

 'N
at

ur
al

 w
hi

te
' o

r s
im

ila
r

P2
W

al
l F

in
ish

D
ul

ux
 'T

ra
nq

ui
l R

et
re

at
' o

r s
im

ila
r

T1
Ty

pe
: F

lo
or

 F
in

is
h

Ex
te

rn
al

 b
al

co
ny

 ti
le

s
T2

Ty
pe

: F
lo

or
 F

in
is

h
W

et
 a

re
a 

til
es

TB
Fl

oo
r F

in
is

h
O

ak
 ti

m
be

r f
lo

or
in

g
TP

Ty
pe

: W
al

l F
in

ish
Ti

m
be

r p
er

go
la

W
1

Ty
pe

:W
in

do
w 

Fr
am

e
Ch

ar
co

al
 P

ow
de

r C
oa

te
d 

W
in

do
w

 F
ra

m
e

R
ev

.
D

at
e

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

B
y

1
10

/2
0

D
A

 S
U

B
M

IS
S

IO
N

A
L

2
03

/2
1

FO
R

 C
O

O
R

D
IN

A
TI

O
N

A
L

3
04

/2
1

IS
S

U
E

 T
O

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

A
L

50



B
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

1
6

4
2

0

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 T

H
R

EE
-S

TO
R

EY
 R

ES
ID

EN
TI

A
L 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T

N
o.

 1
1-

13
 W

IL
LI

A
M

 S
TR

EE
T

11
 T

H
R

EE
 S

TO
R

EY
 

TO
W

N
H

O
U

SE
S

N
o.

 1
9 

W
IL

LI
A

M
 S

TR
EE

T
SI

X 
TH

R
EE

 S
TO

R
EY

 
TO

W
N

H
O

U
SE

S

T
7

T
6

T
5

T
2

T
3

T
4

T
1

BDY

L
A

N
E

W
A

Y
 G

F

1
9

6
2

0

L
A

N
E

W
A

Y
 F

F

2
2

7
2

0

L
A

N
E

W
A

Y
 S

F

2
5

8
2

0

L
A

N
E

W
A

Y
 R

T

2
8

6
2

0

3200310031002800

1
2

3
4

5
6

W
4

W
4

W
4

FB

P2
M

L

G
L

M
R

D
R

IV
EW

A
Y 

B
EY

O
N

D

T8
 T

O
 T

14
 T

O
W

NH
O

U
SE

S 
BE

YO
ND

B
O

U
N

D
A

R
Y

B
O

U
N

D
A

R
Y

BDY

(c
.o

.s
)

51
00

51
15

51
15

51
15

51
15

51
15

(c
.o

.s
)

55
25

M
L

P2

W
4

W
4

W
4

W
4

W
4

W
4

W
2

W
4

W
4

W
4

W
4

W
4

W
4

W
4

W
4

W
6

P
H

R
S

2

W
2

W
2

P
H

R
S

2

R
ID

G
E

 R
L 

28
.6

21
R

L 
28

.9
20

TO
P

 O
F 

P
AR

AP
ET

 
B

EY
O

N
D

M
R

R
L 

32
.1

25

M
A

X.
 B

UI
LD

IN
G

 H
EI

G
H

T 

C
O

N
TR

O
L 

O
F 

15
 m

 B
Y 

LE
P

G
R

O
U

N
D

 F
L

O
O

R

2
0

0
2

5

G
R

O
U

N
D

 F
L

O
O

R

2
0

0
2

5

L
E

V
E

L
 O

N
E

2
3

1
2

5

L
E

V
E

L
 O

N
E

2
3

1
2

5

L
E

V
E

L
 T

W
O

2
6

2
2

5

L
E

V
E

L
 T

W
O

2
6

2
2

5

R
O

O
F

2
9

3
2

5

R
O

O
F

2
9

3
2

5

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 T

H
R

EE
-S

TO
R

EY
 R

ES
ID

EN
TI

A
L 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T

T
8

T
9

T
10

T
11

T
12

T
13

T
14

N
o.

 1
1-

13
 W

IL
LI

A
M

 S
T

11
 T

H
R

EE
 S

TO
R

EY
 

TO
W

N
H

O
U

SE
S

N
o.

 1
9 

W
IL

LI
A

M
 S

TR
EE

T
SI

X 
TH

R
EE

 S
TO

R
EY

 
TO

W
N

H
O

U
SE

S

BDY

BDY

3100 3100 3100

M
R

M
R

M
L

1
2

3
4

5
6

B
O

U
N

D
A

R
Y

B
O

U
N

D
A

R
Y

(c
.o

.s
)

49
55

51
15

51
15

51
15

51
15

51
15

(c
.o

.s
)

52
15

M
R

P2

W
4

W
4

W
2

W
2

W
2

W
2

W
2

W
2

W
2

W
4

W
4

W
4

W
4

W
4

W
4

W
2

W
1

W
1

W
1

W
1

W
1

W
1

W
4

W
4

W
2

W
2

W
2

W
2

W
2

W
2

P
R

H
S

P
R

H
S

W
4

W
2

W
2

W
2

W
2

W
2

W
2

W
2

W
2

W
2

W
4

P
H

R
S

2

W
2

P
R

H
S

P
R

H
S

P
H

R
S

2

P2

R
L 

27
.1

50

R
L 

32
.1

26
 R

ID
G

E

R
L 

30
.3

25

M
AX

. B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
E

IG
H

T 
O

F 
15

 m
 C

O
N

TR
O

L 
BY

 L
EP

B
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

1
6

4
2

0

L
A

N
E

W
A

Y
 G

F

1
9

6
2

0

L
A

N
E

W
A

Y
 F

F

2
2

7
2

0

L
A

N
E

W
A

Y
 S

F

2
5

8
2

0

L
A

N
E

W
A

Y
 R

T

2
8

6
2

0

1
2

3
4

5
6

W
3

W
2

W
3

W
3

W
2

W
2

W
2

P
R

H
S

S
D

1
S

D
1

S
D

1
S

D
1

S
D

1
S

D
1

S
D

1

G
L

F
D

F
D

TI
M

BE
R

 P
E

R
G

O
LA

M
ET

AL
 S

HE
E

TI
N

G
 W

IT
H

 T
IM

B
ER

 
ST

R
U

C
TU

R
E 

AN
D 

IN
S

U
LA

TI
O

N
 T

O
 

BA
SI

X
 S

PE
C

IF
IC

AT
IO

NS
.

D
R

IV
E

W
A

Y 
BE

Y
O

N
D

T
1

T
2

T
3

T
4

T
5

T
6

T
7

2800 3100 3100 3200

N
O

. 1
9 

W
IL

LI
A

M
 S

TR
EE

T
TH

R
EE

 S
TO

R
EY

 T
O

W
N

H
O

U
SE

S
N

O
. 1

1-
13

 W
IL

LI
A

M
 S

TR
EE

T
TH

R
EE

 S
TO

R
EY

 T
O

W
N

H
O

U
SE

S

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 T

H
R

EE
 S

TO
R

EY
 R

ES
ID

EN
TI

A
L 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

TS

B
O

U
N

D
A

R
Y

B
O

U
N

D
A

R
Y

(c
.o

.s
)

55
25

51
15

51
15

51
15

51
15

51
15

(c
.o

.s
)

51
00

BDY

BDY

W
2

W
2

W
2

W
3

W
3

W
2

W
3

W
3

N A
TU

R A
L  

G
R

O
U

N D
 L

IN
E N A

TU
R A

L  
G

R
O

U
N D

 L
IN

E

M
A X

.  B
U

I L
D

IN
G

 H
E I

G
H

T 
C

O
N

T R
O

L  
O

F 
1 5

m
 B

Y  
L E

P

W
3

W
2

W
3

W
2

W
3

FBP1

M
R

P1 FB

TP FB

P1

W
3 

A
FF

L

1000800600

22
2

0

FI
XE

D
  F

R
O

ST
ED

 
PA

N
E

O
PE

R
A

B
LE

 
C

LE
A

R
 P

A
N

E

W
2

1000800600

75
0

EX
A

M
PL

E 
IM

A
G

E 
O

F 
W

IN
D

O
W

 2
 &

 3

D
E

R
E

K
  R

A
IT

H
B

Y
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
U

R
E

in
fo

@
de

re
kr

ai
th

by
.c

om
.a

u 
   

   
   

 

C
lie

nt
:

D
O

 N
O

T
 S

C
A

L
E

 O
F

F
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

. 
W

O
R

K
 T

O
 F

IG
U

R
E

D
 D

IM
E

N
S

IO
N

S
 O

N
L

Y
. 

P
ro

je
ct

:

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 T
IT

L
E

S
ca

le
:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o.

D
ra

w
n/

C
he

ck
ed

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
.

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

T 
:  

( 0
 2

 ) 
 9

 5
 1

 8
  3

 5
 6

 3
   

  A
 B

 N
 : 

6 
1 

6 
1 

3 
1 

7 
4 

0 
2 

0

4
4

3
 P

A
R

R
A

M
A

T
T

A
 R

O
A

D
,

L 
E

 I
 C

 H
 H

 A
 R

 D
 T

   
N

 S
 W

   
2

 0
 4

 0

D
A

 S
U

B
M

IS
S

IO
N

D
at

e:

A1 ORIGINAL SIZE

Ar
ch

ite
ct

  #
74

69
A

L
L

 D
IM

E
N

S
IO

N
S

 A
R

E
 T

O
 B

E
 C

O
N

F
IR

M
E

D
 O

N
 S

IT
E

 P
R

IO
R

 T
O

 C
O

M
M

E
N

C
E

M
E

N
T

 O
F

 
W

O
R

K
. R

E
P

O
R

T
 A

N
Y

 D
IS

C
R

E
P

A
N

C
IE

S
 T

O
 T

H
E

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

. 
N

O
M

IN
A

T
E

D
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
 

D
E

R
E

K
 R

A
IT

H
B

Y
 R

E
G

: 7
4

69
 C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T 
D

R
A

 (
A

U
S

) 
P

T
Y

 L
T

D

1
:2

0
0@

A
3

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l A
s 

in
d

ic
at

e
d@

A
1

E
LE

V
A

T
IO

N
S

 N
O

R
T

H
 A

N
D

 S
O

U
T

H

20
07

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
IA

L
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

M
R

 D
A

V
ID

 F
IN

D
LA

Y

A
L 

/
D

R

0
4

/2
02

0

0
7

1
5

-1
7

 W
il

li
a

m
 S

tr
e

et
,

A
le

xa
n

d
ri

a
 2

0
1

5

T
O

W
N

P
LA

N
N

IN
G

A
B

C
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
S

H
O

P
 4

/5
0

0 
E

LI
Z

A
B

E
T

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T
,

S
U

R
R

Y
 H

IL
LS

 N
S

W
 2

0
10

(0
2)

 9
31

0
 4

97
9

an
th

o
ny

@
a

bc
pl

a
n.

co
m

.a
u

B
C

A

D
E

S
IG

N
 C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

C
E

 P
T

Y
 L

T
D

S
H

O
P

 2
/3

5
 B

U
C

K
IN

G
H

A
M

 S
T

R
E

E
T

S
U

R
R

Y
 H

IL
LS

 N
S

W
 2

01
0

(0
2)

 8
39

9
 3

70
7

sy
dn

e
y@

de
si

g
nc

o
nf

id
e

nc
e

.c
o

m

H
Y

D
R

A
U

LI
C T

A
A

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

IN
G

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

 2
01

/2
5

F
A

L
C

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 C
R

O
W

S
 N

E
S

T
 N

S
W

20
65

04
11

77
87

99
ta

ae
ng

in
ee

rs
@

g
m

ai
l.c

o
m

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E C
O

N
Z

E
P

T
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

S
S

U
IT

E
1

01
/ 5

06
 M

IL
L

E
R

 S
T

,
C

A
M

M
E

R
A

Y
 N

S
W

 2
06

2

(0
2)

9
92

2
 5

31
2

e
nq

ur
ie

s@
co

nz
ep

t.
ne

t.
au

B
A

S
IX

G
R

A
D

W
E

LL
 C

O
N

S
U

LT
IN

G
P

O
 B

O
X

 8
1

9 
B

O
W

R
A

L
 N

S
W

25
76

04
0

89
6

41
3

9
da

vi
d@

g
ra

d
w

el
lc

on
su

lti
ng

.c
o

m

1
 : 

10
0

N
O

R
T

H
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
2

1
 : 

10
0

S
O

U
T

H
 E

LE
V

A
T

IO
N

1

FI
N

IS
H

ES
 L

EG
EN

D

Sy
m

bo
l

Ty
pe

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

BL
1

Ty
pe

: W
al

l F
in

is
he

s
Ch

ar
co

al
 P

ow
de

r C
oa

te
d 

Ba
lu

st
ra

de
BW

Ty
pe

: W
al

l F
in

is
he

s
Ex

po
se

d 
re

d 
br

ic
k 

w
al

l t
o 

cl
ie

nt
's 

ch
oi

ce
C

CR
Fl

oo
r F

in
is

h
Po

lis
he

d 
co

nc
re

te
 fl

oo
rin

g
C

PT
Ty

pe
: F

lo
or

 F
in

is
h

D
ye

d 
ny

lo
n 

ca
rp

et
G

L
W

in
do

w 
& 

D
oo

r T
yp

e
C

le
ar

 g
la

ss
 lo

ur
ve

s 
w

ith
 c

ha
rc

oa
l p

ow
de

r c
oa

te
d 

fra
m

e
M

L
M

et
al

 F
ra

m
e

Ch
ar

co
al

 P
ow

de
r C

oa
te

d 
Sc

re
en

s
M

R
Ro

of
 F

in
ish

C
ol

ou
rb

on
d 

'M
on

um
en

t' 
or

 s
ilim

ar
P1

W
al

l F
in

ish
D

ul
ux

 'N
at

ur
al

 w
hi

te
' o

r s
im

ila
r

P2
W

al
l F

in
ish

D
ul

ux
 'T

ra
nq

ui
l R

et
re

at
' o

r s
im

ila
r

T1
Ty

pe
: F

lo
or

 F
in

is
h

Ex
te

rn
al

 b
al

co
ny

 ti
le

s
T2

Ty
pe

: F
lo

or
 F

in
is

h
W

et
 a

re
a 

til
es

TB
Fl

oo
r F

in
ish

O
ak

 ti
m

be
r f

lo
or

in
g

TP
Ty

pe
: W

al
l F

in
ish

Ti
m

be
r p

er
go

la
W

1
Ty

pe
:W

in
do

w
 F

ra
m

e
C

ha
rc

oa
l P

ow
de

r C
oa

te
d 

W
in

do
w

 F
ra

m
e

1
 : 

10
0

S
O

U
T

H
 E

LE
V

A
T

IO
N

 (
C

O
U

R
T

Y
A

R
D

)
3

R
ev

.
D

at
e

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

B
y

1
10

/2
0

D
A

 S
U

B
M

IS
S

IO
N

A
L

2
04

/2
1

IS
S

U
E

 T
O

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

A
L

51



G
R

O
U

N
D

 F
L

O
O

R

2
0

0
2

5

L
E

V
E

L
 O

N
E

2
3

1
2

5

L
E

V
E

L
 T

W
O

2
6

2
2

5

R
O

O
F

2
9

3
2

5

B
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

1
6

4
2

0

B
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

1
6

4
2

0

A
B

3100 3100 3100 3605

AD
JO

IN
IN

G
 N

O
. 1

1-
13

 W
IL

LI
AM

 
ST

R
EE

T 
BU

IL
DI

N
G

 E
N

VE
LO

PE

W
IL

LI
A

M
 

ST
R

EE
T

W
IL

LI
A

M
 

LA
N

E

BDY

BDY

L
A

N
E

W
A

Y
 G

F

1
9

6
2

0

L
A

N
E

W
A

Y
 F

F

2
2

7
2

0

L
A

N
E

W
A

Y
 S

F

2
5

8
2

0

320031003100

P1

P1

10
05

0
87

00
11

68
0

AD
JO

IN
IN

G
 N

O
.1

9 
W

IL
LI

A
M

 
ST

R
EE

T 
BU

IL
DI

N
G

 B
E

YO
ND

M
AX

.  B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
E

IG
H

T 
C

O
N

TR
O

L 
O

F 
15

m
 B

Y 
LE

P

G
R

O
U

N
D

 F
L

O
O

R

2
0

0
2

5

G
R

O
U

N
D

 F
L

O
O

R

2
0

0
2

5

L
E

V
E

L
 O

N
E

2
3

1
2

5

L
E

V
E

L
 O

N
E

2
3

1
2

5

L
E

V
E

L
 T

W
O

2
6

2
2

5

L
E

V
E

L
 T

W
O

2
6

2
2

5

R
O

O
F

2
9

3
2

5

R
O

O
F

2
9

3
2

5

B
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

1
6

4
2

0

A
B

AD
JO

IN
IN

G
 N

O
. 1

9 
W

IL
LI

AM
 

ST
R

EE
T 

B
UI

LD
IN

G
 E

N
VE

LO
PE

W
IL

LI
A

M
 S

TR
EE

T

BDY

BDY

3100 3100 3100 3605

P1

TP

P1

10
26

5
87

00
11

54
0

TP

5°R
L 

28
.6

21
R

L 
28

.9
20

TO
P 

O
F 

PA
R

AP
ET

R
L 

32
.1

25

R
L 

31
.0

16

R
L 

30
.3

25

M
AX

. B
UI

LD
IN

G
 H

EI
G

HT
 C

O
NT

RO
L 

O
F 

15
m

 B
Y

 L
EP

G
R

O
U

N
D

 F
L

O
O

R

2
0

0
2

5

G
R

O
U

N
D

 F
L

O
O

R

2
0

0
2

5

L
E

V
E

L
 O

N
E

2
3

1
2

5

L
E

V
E

L
 O

N
E

2
3

1
2

5

L
E

V
E

L
 T

W
O

2
6

2
2

5

L
E

V
E

L
 T

W
O

2
6

2
2

5

R
O

O
F

2
9

3
2

5

R
O

O
F

2
9

3
2

5

B
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

1
6

4
2

0

B
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

1
6

4
2

0

1
2

3
4

5
6

T
8

T
9

T
10

T
11

T
12

T
13

T
14

(C
.O

.S
)

51
7

0
51

1
5

51
1

5
51

1
5

51
1

5
51

1
5

(C
.O

.S
)

51
7

0

3605310031003100R
L 

30
.5

25

R
L 

32
.1

25

FBP1M
R

TP

FB

FB

W
3

W
7

W
2

W
2

W
3

W
2

W
3

W
2

W
3

W
2

W
3

W
2

W
7

W
7

W
7

W
7

W
7

W
4

P
H

R
S

2

P
H

R
S

2

W
2

W
2

W
2

W
2

W
2

W
2

W
7

W
2

W
3

3605310031003100

W
3 

A
FF

L

1000800600

22
2

0

FI
XE

D
  F

R
O

ST
ED

 
PA

N
E

O
PE

R
A

B
LE

 
C

LE
A

R
 P

A
N

E

W
2

1000800600

75
0

EX
A

M
PL

E 
IM

A
G

E 
O

F 
W

IN
D

O
W

 2
 &

 3

D
E

R
E

K
  R

A
IT

H
B

Y
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
U

R
E

in
fo

@
de

re
kr

ai
th

by
.c

om
.a

u 
   

   
   

 

C
lie

nt
:

D
O

 N
O

T
 S

C
A

L
E

 O
F

F
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

. 
W

O
R

K
 T

O
 F

IG
U

R
E

D
 D

IM
E

N
S

IO
N

S
 O

N
L

Y
. 

P
ro

je
ct

:

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 T
IT

L
E

S
ca

le
:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o.

D
ra

w
n/

C
he

ck
ed

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
.

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

T 
:  

( 0
 2

 ) 
 9

 5
 1

 8
  3

 5
 6

 3
   

  A
 B

 N
 : 

6 
1 

6 
1 

3 
1 

7 
4 

0 
2 

0

4
4

3
 P

A
R

R
A

M
A

T
T

A
 R

O
A

D
,

L 
E

 I
 C

 H
 H

 A
 R

 D
 T

   
N

 S
 W

   
2

 0
 4

 0

D
A

 S
U

B
M

IS
S

IO
N

D
at

e:

A1 ORIGINAL SIZE

Ar
ch

ite
ct

  #
74

69
A

L
L

 D
IM

E
N

S
IO

N
S

 A
R

E
 T

O
 B

E
 C

O
N

F
IR

M
E

D
 O

N
 S

IT
E

 P
R

IO
R

 T
O

 C
O

M
M

E
N

C
E

M
E

N
T

 O
F

 
W

O
R

K
. R

E
P

O
R

T
 A

N
Y

 D
IS

C
R

E
P

A
N

C
IE

S
 T

O
 T

H
E

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

. 
N

O
M

IN
A

T
E

D
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
 

D
E

R
E

K
 R

A
IT

H
B

Y
 R

E
G

: 7
4

69
 C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T 
D

R
A

 (
A

U
S

) 
P

T
Y

 L
T

D

1
:2

0
0@

A
3

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l A
s 

in
d

ic
at

e
d@

A
1

E
LE

V
A

T
IO

N
S

 E
A

S
T

 A
N

D
 W

E
S

T

20
07

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
IA

L
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

M
R

 D
A

V
ID

 F
IN

D
LA

Y

A
L 

/
D

R

0
4

/2
02

0

0
8

1
5

-1
7

 W
il

li
a

m
 S

tr
e

et
,

A
le

xa
n

d
ri

a
 2

0
1

5

T
O

W
N

P
LA

N
N

IN
G

A
B

C
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
S

H
O

P
 4

/5
0

0 
E

LI
Z

A
B

E
T

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T
,

S
U

R
R

Y
 H

IL
LS

 N
S

W
 2

0
10

(0
2)

 9
31

0
 4

97
9

an
th

o
ny

@
a

bc
pl

a
n.

co
m

.a
u

B
C

A

D
E

S
IG

N
 C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

C
E

 P
T

Y
 L

T
D

S
H

O
P

 2
/3

5
 B

U
C

K
IN

G
H

A
M

 S
T

R
E

E
T

S
U

R
R

Y
 H

IL
LS

 N
S

W
 2

01
0

(0
2)

 8
39

9
 3

70
7

sy
dn

e
y@

de
si

g
nc

o
nf

id
e

nc
e

.c
o

m

H
Y

D
R

A
U

LI
C T

A
A

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

IN
G

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

 2
01

/2
5

F
A

L
C

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 C
R

O
W

S
 N

E
S

T
 N

S
W

20
65

04
11

77
87

99
ta

ae
ng

in
ee

rs
@

g
m

ai
l.c

o
m

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E C
O

N
Z

E
P

T
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

S
S

U
IT

E
1

01
/ 5

06
 M

IL
L

E
R

 S
T

,
C

A
M

M
E

R
A

Y
 N

S
W

 2
06

2

(0
2)

9
92

2
 5

31
2

e
nq

ur
ie

s@
co

nz
ep

t.
ne

t.
au

B
A

S
IX

G
R

A
D

W
E

LL
 C

O
N

S
U

LT
IN

G
P

O
 B

O
X

 8
1

9 
B

O
W

R
A

L
 N

S
W

25
76

04
0

89
6

41
3

9
da

vi
d@

g
ra

d
w

el
lc

on
su

lti
ng

.c
o

m

1
 : 

10
0

E
A

S
T

 E
LE

V
A

T
IO

N
1

1
 : 

10
0

W
E

S
T

 E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

2

FI
N

IS
H

ES
 L

EG
EN

D

Sy
m

bo
l

Ty
pe

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

BL
1

Ty
pe

: W
al

l F
in

is
he

s
C

ha
rc

oa
l P

ow
de

r C
oa

te
d 

Ba
lu

st
ra

de
BW

Ty
pe

: W
al

l F
in

is
he

s
Ex

po
se

d 
re

d 
br

ic
k 

w
al

l t
o 

cl
ie

nt
's 

ch
oi

ce
C

CR
Fl

oo
r F

in
is

h
Po

lis
he

d 
co

nc
re

te
 fl

oo
rin

g
C

PT
Ty

pe
: F

lo
or

 F
in

is
h

D
ye

d 
ny

lo
n 

ca
rp

et
G

L
W

in
do

w 
& 

D
oo

r T
yp

e
C

le
ar

 g
la

ss
 lo

ur
ve

s 
w

ith
 c

ha
rc

oa
l p

ow
de

r c
oa

te
d 

fra
m

e
M

L
M

et
al

 F
ra

m
e

Ch
ar

co
al

 P
ow

de
r C

oa
te

d 
Sc

re
en

s
M

R
R

oo
f F

in
is

h
Co

lo
ur

bo
nd

 'M
on

um
en

t' 
or

 s
ilim

ar
P1

W
al

l F
in

ish
D

ul
ux

 'N
at

ur
al

 w
hi

te
' o

r s
im

ila
r

P2
W

al
l F

in
ish

D
ul

ux
 'T

ra
nq

ui
l R

et
re

at
' o

r s
im

ila
r

T1
Ty

pe
: F

lo
or

 F
in

is
h

Ex
te

rn
al

 b
al

co
ny

 ti
le

s
T2

Ty
pe

: F
lo

or
 F

in
is

h
W

et
 a

re
a 

til
es

TB
Fl

oo
r F

in
ish

O
ak

 ti
m

be
r f

lo
or

in
g

TP
Ty

pe
: W

al
l F

in
ish

Ti
m

be
r p

er
go

la
W

1
Ty

pe
:W

in
do

w 
Fr

am
e

C
ha

rc
oa

l P
ow

de
r C

oa
te

d 
W

in
do

w
 F

ra
m

e

1
 : 

10
0

N
O

R
T

H
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
 (

C
O

U
R

T
Y

A
R

D
)

3

R
ev

.
D

at
e

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

B
y

1
10

/2
0

D
A

 S
U

B
M

IS
S

IO
N

A
L

2
04

/2
1

IS
S

U
E

 T
O

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

A
L

52



G
R

O
U

N
D

 F
L

O
O

R

2
0

0
2

5

G
R

O
U

N
D

 F
L

O
O

R

2
0

0
2

5

L
E

V
E

L
 O

N
E

2
3

1
2

5

L
E

V
E

L
 O

N
E

2
3

1
2

5

L
E

V
E

L
 T

W
O

2
6

2
2

5

L
E

V
E

L
 T

W
O

2
6

2
2

5

R
O

O
F

2
9

3
2

5

R
O

O
F

2
9

3
2

5

B
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

1
6

4
2

0

B
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

1
6

4
2

0

3100 3100 3100 3605

3100 3100 3100 3605

T
9

T
11

T
12

T
14

B
ED

R
O

O
M

B
ED

R
O

O
M

B
ED

R
O

O
M

B
ED

R
O

O
M

B
ED

R
O

O
M

B
ED

R
O

O
M

B
ED

R
O

O
M

TE
R

R
A

C
E

TE
R

R
A

C
E

TE
R

R
A

C
E

TE
R

R
A

C
E

TE
R

R
A

C
E

TE
R

R
A

C
E

TE
R

R
AC

E

LI
VI

N
G G

A
R

A
G

E

LI
VI

N
G

G
A

R
A

G
E

LI
VI

N
G

G
A

R
A

G
E

LI
VI

N
G

G
A

R
A

G
E

LI
VI

N
G

G
A

R
A

G
E

LI
VI

N
G

G
A

R
A

G
E

LI
VI

N
G G

A
R

A
G

E

N
AT

U
R

AL
 

G
R

O
UN

D
 L

IN
E

BDY

BDY

B
ED

R
O

O
M

B
ED

R
O

O
M

B
ED

R
O

O
M

B
ED

R
O

O
M

B
ED

R
O

O
M

B
ED

R
O

O
M

B
ED

R
O

O
M

1
2

3
4

5
6

M
ET

AL
 R

O
O

F 
SH

EE
TI

N
G

 A
S 

P
ER

 F
IN

IS
H

ES
 

SC
H

E
DU

LE
 W

IT
H

 T
IM

BE
R

 R
O

O
FI

N
G

 
ST

R
U

C
TU

R
E 

&
 IN

SU
LA

TI
O

N
 A

S 
S

PE
C

IF
IE

D
 IN

 
BA

SI
X

 R
EQ

U
IR

E
M

E
N

TS
.

TI
M

BE
R

 P
ER

G
O

LA
 

B
EY

O
N

D

C
O

NC
RE

TE
 S

LA
BS

 &
 F

O
O

TI
N

G
S 

AS
 P

ER
 

ST
R

U
C

TU
R

AL
 E

N
G

IN
E

ER
'S

 D
E

TA
IL

S 
&

 S
PE

C
S.

11
-1

3 
W

IL
LI

A
M

 S
TR

EE
T

TH
R

EE
-S

TO
R

EY
 

TO
W

N
H

O
U

SE
S

19
 W

IL
LI

AM
 S

TR
EE

T
TH

R
EE

-S
TO

R
EY

 
TO

W
N

H
O

U
SE

S

G
LA

S
S 

LO
U

RV
ES

 R
EF

ER
 T

O
 

W
IN

D
O

W
S 

& 
D

O
O

R 
SC

H
ED

U
LE

(c
.o

.s
)

52
15

51
15

51
15

51
15

51
15

51
15

(c
.o

.s
)

50
60

B
O

U
N

D
A

R
Y

R
L 

32
.1

25

M
AX

. B
UI

L D
IN

G
 H

E I
G

H T
 C

O
NT

R O
L 

O
F 

15
m

 B
Y 

LE
P

T
13

T
10

T
8

2700 2835

3175

3280

2700 2700

G
R

O
U

N
D

 F
L

O
O

R

2
0

0
2

5

L
E

V
E

L
 O

N
E

2
3

1
2

5

L
E

V
E

L
 T

W
O

2
6

2
2

5

R
O

O
F

2
9

3
2

5

B
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

1
6

4
2

0

B
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

1
6

4
2

0

A
B

L
A

N
E

W
A

Y
 G

F

1
9

6
2

0

L
A

N
E

W
A

Y
 F

F

2
2

7
2

0

L
A

N
E

W
A

Y
 S

F

2
5

8
2

0

N
AT

U
RA

L 

G
RO

U
ND

 L
IN

E

W
IL

LI
A

M
 

LA
N

E

W
IL

LI
A

M
 

ST
R

EE
T

(C
.O

.S
)

10
15

0
87

0
0

11
63

0

BDY

BDY

LI
VI

N
G

LI
VI

N
G

D
R

IV
EW

A
Y

C
A

R
PA

R
K

IN
G

C
O

U
R

TY
A

R
D

C
O

U
R

TY
A

R
D

TE
R

R
A

C
E

320031003100

3100 3100 3100 3605

B
ED

R
O

O
M

M
A

ST
ER

 
B

ED
R

O
O

M

B
A

TH
B

ED
R

O
O

M

B
ED

R
O

O
M

LD
Y

SO
IL

 

PL
AN

T 
S

PE
CI

ES
 &

 D
ET

AI
LS

 
TO

 L
A

ND
S

CA
PE

 D
RA

W
IN

G
S

N
O

. 1
1-

13
 W

IL
LI

AM
 S

TR
EE

T 
BU

IL
D

IN
G

 L
IN

E
 B

EY
O

N
D

TI
M

BE
R

 P
E

RG
O

D
A

 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 F
IN

IS
H

ES
 

SC
HE

D
U

LE

C
O

R
R

ID
O

R
ST

U
D

Y

C
O

NC
RE

TE
 S

LA
BS

 &
 F

O
O

TI
N

G
S

 A
S

 P
ER

 
ST

R
U

C
TU

R
AL

 E
N

G
IN

E
ER

'S
 D

E
TA

IL
S 

&
 S

PE
C

S.

R
EF

ER
 T

O
 D

R
AW

IN
G

 
N

O
. 1

8 
FO

R 
DE

TA
IL

S
C

R
ES

T

1.
8 

m
 H

IG
H 

M
AS

O
N

RY
 W

AL
L

PL
AN

TE
RB

O
X

D
R

AI
N

AG
E

 T
O

 H
YD

RA
UL

IC
 

EN
G

IN
E

ER
'S

 D
R

AW
IN

G
S

900

CEILING

2700

M
ET

AL
 S

H
E

ET
IN

G
 A

S 
PE

R 
FI

N
IS

HE
S 

S
C

H
ED

UL
E 

W
IT

H
 

TI
M

BE
R

 R
O

O
F 

ST
R

U
C

TU
RE

 A
ND

 
IN

S
U

LA
TI

O
N

 S
PE

CI
FI

E
D 

IN
 B

A
SI

X

PL
A

NT
ER

BO
X 

TO
 

LA
N

DS
CA

PE
 D

R
AW

IN
G

S
 

FO
R

 D
ET

AI
LS

5°

R
L 

30
.3

03
R

L 
30

.5
25

R
L 

28
.9

20

M
A

X.
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 H

EI
G

H
T 

C
O

N
TR

O
L 

O
F 

15
m

 B
Y

 L
E

P

R
L 

32
.1

25

TI
M

BE
R

 P
E

RG
O

D
A

 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 F
IN

IS
H

ES
 

SC
HE

D
U

LE

1805

2435

CEILLING

2700

1200
PL

AN
TE

R
BO

X

2700 2750

CEILLING

2500 2400

2700

CEILLING

2700

D
E

R
E

K
  R

A
IT

H
B

Y
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
U

R
E

in
fo

@
de

re
kr

ai
th

by
.c

om
.a

u 
   

   
   

 

C
lie

nt
:

D
O

 N
O

T
 S

C
A

L
E

 O
F

F
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

. 
W

O
R

K
 T

O
 F

IG
U

R
E

D
 D

IM
E

N
S

IO
N

S
 O

N
L

Y
. 

P
ro

je
ct

:

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 T
IT

L
E

S
ca

le
:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o.

D
ra

w
n/

C
he

ck
ed

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
.

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

T 
:  

( 0
 2

 ) 
 9

 5
 1

 8
  3

 5
 6

 3
   

  A
 B

 N
 : 

6 
1 

6 
1 

3 
1 

7 
4 

0 
2 

0

4
4

3
 P

A
R

R
A

M
A

T
T

A
 R

O
A

D
,

L 
E

 I
 C

 H
 H

 A
 R

 D
 T

   
N

 S
 W

   
2

 0
 4

 0

D
A

 S
U

B
M

IS
S

IO
N

D
at

e:

A1 ORIGINAL SIZE

Ar
ch

ite
ct

  #
74

69
A

L
L

 D
IM

E
N

S
IO

N
S

 A
R

E
 T

O
 B

E
 C

O
N

F
IR

M
E

D
 O

N
 S

IT
E

 P
R

IO
R

 T
O

 C
O

M
M

E
N

C
E

M
E

N
T

 O
F

 
W

O
R

K
. R

E
P

O
R

T
 A

N
Y

 D
IS

C
R

E
P

A
N

C
IE

S
 T

O
 T

H
E

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

. 
N

O
M

IN
A

T
E

D
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
 

D
E

R
E

K
 R

A
IT

H
B

Y
 R

E
G

: 7
4

69
 C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T 
D

R
A

 (
A

U
S

) 
P

T
Y

 L
T

D

1
:2

0
0@

A
3

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l 1
 :

 1
0

0
@

A
1

S
E

C
T

IO
N

S

20
07

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
IA

L
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

M
R

 D
A

V
ID

 F
IN

D
LA

Y

A
L 

/
D

R

0
4

/2
02

0

0
9

1
5

-1
7

 W
il

li
a

m
 S

tr
e

et
,

A
le

xa
n

d
ri

a
 2

0
1

5

T
O

W
N

P
LA

N
N

IN
G

A
B

C
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
S

H
O

P
 4

/5
0

0 
E

LI
Z

A
B

E
T

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T
,

S
U

R
R

Y
 H

IL
LS

 N
S

W
 2

0
10

(0
2)

 9
31

0
 4

97
9

an
th

o
ny

@
a

bc
pl

a
n.

co
m

.a
u

B
C

A

D
E

S
IG

N
 C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

C
E

 P
T

Y
 L

T
D

S
H

O
P

 2
/3

5
 B

U
C

K
IN

G
H

A
M

 S
T

R
E

E
T

S
U

R
R

Y
 H

IL
LS

 N
S

W
 2

01
0

(0
2)

 8
39

9
 3

70
7

sy
dn

e
y@

de
si

g
nc

o
nf

id
e

nc
e

.c
o

m

H
Y

D
R

A
U

LI
C T

A
A

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

IN
G

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

 2
01

/2
5

F
A

L
C

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 C
R

O
W

S
 N

E
S

T
 N

S
W

20
65

04
11

77
87

99
ta

ae
ng

in
ee

rs
@

g
m

ai
l.c

o
m

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E C
O

N
Z

E
P

T
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

S
S

U
IT

E
1

01
/ 5

06
 M

IL
L

E
R

 S
T

,
C

A
M

M
E

R
A

Y
 N

S
W

 2
06

2

(0
2)

9
92

2
 5

31
2

e
nq

ur
ie

s@
co

nz
ep

t.
ne

t.
au

B
A

S
IX

G
R

A
D

W
E

LL
 C

O
N

S
U

LT
IN

G
P

O
 B

O
X

 8
1

9 
B

O
W

R
A

L
 N

S
W

25
76

04
0

89
6

41
3

9
da

vi
d@

g
ra

d
w

el
lc

on
su

lti
ng

.c
o

m

1
 : 

10
0

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 A
A

1

1
 : 

10
0

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 B
B

2

R
ev

.
D

at
e

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

B
y

1
10

/2
0

D
A

 S
U

B
M

IS
S

IO
N

A
L

2
04

/2
1

IS
S

U
E

 T
O

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

A
L

53



BDY

BDY

M
R

M
R

M
L

P2

P2

P2

P2

FB

M
R

G
L

M
L

M
R

P1

FB

M
RTP FB

D
E

R
E

K
  R

A
IT

H
B

Y
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
U

R
E

in
fo

@
de

re
kr

ai
th

by
.c

om
.a

u 
   

   
   

 

C
lie

nt
:

D
O

 N
O

T
 S

C
A

L
E

 O
F

F
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

. 
W

O
R

K
 T

O
 F

IG
U

R
E

D
 D

IM
E

N
S

IO
N

S
 O

N
L

Y
. 

P
ro

je
ct

:

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 T
IT

L
E

S
ca

le
:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o.

D
ra

w
n/

C
he

ck
ed

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
.

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

T 
:  

( 0
 2

 ) 
 9

 5
 1

 8
  3

 5
 6

 3
   

  A
 B

 N
 : 

6 
1 

6 
1 

3 
1 

7 
4 

0 
2 

0

4
4

3
 P

A
R

R
A

M
A

T
T

A
 R

O
A

D
,

L 
E

 I
 C

 H
 H

 A
 R

 D
 T

   
N

 S
 W

   
2

 0
 4

 0

D
A

 S
U

B
M

IS
S

IO
N

D
at

e:

A1 ORIGINAL SIZE

Ar
ch

ite
ct

  #
74

69
A

L
L

 D
IM

E
N

S
IO

N
S

 A
R

E
 T

O
 B

E
 C

O
N

F
IR

M
E

D
 O

N
 S

IT
E

 P
R

IO
R

 T
O

 C
O

M
M

E
N

C
E

M
E

N
T

 O
F

 
W

O
R

K
. R

E
P

O
R

T
 A

N
Y

 D
IS

C
R

E
P

A
N

C
IE

S
 T

O
 T

H
E

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

. 
N

O
M

IN
A

T
E

D
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
 

D
E

R
E

K
 R

A
IT

H
B

Y
 R

E
G

: 7
4

69
 C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T 
D

R
A

 (
A

U
S

) 
P

T
Y

 L
T

D

1
:6

0
0@

A
3

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l

C
on

su
lta

nt
A

dd
re

ss

P
ho

ne
e-

m
ai

l 1
 :

 1
5

0@
A

1

FI
N

IS
H

E
S

 S
C

H
E

D
U

LE

20
07

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
IA

L
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

M
R

 D
A

V
ID

 F
IN

D
LA

Y

A
L 

/
D

R

0
4

/2
02

0

1
7

1
5

-1
7

 W
il

li
a

m
 S

tr
e

et
,

A
le

xa
n

d
ri

a
 2

0
1

5

T
O

W
N

P
LA

N
N

IN
G

A
B

C
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
S

H
O

P
 4

/5
0

0 
E

LI
Z

A
B

E
T

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T
,

S
U

R
R

Y
 H

IL
LS

 N
S

W
 2

0
10

(0
2)

 9
31

0
 4

97
9

an
th

o
ny

@
a

bc
pl

a
n.

co
m

.a
u

B
C

A

D
E

S
IG

N
 C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

C
E

 P
T

Y
 L

T
D

S
H

O
P

 2
/3

5
 B

U
C

K
IN

G
H

A
M

 S
T

R
E

E
T

S
U

R
R

Y
 H

IL
LS

 N
S

W
 2

01
0

(0
2)

 8
39

9
 3

70
7

sy
dn

e
y@

de
si

g
nc

o
nf

id
e

nc
e

.c
o

m

H
Y

D
R

A
U

LI
C T

A
A

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

IN
G

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

 2
01

/2
5

F
A

L
C

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 C
R

O
W

S
 N

E
S

T
 N

S
W

20
65

04
11

77
87

99
ta

ae
ng

in
ee

rs
@

g
m

ai
l.c

o
m

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E C
O

N
Z

E
P

T
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

S
S

U
IT

E
1

01
/ 5

06
 M

IL
L

E
R

 S
T

,
C

A
M

M
E

R
A

Y
 N

S
W

 2
06

2

(0
2)

9
92

2
 5

31
2

e
nq

ur
ie

s@
co

nz
ep

t.
ne

t.
au

B
A

S
IX

G
R

A
D

W
E

LL
 C

O
N

S
U

LT
IN

G
P

O
 B

O
X

 8
1

9 
B

O
W

R
A

L
 N

S
W

25
76

04
0

89
6

41
3

9
da

vi
d@

g
ra

d
w

el
lc

on
su

lti
ng

.c
o

m

1
 :

 1
5

0

1
7.

1
 S

O
U

T
H

 E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

1
 :

 1
5

0

1
7.

2
 N

O
R

T
H

 E
LE

V
A

T
IO

N

1
 :

 1
5

0

1
7.

3
 N

O
R

T
H

 E
LE

V
A

T
IO

N
 (

C
O

U
R

T
Y

A
R

D
)

1
 :

 1
5

0

1
7.

4
 S

O
U

T
H

 E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

 (
C

O
U

R
T

Y
A

R
D

)

Fi
ni

sh
es

 S
ch

ed
ul

e
Im

a
ge

S
ym

bo
l

T
yp

e
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n

T
2

T
yp

e
: F

lo
or

 F
in

is
h

W
e

t a
re

a
 ti

le
s

T
B

F
lo

or
 F

in
is

h
O

a
k 

tim
be

r 
flo

o
rin

g

T
P

T
yp

e
: W

a
ll 

F
in

is
h

T
im

b
e

r 
p

er
go

la

W
1

T
yp

e:
W

in
d

ow
 F

ra
m

e
C

h
ar

co
al

 P
o

w
de

r 
C

o
a

te
d

W
in

d
ow

 F
ra

m
e

Fi
ni

sh
es

 S
ch

ed
ul

e
Im

a
ge

S
ym

b
ol

T
yp

e
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n

M
L

M
e

ta
l F

ra
m

e
C

h
ar

co
a

l P
ow

d
er

 C
oa

te
d

S
cr

ee
n

s

M
R

R
o

of
 F

in
is

h
C

o
lo

u
rb

o
n

d 
'M

o
nu

m
e

nt
' o

r
si

lim
ar

P
1

W
al

l F
in

is
h

D
u

lu
x 

'N
a

tu
ra

l w
hi

te
' o

r 
si

m
ila

r

P
2

W
al

l F
in

is
h

D
u

lu
x 

'T
ra

n
qu

il 
R

e
tr

e
a

t' 
o

r
si

m
ila

r

T
1

T
yp

e
: F

lo
or

 F
in

is
h

E
xt

e
rn

a
l b

al
co

n
y 

til
e

s

Fi
ni

sh
es

 S
ch

ed
ul

e
Im

a
ge

S
ym

bo
l

T
yp

e
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n

B
L

1
T

yp
e

: W
al

l F
in

is
he

s
C

h
ar

co
a

l P
o

w
de

r 
C

o
a

te
d

B
a

lu
st

ra
d

e

B
W

T
yp

e
: W

al
l F

in
is

he
s

E
xp

o
se

d
 r

e
d

 b
ri

ck
 w

a
ll 

to
cl

ie
n

t's
 c

h
o

ic
e

C
C

R
F

lo
or

 F
in

is
h

P
o

lis
he

d
 c

o
n

cr
e

te
 f

lo
o

rin
g

C
P

T
T

yp
e

: F
lo

or
 F

in
is

h
D

ye
d

 n
yl

on
 c

ar
p

e
t

G
L

W
in

d
ow

 &
 D

oo
r 

T
yp

e
C

le
ar

 g
la

ss
 lo

u
rv

es
 w

ith
ch

a
rc

o
al

 p
o

w
de

r 
co

at
ed

 f
ra

m
e

G
EN

ER
A

L 
N

O
TE

S:
 

BU
IL

D
ER

 M
AY

 C
H

O
O

SE
 S

IM
IL

AR
 M

AT
ER

IA
LS

 S
U

BJ
EC

T 
TO

 A
PP

R
O

VA
L 

BY
 T

H
E 

PR
IN

C
IP

LE
 A

R
C

H
IT

EC
T 

AN
D

 C
LI

EN
T.

R
ev

.
D

at
e

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

B
y

1
10

/2
0

D
A

 S
U

B
M

IS
S

IO
N

A
L

2
04

/2
1

IS
S

U
E

 T
O

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

A
L

54



Attachment B 

Clause 4.6 Variation Request  

Floor Space Ratio

55



Statement of Environmental Effects  15-17 William Street, Alexandria 
 

 
ABC Planning Pty Ltd  October 2020 

 

92 

 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 1 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

CLAUSE 4.6 TO CLAUSE 4.4 OF SYDNEY LEP 2011 
 

EXCEPTIONS TO DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS – FSR VARIATION 
 
 
 

Demolition of the existing structures on the site and the construction of a multi-dwelling 
development comprising of 14 x 3-storey townhouses with basement parking and associated 

strata subdivision 
 
 

15-17 WILLIAM STREET, ALEXANDRIA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PREPARED BY 
 

ABC PLANNING PTY LTD 
 
 
 

SEPTEMBER 2020 
 

56



Statement of Environmental Effects  15-17 William Street, Alexandria 
 

 
ABC Planning Pty Ltd  October 2020 

 

93 

 SYDNEY LEP 2012 - CLAUSE 4.6 EXCEPTION TO DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 
 
This Clause 4.6 variation request has been prepared to accompany the development 
application for the demolition of the existing structures on the site and the construction of a 
multi-dwelling development comprising of 14 x 3-storey townhouses with basement parking at 
15-17 William Street, Alexandria. 
 
Clause 4.6 of the Sydney 2012 allows the consent authority to grant consent for development 
even though the development contravenes a development standard imposed by the LEP. The 
clause aims to provide an appropriate degree of flexibility in applying certain development 
standards. 
 
This Clause 4.6 variation request takes into account the relevant aspects of the Land and 
Environment Court judgement from Initial Action Pty Ltd v Woollahra Council [2017] 
NSWLEC 1734, as revised by the NSW Court of Appeal in Rebel MH Neutral Bay Pty 
Limited v North Sydney Council (2019) NSWCA 130. 
 

Clause 4.6 Exceptions to development standards 
 
(1) The objectives of this clause are as follows:  

(a) to provide an appropriate degree of flexibility in applying certain development 
standards to particular development, 
(b) to achieve better outcomes for and from development by allowing flexibility in particular 
circumstances. 

(2) Development consent may, subject to this clause, be granted for development even though 
the development would contravene a development standard imposed by this or any other 
environmental planning instrument. However, this clause does not apply to a development 
standard that is expressly excluded from the operation of this clause. 
(3) Development consent must not be granted for development that contravenes a 
development standard unless the consent authority has considered a written request from the 
applicant that seeks to justify the contravention of the development standard by demonstrating:  

(a) that compliance with the development standard is unreasonable or unnecessary in the 
circumstances of the case, and 
(b) that there are sufficient environmental planning grounds to justify contravening the 
development standard. 

(4) Development consent must not be granted for development that contravenes a 
development standard unless:  

(a)the consent authority is satisfied that:  
(i) the applicant’s written request has adequately addressed the matters required to 
be demonstrated by subclause (3), and 
(ii) the proposed development will be in the public interest because it is consistent 
with the objectives of the particular standard and the objectives for development 
within the zone in which the development is proposed to be carried out, and 

(b) the concurrence of the Director-General has been obtained.  
(5) In deciding whether to grant concurrence, the Director-General must consider: 

(a) whether contravention of the development standard raises any matter of significance for 
State or regional environmental planning, and 
(b) the public benefit of maintaining the development standard, and 
(c) any other matters required to be taken into consideration by the Director-General before 
granting concurrence.  

 
 
  

57



Statement of Environmental Effects  15-17 William Street, Alexandria 
 

 
ABC Planning Pty Ltd  October 2020 

 

94 

Development Standard to be Varied 
 
Clause 4.4 of Sydney LEP 2012 prescribes a FSR of 1:1. Clause 6.14 of the LEP allows or an 
additional FSR of 0.5:1 for Area 6 where Green Square community infrastructure8 is also 
provided. The proposal includes a Voluntary Planning Agreement, therefore the proposed 
development is subject to a FSR control of 1.5:1 (GFA: 1,651.5qm). 
 
The proposed development will have a FSR of 1.51:1 (GFA: 1,658sqm), which does not 
comply with the FSR development standard and represents a variation of 0.4% from the 
numerical FSR standard in the LEP. 
 
 

 
Figure 44: FSR Map 

 
Justification for Contravention of the Development Standard 
 
This written request is considered to justify the contravention of the development standard and 
addresses the matters required to be demonstrated by clause 4.6(3), of which there are two 
aspects. Both aspects are addressed below: 
 
(a) that compliance with the development standard is unreasonable or unnecessary in the 
circumstances of the case 
 
Assessment: It is considered that strict compliance with the development standard for FSR 
on the site is unreasonable and unnecessary in the circumstances for the following reasons: 
 

• It is considered that the proposed works represent a desirable and appropriate form of 
development on the subject site.  
 

 
8 Green Square community infrastructure is defined as "development at Green Square for the purposes 
of recreation areas, recreation facilities (indoor), recreation facilities (outdoor), public roads, drainage 
or flood mitigation works." 

Subject Site 

58



Statement of Environmental Effects  15-17 William Street, Alexandria 
 

 
ABC Planning Pty Ltd  October 2020 

 

95 

• The proposed FSR non-compliance will be indiscernible from William Street, William 
Lane and the adjoining properties. 
 

• The proposal is designed as two separate building elements with Townhouses 1 to 7 
in the western building and Townhouses 8 to 14 in the eastern building. The upper 
levels of each building are recessed from the levels below. The proposal incorporates 
a high level of articulation to the eastern and western façades including the provision 
of openings and terraces. The articulation of the facades and the recessed upper levels 
will reduce the perceived bulk of the proposed development. Refer to extracts of the 
East Elevation and West Elevation below.  
 

• The bulk and scale of the development is compatible with surrounding existing 
development and is consistent with the desired future character of the area. As 
demonstrated in the architectural plans submitted with this application and the table 
below, the proposed new building will have a height, bulk and scale that is compatible 
with the adjoining and surrounding 3-storey townhouse and 3- and 4-storey residential 
flat buildings along this section of William Street.  

 
 DA Number Development 

Description 
Approved 

Height 
Approved 

FSR 
1-9 William Street D/2014/1028 4-storey residential 

flat building (at 1 
William Street) and 3-
storey townhouses at 
3-9 William Street) 
 

14.6m 1.5:1 

11-13 William Street D/2012/1852 3-storey townhouses 
 

Below 15m 1.73:1 

15-17 William Street Subject 
Proposal  
 

3-storey townhouses 
 

12.4m 1.51:1 

19 William Street D/2013/62 3-storey townhouses 
and 2 apartments 
 

12.35m 1.25:1 

21-27 William Street D/2015/145/B 3-storey residential 
flat building 
 

Below 15m 
(RL 32.95) 

1.51:1 

6 William Street D/2012/282 3-storey townhouses 
 

10.4m 1.08:1 

29-41 William Street D/2016/1085/F 3-storey townhouses 
 

13.5m 1.55:1 
 

 
• The FSR variation will not be responsible for any unreasonable bulk or scale impacts, 

noting that the proposal complies with the LEP building height development standard 
and the DCP 3-storey height limit control.  
 

• The proposed FSR variation is not responsible for any unreasonable adverse impacts 
to surrounding properties in terms of overshadowing, privacy and view loss.  
 

• As demonstrated on the Solar Access Diagrams submitted with this application, the 
proposal will not unreasonably overshadow the adjoining townhouse developments to 
the north and south. 
 

• The FSR variation is well integrated into the high-quality, articulated design of the 
proposal and ensures that the built form will contribute positively to the locality. 
 

59



Statement of Environmental Effects  15-17 William Street, Alexandria 
 

 
ABC Planning Pty Ltd  October 2020 

 

96 

• The proposed density, scale and bulk of the development is appropriate and 
acceptable given the context of the locality and will not appear out of character when 
viewed in its context of other buildings in the vicinity.  
 

• The proposed bulk and scale of the development is also compatible with the size and 
shape of the allotment.  
 

• The proposal includes landscaping at the front and centre of the site on the Ground 
Floor and First Floor which will soften the built form. The proposal will retain the 3 
existing street trees location along the William street frontage Refer to the Landscape 
Plan prepared by Sticks & Stones submitted with this DA.  
 

 
Figure 45: Extract of the North and South Elevations demonstrating that the upper levels are recessed from 

the levels below which reduces the perceived bulk of the proposed development 
 

60



Statement of Environmental Effects  15-17 William Street, Alexandria 
 

 
ABC Planning Pty Ltd  October 2020 

 

97 

  
Figure 46: Extract of the East and West Elevations demonstrating that the upper levels are recessed from the 

levels below which reduces the perceived bulk of the proposed development 
 

• Despite the non-compliance, the proposal achieves the objectives of the development 
standard and the B4 Mixed Use zone as demonstrated in the following table: 

 
Consistency with the objectives of the FSR standard in the LEP 

Objectives Assessment 
(a)  to provide sufficient floor space to 
meet anticipated development needs 
for the foreseeable future. 

The proposed works represent a desirable and 
appropriate form of development on the subject site.  
 
The proposal provides sufficient floor space to meet 
anticipated development needs for the foreseeable 
future. 
 
The bulk and scale of the development is compatible 
with surrounding existing development and is consistent 
with the desired future character of the area. As 
demonstrated in the architectural plans submitted with 
this application and the table above, the proposed new 
building will have a height, bulk and scale that is 
compatible with the adjoining and surrounding 3-storey 
townhouse and 3- and 4-storey residential flat buildings 
along this section of William Street.  
 

61



Statement of Environmental Effects  15-17 William Street, Alexandria 
 

 
ABC Planning Pty Ltd  October 2020 

 

98 

(b)  to regulate the density of 
development, built form and land use 
intensity and to control the generation of 
vehicle and pedestrian traffic 

As demonstrated in the architectural plans submitted 
with this application, the proposed development will 
have a height, bulk and scale that is compatible with the 
3-storey townhouse developments to the north of the 
subject site at 11-13 William Street and 3-9 William 
Street; the 4-storey residential flat building to the north 
of the subject site at 1 William Street; the 3-storey 
townhouse development to the south of the subject site 
at 19 William Street; the 3-storey residential flat building 
to the south of the subject site at 21-27 William Street; 
and the 3-storey townhouse development opposite the 
subject site to the southeast at 6 William Street. 
 
The proposal is designed as two separate building 
elements with Townhouses 1 to 7 in the western 
building and Townhouses 8 to 14 in the eastern 
building. The upper levels of each building are recessed 
from the levels below. The proposal incorporates a high 
level of articulation to the eastern and western façades 
including the provision of openings and terraces. The 
articulation of the facades and the recessed upper 
levels will reduce the perceived bulk of the proposed 
development. Refer to extracts of the East Elevation 
and West Elevation above.  
 
As demonstrated in the SEE, the proposal complies 
with the LEP and DCP parking rates. 
 

(c)  to provide for an intensity of 
development that is commensurate with 
the capacity of existing and planned 
infrastructure 
 

The proposed development is commensurate with the 
capacity of existing and planned infrastructure. The 
minor nature of the variation would not generate any 
inconsistency with this objective. 

(d)  to ensure that new development 
reflects the desired character of the 
locality in which it is located and 
minimises adverse impacts on the 
amenity of that locality. 

The proposed FSR allows for achievement of a 
compatible building envelope without creating a 
development with overbearing height, bulk or scale and 
without compromising the desired future character of 
the area.  
 
It is noted that the proposal complies with the DCP 3-
storey height limit control.  

 
The proposed FSR variation is not responsible for any 
unreasonable adverse impacts to surrounding 
properties in terms of overshadowing, privacy and view 
loss.  
 
As mentioned above, the proposed development will 
have a height, bulk and scale that is compatible with the 
3-storey townhouse developments to the north of the 
subject site at 11-13 William Street and 3-9 William 
Street; the 4-storey residential flat building to the north 
of the subject site at 1 William Street; the 3-storey 
townhouse development to the south of the subject site 
at 19 William Street; the 3-storey residential flat building 
to the south of the subject site at 21-27 William Street; 
and the 3-storey townhouse development opposite the 
subject site to the southeast at 6 William Street. 
 
 

62



Statement of Environmental Effects  15-17 William Street, Alexandria 
 

 
ABC Planning Pty Ltd  October 2020 

 

99 

Consistency with the objectives of the B4 Mixed Use zone 
Objectives Assessment 

• To provide a mixture of 
compatible land uses. 

• To integrate suitable business, 
office, residential, retail and 
other development in 
accessible locations so as to 
maximise public transport 
patronage and encourage 
walking and cycling. 

• To ensure uses support the 
viability of centres.  

It is considered that the proposed works represent a 
desirable and appropriate form of development on the 
subject site.  
 
As demonstrated in the architectural plans submitted 
with this application, the proposed development will 
have a height, bulk and scale that is compatible with the 
3-storey townhouse developments to the north of the 
subject site at 11-13 William Street and 3-9 William 
Street; the 4-storey residential flat building to the north 
of the subject site at 1 William Street; the 3-storey 
townhouse development to the south of the subject site 
at 19 William Street; the 3-storey residential flat building 
to the south of the subject site at 21-27 William Street; 
and the 3-storey townhouse development opposite the 
subject site to the southeast at 6 William Street. 
 
The proposal will contribute to a mixture of land uses in 
the area and support the viability of the area. The 
proposed development is suitably located in an area 
close to bus services and Green Square railway station.  
 
The proposal is therefore considered to satisfy the zone 
objectives. 
 
The proposed FSR variation is therefore not considered 
to generate any inconsistency with the zone objectives. 
 

 
Based on the above assessment, it is considered that strict compliance with the LEP FSR 
standard is unreasonable and unnecessary in this instance. 
 
(b) that there are sufficient environmental planning grounds to justify contravening the development 
standard 
 
Assessment: It is considered that there are sufficient environmental planning grounds to 
justify varying the FSR development standard, which include: 
 

• The proposed FSR non-compliance will be indiscernible from William Street, William 
Lane and the adjoining properties. 
 

• The proposal is designed as two separate building elements with Townhouses 1 to 7 
in the western building and Townhouses 8 to 14 in the eastern building. The upper 
levels of each building are recessed from the levels below. The proposal incorporates 
a high level of articulation to the eastern and western façades including the provision 
of openings and terraces. The articulation of the facades and the recessed upper levels 
will reduce the perceived bulk of the proposed development. Refer to extracts of the 
East Elevation and West Elevation above.  
 

• The bulk and scale of the development is compatible with surrounding existing 
development and is consistent with the desired future character of the area. As 
demonstrated in the architectural plans submitted with this application and the table 
above, the proposed new building will have a height, bulk and scale that is compatible 
with the adjoining and surrounding 3-storey townhouse and 3- and 4-storey residential 
flat buildings along this section of William Street.  
 

63



Statement of Environmental Effects  15-17 William Street, Alexandria 
 

 
ABC Planning Pty Ltd  October 2020 

 

100 

• The FSR variation will not be responsible for any unreasonable bulk or scale impacts, 
noting that the proposal complies with the LEP building height development standard 
and the DCP 3-storey height limit control.  
 

• The proposed FSR variation is not responsible for any unreasonable adverse impacts 
to surrounding properties in terms of overshadowing, privacy and view loss.  
 

• As demonstrated on the Solar Access Diagrams submitted with this application, the 
proposal will not unreasonably overshadow the adjoining townhouse developments to 
the north and south. 
 

• The FSR variation is well integrated into the high-quality, articulated design of the 
proposal and ensures that the built form will contribute positively to the locality. 
 

• The proposed density, scale and bulk of the development is appropriate and 
acceptable given the context of the locality and will not appear out of character when 
viewed in its context of other buildings in the vicinity.  
 

• The proposed bulk and scale of the development is also compatible with the size and 
shape of the allotment.  
 

• The proposal includes landscaping at the front and centre of the site on the Ground 
Floor and First Floor which will soften the built form. The proposal will retain the 3 
existing street trees location along the William street frontage Refer to the Landscape 
Plan prepared by Sticks & Stones submitted with this DA.  
 

• Despite the non-compliance, the proposal achieves the objectives of the development 
standard and the zoning. 
 

Based on the above points, it is considered that there are sufficient environmental planning 
grounds to permit the FSR variation in this instance. 
 
 
Other Matters for Consideration 
 
4(a)(ii) the proposed development will be in the public interest because it is consistent with the 
objectives of the particular standard and the objectives for development within the zone in which the 
development is proposed to be carried out 
 
Assessment: The above assessment demonstrates that the proposed FSR satisfies the 
objectives of the FSR standard and the B4 Mixed Use zone. 
 
Furthermore, it is considered that the variation does not raise any matters of public interest as 
there are no public views or detrimental streetscape outcomes associated with the minor FSR 
variation. 
 
Given that the proposal is consistent with the desired future character for the area nominated 
by the specific controls in the LEP and DCP, and that there are no adverse or unreasonable 
impacts to the broader community, it is considered that there are no public interest matters 
which would prevent a variation to the FSR control. 
 
  

64



Statement of Environmental Effects  15-17 William Street, Alexandria 
 

 
ABC Planning Pty Ltd  October 2020 

 

101 

(5) In deciding whether to grant concurrence, the Director-General must consider: 
(a) whether contravention of the development standard raises any matter of significance for State or 
regional environmental planning 
 
Assessment: The proposed FSR variation allows for the orderly and economic use of land 
as envisaged by the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979.  
 
The proposed FSR allows for achievement of a compatible building envelope without creating 
a development with overbearing height, bulk or scale and without compromising the desired 
future character of the area.  
 
The proposed FSR is therefore consistent with the State and Regional Policies, particularly 
urban consolidation principles which seek to provide additional height and density near 
transport and established services. 
 
(b) the public benefit of maintaining the development standard 
 
Assessment: There is no public benefit in maintaining the FSR standard given the limited 
amenity impacts associated with the development and the positive streetscape outcome that 
would arise from the redevelopment of the subject site. 
 
 
(c) any other matters required to be taken into consideration by the Director-General before granting 
concurrence. 
 
Assessment: There are not considered to be any additional matters to consider beyond those 
discussed above 
 
 
Conclusion  
 
For reasons mentioned herein, this Clause 4.6 variation is forwarded in support of the 
development proposal at 15-17 William Street, Alexandria and is requested to be looked upon 
favourably by the consent authority. 

 

65



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

Report to the Local Planning Panel - Status of Applications 

File No: X019228 

Summary 

The purpose of this report is to inform members of the Local Planning Panel (LPP) of the 
current applications under assessment that are to be reported to the LPP, of applications 
that have previously been determined by the LPP and have been subject to modification 
applications and of appeals relating to LPP applications. 

Attachment A contains a list of applications due to be determined by the LPP. This list 
includes the application's reference number, address of the proposal, the description of the 
proposal, the target meeting date and the reason why the application is referred to the LPP 
for determination. 

Attachment B contains a summary of Land and Environment Court appeal information 
relating to applications determined by the LPP or appeals relating to deemed refusals of 
applications that would have been determined by the LPP. 

Attachment C contains a list of applications for modification lodged in the third quarter of 
2020/21 on previous LPP approvals. 

Recommendation 

It is resolved that the subject report be received and noted. 

 

Attachments 

Attachment A. Applications to be Reported to Local Planning Panel 

Attachment B. Appeals Related to the Local Planning Panel 

Attachment C. List of Modification Applications Lodged on Local Planning Panel 
Approvals 

  

1

Item 5.



Local Planning Panel 30 June 2021 
 

Background 

1. There are currently 20 applications lodged with the City that are to be considered and 
determined by LPP.  

2. The list of development applications is provided in Attachment A. The application list is 
sorted by target meeting date. 

3. Attachment B details Land and Environment Court appeals that relate to LPP 
decisions or applications that were due to de determined by LPP but were subject to a 
deemed refusal appeal. 

4. Attachment C lists modification applications relating to LPP approvals lodged in the 
third quarter of 2020/21.  There were seven modifications lodged in the third quarter of 
2020/21. One remains under assessment.  

Relevant Legislation 

5. Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 

ANDREW THOMAS 

Executive Manager Planning and Development 

James Farrar, Administration Officer 

2



Attachment A 

Applications to be Reported to the Local 

Planning Panel 

 

3



Applications to be Reported to the Local Planning Panel 

Application 
number 

Address Description Meeting 
target 

Reason for 
LPP 
determination 

D/2020/1059               15-17 William Street  
ALEXANDRIA   

Demolition of an existing warehouse, excavation, remediation and the 
construction of terraced, 3 storey multi-dwelling houses and the 
subdivision of the site. 

30/06/2021 Sensitive 
development 

VPA 

D/2021/242                52 Waterloo Street  
SURRY HILLS   

Alterations/additions to commercial development - enclosure of outdoor 
dining area 

30/06/2021 Departure from 
development 

standard 

D/2021/292                22-26 Botany Road  
ALEXANDRIA   

Demolition of buildings and construction of a mixed-use development 
including boarding house and retail premises.  

11/08/2021 Contentious 
development 

D/2020/1071               56-78 Oxford Street  
DARLINGHURST   

Alterations and additions to 2 groups of existing buildings for mixed use 
development and associated signage strategy. The proposed uses include 
retail premises, food and drink premises, and tenancies for cultural and 
creative uses on the lower ground and ground levels, and commercial 
offices on the levels above.  
The proposed hours of operation of the tenancies on the lower ground and 
ground levels are 7.00am - 10.00pm, Mondays to Sundays inclusive.  
The sites also have a frontage to Foley Street, Crown Street, and Palmer 
Street. 

11/08/2021 Conflict of 
interest 

 
Contentious 
development  

 
Sensitive 

development 
VPA 

 
Departure from 
development 

standard 

4



Application 
number 

Address Description Meeting 
target 

Reason for 
LPP 
determination 

D/2020/1072               110-122 Oxford Street  
DARLINGHURST   

Alterations and additions and use of the existing building as a mixed-use 
development and associated signage strategy. The proposed uses include 
a 75-room hotel, retail premises, food and drink premises, and tenancies 
for cultural and creative uses on the lower ground and ground levels. The 
proposed hours of operation for the tenancies on the lower ground and 
ground levels are 7.00am – 10.00pm, Mondays to Sundays inclusive. The 
site also has a frontage to Foley Street. 

11/08/2021 Conflict of 
interest 

 
Contentious 
development  

 
Sensitive 

development 
VPA 

 
Departure from 
development 

standard 

D/2020/1171               21 Collins Street  
ALEXANDRIA   

Concept DA seeking in-principle approval for demolition of the existing 
building and concept envelopes to a height of approximately 15m with 
indicative lower ground level retail, residential, vehicle circulation and 
services uses, and residential apartments (85 units) above. The proposal 
includes a public benefit offer for dedication of a 2.4m wide strip of land 
along the O'Riordan Street frontage for footpath widening. 

11/08/2021  
Sensitive 

development. 
VPA 

D/2020/1426               20-26 Allen Street  
WATERLOO   

Demolition, remediation, tree removal, lot consolidation and construction 
of a mixed-use development including retail premises and residential 
accommodation. This is Integrated Development requiring approval from 
Water NSW under the Water Management Act 2000. 

11/08/2021 Sensitive 
development 

SEPP 65 

D/2021/372                36 Union Street  
ERSKINEVILLE   

Alterations and additions to residential development 11/08/2021 Conflict of 
interest 

5



Application 
number 

Address Description Meeting 
target 

Reason for 
LPP 
determination 

D/2020/1361               242 Cleveland Street  
SURRY HILLS   

Restoration and redevelopment of the Cathedral of the Annunciation of 
Our Lady site. Includes conservation works to the Cathedral building and 
construction of a crypt; demolition of the existing theological college 
building; alterations and additions to the former St Paul’s rectory; and the 
construction of two, three storey buildings. The former rectory and the new 
buildings are proposed to be connected and accommodate worship 
spaces; function rooms; museum; library; offices; theological college 
domiciles and shared facilities, guest domiciles, bookstore and the Dean’s 
residence.  A café kiosk is also proposed. The proposed operating hours 
for all publicly accessible spaces are 8am to 8pm Monday to Sunday. 
Cathedral and function spaces to operate until 3am on Christmas Day and 
Easter Sunday (Greek Orthodox). The proposal is Integrated 
Development under the Heritage Act 1977. 

01/09/2021 Departure from 
development 

standard 

D/2020/1288               38-44 Mountain Street  
ULTIMO   

Alterations and additions to commercial development 01/09/2021 Departure from 
development 

standard 

D/2020/1387               410 Pitt Street  
HAYMARKET   

D/2015/661 Stage 2 New Hotel. Demolition of existing building and 
construction of a 34-storey hotel development comprising 173 hotel rooms 
and one basement level.  

01/09/2021 Contentious 
development 

D/2020/993                422-424 Cleveland 
Street  
SURRY HILLS   

Construction of mixed-use development comprising a 30-bedroom 
boarding house, cafe, and co-working space. 

01/09/2021 Departure from 
development 

standard 

D/2021/545                32 Bulwara Road  
PYRMONT   

Alterations and additions to residential development 22/09/2021 Departure from 
development 

standard 

6



Application 
number 

Address Description Meeting 
target 

Reason for 
LPP 
determination 

D/2021/308 424-430 George Street 
SYDNEY 

Alterations to use rooftop as a licensed food and drinks premises and art 
gallery. Proposed trading hours are 7am to 3am, Monday to Sunday 
inclusive. 

22/09/2021 Contentious 
development 

D/2020/1409               634 Botany Road  
ALEXANDRIA  NSW  
2015 

Demolition, retention of interwar warehouse building fronting Ralph Street, 
excavation, remediation and construction of shop-top housing 
development up to 7 storeys in height comprising residential apartments 
above ground-level retail and basement parking, provision of through site 
link, footpath widening to Botany Road and associated landscaping. This 
is an Integrated DA requiring approval under the Water Management Act 
2000. 

22/09/2021 Sensitive 
development 

SEPP 65 

D/2020/1419               219-231 Botany Road  
WATERLOO   

Demolition, excavation, remediation and construction of a mixed-use 
development comprising 3 buildings, 7-storeys in height, a retail tenancy 
at ground level fronting Botany Road and 131 residential apartments 
above 2 basement levels, landscaping, dedication of land and works for 
footpath widening along Botany Road. A s4.56(2) application 
(D/2015/1358/C) to modify the previously approved concept envelope to 
accommodate roof structures, balconies and an additional, second 
basement level is being assessed concurrently. Both are for Integrated 
Development that require approval under the Water Management Act 
2000. 

22/09/2021  

Sensitive 
development 
SEPP 65 and 

VPA 

D/2021/304                93-105 Quay Street  
HAYMARKET   

Alterations and additions to existing building and change of use to a 
boarding house and retail premises. 

13/10/2021 Departure from 
development 

standard 

7



Application 
number 

Address Description Meeting 
target 

Reason for 
LPP 
determination 

D/2021/438                185-211 Broadway  
ULTIMO   

New signage. Conversion of an existing billboard to an electronic 
advertising sign. The proposal also includes the removal of an existing 
advertising structure and installation of solar panels to power the new 
electronic signage. 

13/10/2021 Sensitive 
Development - 

VPA 

D/2021/499                576A Harris Street  
ULTIMO   

Alterations/additions to an existing sex services premises. 03/11/2021 Sensitive 
development 
Sex services 

premises 

D/2021/493                17-31 Cowper Street  
GLEBE   

Demolition of existing buildings and construction of mixed-use 
development comprising 70 apartments, 5 dwelling houses and two 
commercial tenancies. 

24/11/2021 Sensitive 
development 

SEPP 65 

List is current as at 21 June 2021  

8



 

Attachment B 

Appeals Related to the Local Planning 

Panel

9



 

Appeals Related to the Local Planning Panel 

 

New appeals filed 

Application 
number 

Address Description Appeal date Status 

D/2021/242 52 Waterloo Street 
SURRY HILLS 

Alterations/additions to commercial development - 
enclosure of outdoor dining area 

03/05/2021 
 
Deemed Refusal 
Appeal on day 48 
of assessment 

Listed for directions on 
1/6/21 

D/2020/1462 22-26 Botany Road 
ALEXANDRIA 

Demolition of buildings and construction of a mixed use 
development including boarding house and retail 
premises. 

06/05/2021 
 
Deemed Refusal 
Appeal on day 123 
of assessment 

Listed for directions on 
9/6/21 

D/2020/917 21 Missenden Road 
CAMPERDOWN 

Demolition of all structures and construction of a mixed 
use development 

29/03/2021 

Deemed Refusal 
appeal on day 196 
of assessment. And 
refused by LPP 
07/04/2021  

Listed for s34 conference 
on 7/6/2021 
second directions hearing 
on 14/6/2021  
 

D/2020/950 23 Hughes Street 
POTTS POINT 

Alterations and additions to use building as boarding 
house 

24/02/2021 

Appeal of LPP 
refusal 03/02/2021  

Listed for s34 conference 
17/6/2021 
second directions hearing 
on 25/6/2021 
 

 

10



 

Ongoing appeals 

D/2019/665  21C Billyard Avenue , 
ELIZABETH BAY 

Alterations and additions to an existing residential flat 
building at 10 Onslow Avenue, comprising an additional 
level to create a new living space and outdoor terrace to 
apartment No. 11. 

11/12/2020 
Appeal 121 days 
after determination 

Listed for hearing on 13 
and 14/10/21  

D/2020/244 24 Hardie Street 
DARLINGHURST 

Alterations and additions to six terraces including rear 
five storey addition and basement level for use as a 
hotel with 69 rooms. Includes tree removal and lot 
consolidation. The site has a rear frontage to Hayden 
Place. 

9/06/2020 
Appeal on day 84 
of assessment 

Appeal heard on 19-
20/05/21. 
Judgment reserved 

D/2019/1135 13-15 Kellett Street 
POTTS POINT 

Use of the ground level as a restricted premises (adult 
entertainment premises) in conjunction with the existing 
licensed bar and restaurant known as 'Dollhouse 
Nightspot', with hours of operation of 24 hours, 7 days 
per week. The application includes alterations to the 
external rear courtyard wall to provide emergency 
egress. 

17/02/2020 
 
Appeal 10 days 
after determination  
 

Listed for hearing 
on 25-26/8/21 

D/2019/517 191-195 Botany Road 
WATERLOO 

Demolition of existing two storey building and car park at 
195 Botany Road, construction of a 6 storey commercial 
building with ground floor retail and basement car 
parking at 195 Botany Road and subdivision. This 
application is for Integrated Development requiring the 
approval of Water NSW under the Water Management 
Act 2000. 

11/12/2019 
 
Appeal on day 205 
of assessment 

 
 
Appeal dismissed 
19/2/2021 
 
S56A appeal against 
commissioner’s judgement 
Filed 18/03/2021  
 
listed for hearing 25/08/21 
 

 

  

11



 

 

Completed appeals 

Application 
number 

Address Description Appeal date Status 

D/2020/51 

 

73-75 Wells Street 
REDFERN 

Partial demolition of existing buildings, and construction 
of mixed use development with basement parking, 
ground floor retail space and 13 residential dwellings. 

2/07/2020 
 
Appeal on day 161 
of assessment 

Section 34 
conciliation conference 
adjourned to 30/11/20. 
 
Appeal upheld 14/12/2020 
 

D/2019/136 127-131 Macquarie 
Street  

SYDNEY  

Two illuminated top of building 'Crescent Wealth' 
business signs to be installed on the north and west 
elevations of existing roof structure  

 
07/05/2019  
 

Appeal on day 77 
of assessment  

Deemed refusal appeal  
Listed for hearing on 10-
11/11/20. 
 
Appeal upheld 14/12/2020 

D/2017/1332 278 Palmer Street  
DARLINGHURST   

 

Alterations and additions to the existing building 
including a part one and part two storey addition, new 
basement for storage and services, and change of use 
to a residential flat building containing 10 apartments 
and a rooftop terrace. 

27/11/2018 

Appeal 20 days 
after determination  

 

Appeal of refusal by LPP 
on 07/11/2018 as per staff 
recommendation  
 
Matter heard on 6-8/11/19. 
Judgment reserved. 
 
Dismissed. 
 

D/2020/325 40-50 Francis 
DARLINGHURST 

Alterations and additions to the approved commercial 
development to extend the lift shaft to Building 1 to allow 
access to the rooftop plant area for maintenance. 

26/05/2020 
 
Appeal on day 48 
of assessment 

Appeal upheld 
 
24/02/2021  

D/2019/832 47 Crown Street 
WOOLLOOMOOLOO 

Alterations and additions to two (2) existing semi-
detached residential dwellings and construction of a 
four-storey residential flat building. 

17/12/2019 

 
Appeal 27 days 
after determination 

 
Appeal upheld 3/2/2021 
Orders in accordance with 
the parties s34 agreement 

List current as at 20/05/2021 

12



Attachment C 

List of Modification Applications Lodged on 

Local Planning Panel Approvals 

 

13



List of Modification Applications Lodged on Local Planning Panel Approvals 

 

Application 
number 

Address Description Lodgement 
date 

Status Decision 
date 

D/2020/297/B              1-11 Oxford Street  
PADDINGTON   

Section 4.55(1A) modification of consent to include demolition of part of the 
northern internal masonry wall (along gridline B and between gridlines 3 
and 8) to improve protection to the state heritage listed Busby's Bore 
during construction of the development. 
 

07/01/2021 Approved with 
Conditions 

04/02/2021 

D/2020/297/C              
1-11 Oxford Street  
PADDINGTON   

S4.55 (1A) Modification of consent to amend Conditions 112, 113, 114, 
115 and 162 to enable works to occur as part of the first construction 
certificate. 

14/01/2021 Approved with 
Conditions 

01/03/2021 

D/2015/1358/C             
219-231 Botany Road  
WATERLOO   

S4.56(2) application to modify approved concept envelope for a mixed-use 
development to accommodate roof structures, balconies and an additional, 
second basement level. Development application (D/2020/1419) for the 
detailed design of a mixed-use building up to 7-storeys in height is being 
assessed concurrently. Both are for Integrated Development that require 
approval under the Water Management Act 2000. 
 

04/02/2021 Under 
Assessment 

  

D/2017/1393/A             
11-17 Eve Street  
ERSKINEVILLE   

Section 4.55(2) modification of consent for internal and external 
modifications to a residential flat building. 

04/02/2021 Approved with 
Conditions 

26/04/2021 

D/2020/55/A               
29-41 Hutchinson 
Street  
SURRY HILLS   

Section 4.55(1A) - Modification of consent for alterations and additions to 
an existing commercial building. Application seeks to delete Condition 5 
'Design Quality Excellence'. 

12/02/2021 Approved with 
Conditions 

04/03/2021 

D/2017/1131/E             
23-47 Flinders Street  
SURRY HILLS   

Section 4.55(1) modification of consent to include the west elevation at 
Maiden Lane as a stamped approved drawing in accordance with the 
previous approval D/2017/11318/D 

08/03/2021 Approved with 
Conditions 

09/03/2021 

D/2020/377/A              
11-13 Greenknowe 
Avenue  
ELIZABETH BAY   

S4.55(2) - Modification to consent to seek approval for the use of intrusive 
appliances during construction. 

29/03/2021 Withdrawn 03/05/2021 

14


	Agenda
	1 Disclosures of Interest
	2 Confirmation of Minutes
	3 Development Application: 52 Waterloo St, Surry Hills - D/2021/242
	Attachment A - Recommended Conditions of Consent
	Attachment B - Selected Drawings
	Attachment cover sheet
	Architectural Plans - 52 Waterloo St Surry Hills_PAN-77616
	5590_DA-1000_COVER SHEET_IssueA
	5590_DA-1050_SITEPLAN_IssueA
	5590_DA-1101_GROUND PLAN_IssueA
	5590_DA-1102_ROOF PLAN_IssueA
	5590_DA-1201_SEC+WESTELE_IssueA
	5590_DA-1301_NORTH ELEVATION_IssueA


	Attachment C - Clause 4.6 Variation Request - Floor Space Ratio
	Attachment cover sheet
	8945B_5_Clause 4.6 Statement_FSR_Final_210602


	4 Development Application: 15-17 William Street, Alexandria - D/2020/1059
	Attachment A - Selected Drawings
	Attachment Cover Sheet Template
	Stamped Plans - D20201059
	_Combined drawings except Landscape
	15-17 William Street Alexandria - 00_COVER PAGE_[2]_AI-91568 (1)
	15-17 William Street Alexandria - 02_BASEMENT PLAN_[4]_AI-91568 (1)
	15-17 William Street Alexandria - 03_GROUND FLOOR PLAN_[3]_AI-91568 (1)
	15-17 William Street Alexandria - 04_FIRST FLOOR PLAN_[3]_AI-91568
	15-17 William Street Alexandria - 05_SECOND FLOOR PLAN_[3]_AI-91568 (1)
	15-17 William Street Alexandria - 07_ELEVATION I OF 2_[2]_AI-91568 (1)
	15-17 William Street Alexandria - 08_ELEVATION 2OF 2_[2]_AI-91568
	15-17 William Street Alexandria - 09_SECTION_[2]_AI-91568
	15-17 William Street Alexandria - 17_FINISHES SCHEDULE_[2]_AI-91568

	15-17 William Street Alexandria - 06_ROOF PLAN_[3]


	Attachment B - Clause 4.6 Variation Request - Floor Space Ratio
	Attachment Cover Sheet Template
	Written Clause 4.6 Statement - Floor Space Ratio - 15-17 William Street
	APPENDIX 1



	5 Report to the Local Planning Panel - Status of Applications
	Attachment A - Applications to be Reported to the Local Planning Panel
	Attachment B - Appeals Related to the Local Planning Panel
	Attachment C - List of Modification Applications Lodged on Local Planning Panel Approvals




